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been founded in 1392, by the same individual, who en-
dowed it with lands for u minister and certain poor per-
sons, whose revenue, at its suppression was valued at
£19. 8. 10. : upon the petition of the Earl of Notting-
ham it was rebuilt, in 1570, and restored under the title
of Queen Elizabeth's hospital, for a master und twelve
poor brethren.

DONNINGTON, a hamlet in the parish of Stow
ou the Wowp, upper division of the hundred of SLaucn-
TER, county of GLovcksTenr, 14 mile (N.) from Stow
on the Wold, containing 201 inhabitants. A battle was
fought here in 1645, in which the royalists under Lord
Aston were defeated by Colonel Morgan ; this victory oc-
casioned the surrender of the king's garrison at Oxford,
and hastened the termination of the protracted war.

DONNINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Raprow,
county of Herrrorp, 2§ miles (8, by W.) from Ledbury,
containing 103 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeacoury and diocese of IHeretord,
rated in the king's books at £3.9. 9. 'The Rev. E.
Freeman was patron in 1817. The church is dedicated
to St. Mary.

DONNINGTON, a joint chapelry with Hugglescote,
in the parish of Instock, hyndred of SrARKENHOE,
county of LricesTer, 5imiled (S.L. by E.) from Ashby
de la Zouch, containing 683 inhabitants. The chapel
is dedicuted to St. Peter.

DONNINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Box
and SToCKkBRIDGE, rape of Cn1cHESTER, county of Sus-
sex, € miles (5.8.W.) from Chichester, containing 267
inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's
books at £9. 10. 5., and in the patronage of the Bishop
of Chicheter. The church is in the carly style of En-
glish architecture, The Arundel and Portsmouth canal
passes through the purish.

DONNINGTON-WOOD, a chapelry in the parish
of LiLues#art, Newport division of the bundred of
Braprorp (South), connty of Savor, 33 miles (E.N.E.)
from Wellington. The population is returned with the
parish. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry of Salop, and diocese of Lichfield and Coven-
try, endowed with £200 private benefaction, £800 ypyal
bounty, and £ 300 purliamentary grant,and in the patron-

1o St. George. Therc is nplace of worship for Baptists.
DONYATT, a parish in the hundred of ABwICK and
BuLsToNE, county of SomERSET, 2% miles (W,
Ilminster, containing 518 inhabitants. The gis a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Taunton, and, diocere of
Buth snd Wells, rated in the king's bogks at£15. 15.
R, T. Combe, Esq. was patron in 1823# The church in
dedicated to St. Mary. The river I* runs through the
parish, and over it are four hri oAt 8 place called
ounded, in 1625,

Crockstreet there are three potter
citizen and cloth-worker of Lendv

an almehouse, with un endowment gBW producing £48

per-annum, for three poor men three women,
DONYLAND (EAST), a pi ‘in the Colchester

division of the hundred of Leyjjgy; coumty of Essex,

34 miles (8.E. by 8.) from Colc , containing 562 in-
habitants. The living is a rectory; in ¢k archdeaconry
of Colchester, and diocese of mﬂn,‘cﬂﬂl iin the king's
books 6t £10. The Rev, Charles Hewitt was patron in
16401, The church is dedicated to St. Lawrence. . The
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navigable river Colne forms the eastern boundary of the
parith, and there receives the river Roman.
DONYLAND (WEST), county of Essex. Ses
BERECHURCH, -
DORCHESTER, a borough
and market town, having
separate jurisdiction, locally
in the hundred of Uggs- )i
come, Dorchester division of @
the county of DorseT, on the \r;t‘ %
southern bank of the river T
Frome, 120 miles (5. W.by W.) ;’k
from London, containing 2743 ‘\ 7.5
inhabitants, The carly exist- L
ence of this town is cvident
from the etymology of its Ro-
man names Durnovaria and
Durinum, * a place on or near the Faria,” which was the
old British appellation of the Frome. Ptolemy describes
it ag the chief town of the Durotriges, and calls it
Duniwn ; it was nmned by the Saxons Dornceaster,
whence the modern Dorchester is derived,  In Athel-
stan's charter to Milton abbey, dated at this place, Dor-
chester, which then bhelonged to the crown, is ealled
Filla Regalis, to distinguish it from Dorchester in Ox-
fordshire, which was styled @'ifle Episcopalis. The
Roman station stood on the Via Ieeniana, and the re-
mains of its ancient walls, the several vicinal roads
leading from it, and the discovery of coins and other
relies of antiguity, evinee it to have been a place of great
importance. Inthe Saxon age, two mints were granted
to this place by Athelstan. In 1003, it was besieged
and burnt, and its walls thrown down, by 8weyn, King
of Denmark, in revenge for the attempt’
extirpate the Danes by a general maggl
reign of Elizabeth, several Roman Catholic'§y
executed here ; and, in 1595, the ravages
were very extensive. In 1613, a fire consn
houses, together with the churches of the Helyg
and All Sainte: the damage amounted to &
A_second _conflagration took place in 1662, and €W
A 1775. During the civil wars, according to Lord
Clarendon, Dorchester was considered one of the strong-

, est -holds of the parliament: it was fortified for this
age of the Marquis of Stafford. The chapel is dedigated

purpose in 1642-3 ; but, on the approach of the Earl
of Caernarvon, with two thousand men, the town was
mmmediately relinquished, and the governor fled by sea
to Southampton : the Earl-ﬁ Essex afterwards took pos-
session of it. In 1645, an action took place here between
General Goring at the head of fifteen hundred cavalry,and:
ahout four thousand of the parliamentary troops under
Cromwell, in which the latter sustained a defeat, but kept
possession of the town. In 1685, on the occasion of
the Duke of Monmouth’s rebellion, the assizes were
held here, before Judge Jefferies, when twenty-nine out
of thirty persons tried in one day, were found guilty and
condemned : on the following day, two ‘hundred -and
ninety-two pleaded guilty and were condemned, of whom
eighty were executed : on the moming of trial, Jefferies:
ordered the court to be hung with scarlet,

The town, is pleasantly sitasted on elevated grovnd;
the river Frome, lowing on the worth-western side; #
oceupies an area of about eighty acres, and tonsiets prim:
cipally of three spacious streets, the mﬂww
the centre of the town, where the corn-taarket is: halil, '
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called Cornhill: these wtreets severally terminate in the
roads to London, Weymouth,and Exeter; and from West.
street, in & northerly direction, is the road to Bath : they
are kept remarkably clean, well paved, and lighted. A
small theatre was erected in 1828 races are held annually
in September. The town is environed for two-thirds
of its extent by a fine promenade, overshadowed with
lofty trees; and the surrounding scenery, which consists
of extensive downs, sloping hills, and fertile enclosures,
watered by branches of the Frome, forms a picturesque
and beautiful landscape. It is also surrounded by a
tract called Fordington Field, partly meadow-land, and
partly in tillage, without any enclosure, seven miles in
circumference ;- it belongs to the duchy of Cornwall,
and is held by the owners on lives, with a widowhood.
Six hundred thousand sheep were formerly computed
to have been constantly fed within a circuit of six miles,
and that number is now exceeded : the high estimation
of Dorchester mutton is attributable to the swect herbage
of the #oil ; and the water, which springs from a chalky
bed, is particularly favourable for brewing becer, which is
here made to a great extent, and of a superior quality,
During the reigns of Elizabeth, Charles L., and James 1.,
there was a flourishing cloth manufactory; but this
branch of business has greatly declined, there being
only a little blanketting and linsey now manufactured,
in addition to the spinning of worsted-yarn. The prin-
cipal market day is Saturday, and there is an inferior
market on Wednesday. The fuirs are on Candlemas-day,
Trinity-Monday, St. John the Baptist's and St. James's
days; the three last heing principally for sheep and lambs,
i Dorchester is a borough by prescription and char-
ter, and, imahe reign of Edward II, was under the
20 ' Ftwo bafliffs and burgesses. In 1610,
¥ inted fifteen b and two bailiffs,
- choose & recorder and other officers.

of Charles I., the borough was incorpo-
: a mayor, two bailiffe, six aldermen, six
hurgesses, a governor, and twenty-four com-
-men, with a recorder, town clerk, and other

cordelt, two bailiffs, and one capital burgess, are justices
of the peace within the borough. The mayor and the’
two bailiffs are chosen annually by the corporate body,
fromamong the capital burgesses, from whom the alder-
men are also appointed by the same mode. A court of
record is held “ every Munday, from three weeks to three
weeks,” for the recovery of ¢ebts not amounting to £40.
The town-hall was erected By the corporation in 1791 ;
undeyneath ig the market-house. The shire-hall is a plain
and commodious edifice of Portland stone, containing
court-rooms wherein the assizes and quarter sessions
for: the county afe held: by a right vested in the cor-
poration fhe sestlons for the borough are also held
in this edifiee; The new county gaol was crected on
the ‘site ‘'of the old -castle, bétween 1789 and 17065, at
m ‘of £16,179. 10. 6., on the plan of the
mt Howard, and comprises the coumty gaol,
penitentiary, and house of correction: the exterior is
handsome, and ‘the interior is divided into various
depestments for the classification of prisoncrs, having
. wings, which, though detached, communicate with
¢ centrel building by cast-iron bridges. This borough
Yeturtied tve members to parliament from the 23rd
,whb are . by about four hundred

EEF

Yar TY,

| of whom the mayor, the late mayor, the re-.
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voters: the franchise was formerly in the inhabitants
paying scot and lot, but is now equally vested in non-
residente having real estates within the borough, and
paying church and poor rates, which arrangement has
led to a very minute division of the portion of land so
entitled, to feoffees in trust, in order 10 produce a pre-
ponderance in the number of electors. The primary
title to this property has long heen vested in the mnoble
family of Cooper, Earls of Shaftesbury, whose influence
is necessarily paramount. The ancient. family of Wil-
liams has also consideruble weight. The mayor is the
returning officer. During the usurpation, Cromwell, in
1653, appointed one member for the horough.

The town is divided into three parishes, riz., All
Saints', commonly called All Hallows, or the lower
parish, St. Peter's, and the Holy Trinity, in the arch-
deaconry of Dorset and diocese of Bristol. The living
of All Saints’ is a discharged rectory, rated in the
king's hooks at £4. 4. 7., endowed with £200 private
benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £ 400 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Mayor and Corpo-
ration. The charch was rebuilt after the great fire.
The living of Trinity parish is a rectory, to which the
rectory of St. Peter’s was‘lnited by act of parliament
in 1610, rated in the king's books at £17. 8. 64., and
in the patronage of the Mayor and Corporation. The
chnreh, erected nearly on the site of an ancient cdifice
pulled down in 1821, in consequence of its dilapidated
state and its protruding so far into the street, is an
clegant and commodious structure, ornamented with
beautifully painted glass, and containing a marble
tablet to the memory of Dr. Cuming, who, according
to the epitaph, was buried in the church-ya~d, rather
than in the church, * lest he who studied, while living,
to promote the health of his fellow citizens, should
prove detrimental to it when dead.” The living of St.
Peter's, formerly a rectory, has for ages been considered
only a curacy to the rectory of the Holy Trinity parish,
to which it was united by act of parliament in the 7th
of James I., the church having been used as a chapel
of ease since that period : St. Peter's is, however, for all
legal purposes, a distinct parish, having its own officers,
maifaining its own poor, and the inhabitants contribu-
ting ‘only to the repairs of their own church : the living
is now a perpetual curacy, having been endowed in 1823
with £ 1200 private benefaction, £ 1500 royal bounty,
and £2000 parliamentary grant, under the provisions
of an uo# passed in the sixth year of Queen Anne's reign.
The chueek is ancient, spacious, and well built, and con-
sists of a chancel, nave, and side aisles, and au embattled
tower with pinﬁ::;l ninety feet in height: it contains
several ancient jousmonuments, one to the memory
of Denzil, Lord Hollps, of white marble, which represents
that nobleman in %3 mbent posture, and bears a Latin
and English ins ion; also the handseme tomb of
Sir John William Herringstone, Knt., and his lady,
In the north aisle} §h a stone coffin, lies the effigy of a
knight, cmss—leggum]completely armed in a coat of
mail and helmet, wi t, spurs, and shield, but with-
out armorial devi ‘¢here ig a similar figure in the
south window: they awe supposed to represent two
crusaders belonging to the family of the Chidiocks, found.-
ers of the neighbouring peiery,’and to have been removed
hither on the demolition"sf the prlory church, There
are places of worship for Buptim,-’!ndq;endents, Wes.
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leyan Mcthodists, and Unitarians. A free grammar schoo}
was founded and endowed in the year 1579, by Mr.
Thomas [Tardy, of Wyke, near Weymouth ; the govern-
ment is vested in trostees: it has a trifling exhibition
of £5 per anmun, arising from the profits of the mar-
Lets, at any college in cither University ; in addition to
wiich, there are two exhibitions, of £10 per annum
vach, at St, Jehm's College, Cambhridge, for scholars
cither from St, Paul's school, London, or {rom the free
school of Derchester, A second school was re-founded
by the corporation, abont 1623, having cxisted prior to
the establishment of the grammar school, and intenided
as a subordinate institution: tlie master is appointed
hy the corporution, aud instrnets gratuitously five hoys
ai their nomination, in reading, writing, and arithmetic.
A handsome almshouse, called Napper's or Napier's Mite,
adjoins the free school; it was founded by Sir Robert Na-
pler, in 1615, for ten poor men : near the priory is another,
feunded anid endowed previously to 1617, by Matthew
Chiabh, one of the representatives of this borough, for nine
poor wemien s and in the vieinity of AN Saings” ehorehy,
are Whetstone's alinshouvses, for the maintenance of four
versons, or four couple, at the diseretion of the corpora-
tion, Dorchester hospital, erected in 1616, was originally
a kind of work-lhouse, and having beer subsequently
otherise ocenpicd, Was again couverted to its primary
tixe, in 1744, Tor the poor of she three parishes: it is
sow used hoth as a workhouse 2l an hospital, cach of
the pavishes appointing three grardians, and partly for
the bovs of the National school wlso,

This town, whea in the possession of the Romans,
was entirely suvrcunded by o wall and a fosee, having
two exiorior ramparts visible on the south and west ; on
which side there are still remains of’ the old wall, ua\ty-
five paees in length, siv feet thiek, und, in some places,
twelve feet Iugh @ it foundation is en the solid (_ll&“\-
rock, and the wall is built of rug-stone, jaid obliquely
and covered withanortar; e ery second eourse, in the Ro-
man manner, ronning t}u- reverse way, and having oc-
casional horizontal ones for biuding, ntesmixed with
fiint.

r aundd the town, particularly in 1764, when cighty-seven

f et of wall were pulled down, aud only sixty-seven foet;
L1t standing. A costle, pr uhuhlv of Roman orjgim, for-
werly stood Lere, the site of which is placed, by tradi-
tion, in a large ficld near the county prison, sill enlled
Castle Green; but there are uot the slightest tiuces of
tie building. A priory of the Franciscan o WaE con-
structed from the materials, o little castwa®d frem the
castle, by a member of the Chidkﬁ% family, some lime
prev |mL-llf to the 4th of Edward The .church wue
pulled down ut the Reformation, and the howse altered
by Sir I‘mm..s Abhley for his ow idence ; it contains

]')cnzil, the m-]obmtcd Lord Ho 3

mansion was eonverted into o Praaiite: mmwmng-houu..
and so continued till 1722, Opiilite to.it, on the north,
arc the priory close and m Savml Danish burial
places, or tumuli, are scabhg round tbe town. In
1725, .2 large tesseluted paveglent was discovered, at
the depth of three or four feeﬁ p.rdm near South-
etreet; amd, in 1747,a of some Romen
deity, pruhsblyuf Bucchus® mm atthe of five
feet,” In pﬁpm‘h% -tha funndauom for lhbﬁglél, a

A great part of these fortifieations was levelled |
and destroyed in making the walks which partially, sur..
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great number of Roman coins were dug up, including
those of Antoninus Pius, Vespasian, Constantine, Carau-
sius, Valerian, Valens, and Gallienus, In the immediate
vicinity of the town are somc intercsting remains of a sup-
posed Roman amphitheatre, of the Roman camp of Pound-
bury, and of the Roman or British one of Maiden castle.
Henry Pierpoint, Earl of Kingston, was created Marquis
of Dorchester, March 25th 1645, but the title, after
baving been revived on the 23rd of December, 1706,
finally became extinet on the death of Evelyn Pierpoint,
the last duke of Kingston,

DORCHESTER, a purish (formerly a market
town) in the hundred of Dorcupster, county of
Oxvorp, 85 miles (5. E. by #8) from Oxford, and 49
(N.W.) froin London, containing %54 inhaliitants, The
town ig sitnated on the banks of the river Thame, over
which there is a stone bridge, at a short distance to the
north of its junction with the river Isiv, or Thames. 1t
is a place of great antiquity, supposed to have been
British town, and afterwards o Roman station, called
by Richard of Cirencester Dorocing, heing sitnated on
the Roman road passing through the centre of the
island, and Roman coins and medals baving heen fre-
quently  discovered here. Under the Saxons it flou-
rished greatly, and Cynegils, King of Wessex, having
been converted to Christianity, und baoptized at Deor-
chester, by Birinus, an Italinn priest, founded here a
hishoprick, of which Birinus was the first Lishop; and the
see continued, with a short intermission, to he fixed here
till after the Norman Conquest, when it was removed to
Lincoln.  King Athelstau beld a council at Dorchester,
in 958, when he grauted a charter to the abbey of Mu!mm--
bury, in which this place is styied the cglel
Dornacestre, According to Leland, it |
from the ineursions  of the Danes. . M
moval of the hwhopﬁ (it rapidly decling
tance, so that William'sf: Malmesbury, who wge
1140, mentions it as small and thinly inhg
mbse@eﬂdy it fell inte a state of.g
middle of th‘e twelfth wen_b

astead of the dergy who &
cathedral, whose revenue at the dissolgf

The living isa pcrpe£ N
the peculiar court of D
age of the Trustees -of’
which was formerly edral, is dedicated to
St. Peter and St, Paul: 'a large and very curions.
structure, with & tower at the west end, and ex-
hibits ' in its various parts the different styles from
the Norman to the later Engli In the north
aisle there is o remarkable Norndd
dows of the chancel. display m
ornamental tracery; some stonc 8
cnnoples. and in the windaws '

f and in the patron-,
iplace, The church,

with Norman arches a.ud figures

it; and among the wpulch.rsl

which appear to be extremelyancienty: -‘mentiohs,

'threeormlh churches bere; but there are no.traces of
them, A schoal, founded in IM Iiy

John Fettiplace, hss an endowment of £10:

for the gfucation of six boys. “In thé ci
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staniliug a part of the conventual buildings, now used
for the free grammar schonl. On the west side of the
town is a double iutrenchinent, called Dike hills, sup-
posed to be of Romun origin,

DORE, a chapelry in the parish of I'rRoxnern,
bundred of ScirspaLy, connty of Derny, 5 miles (N W,
by W.) from Dronfield, containing 476 mhabitants. The
living is n perpetnol ewracy, in the archdeaconry of
Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, endowed
with £400 privete henelaction, £400 royal bounty, und
£ 260 parlinmentary grant, Earl Fitzwillinan was patron
in 1807. A wpew chapel has heen ereeted upon a
more convenient site thun that of the ancient ene.  The
Ree. Robert Turie, in 1720, pave £40 towards eudowing
a school, in aid of which, the Duke of Devonshire, and
other benefactors, bave, by various beguests and do-
nations, raised the inemae to £37. 18, per annum, 1his
sum heing gpplicd to the education of thirty children, in
a school-raom recently erected by subseription,

DORE-ABBEEY, o parish in the hundred of Wen-
TrEE, comnty of Henvvorn, 192 miles (5.W, by W)
from Hereford, eontaiving 523 inhabirants,  The living
is @ rectory, it the archdeaconry and diocese of Here-
ford, rated in the Kine's books at £8, and in the patronage
of Jolin Hickford, 1isq. The church is dedicanad {o the
Toly Trinity and St, Mary.  An abhey of white monhs,

in honour of the Blossad Viegin Mary, wis founted
in the reign of Stephen, by Rohert, con of aroid, loed
of Ewyas, which consisted of an sbbot aad eighe ve-
ligious, whose revenue at the dissolution was vaived ef
£118, 2,

& market town and parish in the secend
Tmdred of WoTtTen, cointy ui Seuney,
z G\ll]dfl)‘l‘d.. tnd Q3 (R.85.W)) from
the road through Epgomyto Wortlunz, Bog-
bton, containing 3812 inhgbitnts. This
y called Dorchinges, appearst to have de-
ge from ijts sitnation in a valley gbpunding
fof water. It was probably foundegi. the
i after ity destruction by the Danes
Rd become a town of gowne import

an Conguest, at which period it was Held in
esne, and had a church and three mills, In
f Lidward 1., j@fbtained the graut of a weekly

L

market an annual a8 endowed with many
priy. . In asurv pior in 1649, the town
ig stated to have #8proved, and to have

Been paved: the sue :
held herc in 1699, but! that particular cause does
not appeur ; the quarter sedms were also held here og-
casioually. . The town' is situsited in a sandy vale, and
towards the wouth side of it, on a strutum of sand-
rock, in-which exggllent cellars are excavated : a small
s b river Mole, intersects the vale,
the north by a ridge of chalky

wfor the county were

,.and abounding with pictoresque
iuntly fertile, and the heights
- ; t views, emabracing
‘wne side, and the British chaanel
: raus are several handsome villas
- ately mansions; of ‘which Shrub Hill deserves no-
ﬂﬂ_':‘,:ﬂl account of fte fine haugipg gardens. Box Hill;
bt & talhe from the town, 8 picturceque eminence
tted Box: treek; m the reign of Charles $45by the

-
ot

9

Earl of Avundel, from which circumstance it takes ite
pame, commands we oxtentive view of the snrromedine
conutry, and is a piace of resort for cummer exenr-
L0118 I::'nlu London,  Lictechworth castle, Govnpying the
site of an anciont jurivess of that wase, un tle western
Lank of the viver Mol i beotifully sitnated inoan ez
tensive pork, celebrated for the stateliness of its fine
chesnut teees, some of which are seven virds iu girth,
amd profduee froit egual to the Spunisi tree. There
were alvo two other ancient forteessos iy the parish.,
called Benliam and Ewtons coestles, which are stated (o
have been demalished by the Danes ul the
mout that surreunded eneh are still saaoms, ol the
former bt given nasne to o mcedow b wweh it stood,
The vale benewh Box T enbled Tiobaaded or Tehy
dale, was for severnl mres the rotvonr of (b gueisn
Britous, in theiv condicts with the Doovas, ot atter
wards that of the Saxons, when 1l connty was Lireesod
by the Danes, on which aceount it has heeoine 1 Ve
Jueer af o distich declweatory ot the ueon e hien ~-
of the date: inthe reizn of Chacles 11, 5
ol for red deer, which the Dake Yori, aiter-
wirds Jawes 1L, preseeved for his own sport
subsequently noted  for the production of  Gnneens
quantities of strawherries, which were cooveved fomar
ket in horse-lowds, buat is pow overovovwn with furye.
The streets are spacions, and the foot-patins hinve heen
recently paved 5 the houses, thongh mostly of anciert
date, are in general well buile, aned of neat appearance:
the town is lighted with oil by snlizcription, and sopplied
with water brought from a spring by water-works, the
property of a private individual, who has econstructed
baths adjoining them for the publie accommedation. A
bhook society has been formed under the patranase of the
geitry resident in the neichhourhood ; a reading society
is principally supported by the inhabitants of the town:
and a circulating library has beenn established by a
number of subscribers, who pay an annnal snbseription
of £2, 2 in advance, The trade is principally in meal
and lime, the latter heing considereldl  superior iu
. quality to any produced elsewhere ; poultry (of which a
particular species, having five claws, stated to have been
wrought hither by the Romans, is known among the
Iterers as Dorking fowls,) is seld in large quantities
th@'sppply of the London market.  The county ma-
gistrates Yold petty sessioms here for the division; anda
colirt Jeet und court haron are held in Octoher, under the
lord of the manor. The custom of Borough English pre-
vails iu thig parish, which is divided into the several dis-
tricts of gstborcmgh, including West Betchworth and
part of the town; Chipping horough, including the re-
mainder of the town}; Holmwood borough, including the
northern and sout suburbs; Milton borough, in-
clading the ‘hamlet- & Milton-street ; and Westcote
borough, so called fig@*a hamlct about a mile anc a

Vastig s

wits eolobrs
uf
i Vs

Farnham en the western side of half west of the towt

ge, in the archdeaconry of Sur-

ster, rated in the king's books

patronage of the Co-heirs

‘church, dedicated to St.

fciform structure, principally in

the later style of En architecture, with a low em-
battled tower rising fro

Wﬁi&:mww part of
the powae rebuoilt iy ‘ang ‘the church- exten-
sively y but it stilk retaine much-of its griginal

The living is &
rey, and diocese of Wg
at £14.18.114,, and
of the Duke of Norfolk
Martin, is a spacious ¢



DOR

leyan Methodists, and Unitarians, Lhegxmnchool
was founded and endowed in the year 1579, by Mr.
Thomas Hardy, of Wyke, near W ; the govern-
ment is vested in trustees: it has a exhibition
of £5 per annum, uistng,ﬂmn ithe proﬁts of the mar-
kets, at any college in either University ; in addition to
which, there are two exhibitions, of £10 per annum
each, at St. John's College, Cambridge, for scholars
cither from St. Paul's school, London, or from the free
school of Doecheatet A second schaol was re-founded
by the corporation, about 1623, having existed prior to
the establishment of the grammar school, and intended
as a subordinate institution: the master is appointed
by the corporation, and instructs gratuitously five boys
of thdr nomination, in reading, writing, and arithmetic,

A handsome almshouse, called Napper's or Napier's Mite,
adjoins the free school; it was founded by Sir Robert Na-
pm, in 1615, for ten poor men : near the priory is another,
founded and endowed previously to 1617, by Matthew
Chubb, one of the representatives of this borough, for nine
poor women ; and in the vicinity of All Saints’ church,

are Whetstone s almshouses, for the maintenance of four
persons, or four couple, at the discretion of the corpora-
tion. Dorchester hospital, erected in 1616, was originally
a kind of work-house, and having been subsequently
otherwise occupied, was aggin converted to its primary
use, in 1744, for the poor of the three parishes: it is
now used bhoth as a workhouse and an hospital, each of
the parishes appointing three guardians, and partly for
the boys of the National school also,

This town, when in the possession of the Romans,
was entirely surrounded by a wall and a fosse, having
two exterior ramparts visible on the south and west ; on
which side there are still remains of the old wall, sixty-
five paces in length, six feet thick, and, in-some places,
twelve feet high : its foundation is on the solid chalk-
rock, and the wall is built of rag-stone, laid obliquely
and cmered withmortnrq every second course, in the Ro-
man manner, running the reverse way, and having oc-

ﬁn&t. ‘A great part of theso fortifications was levelled
M&;:?yed in making the walkn“whuh ps‘rtmlly'
ounid the town,; partwuhrly in 1764, when eighty-
l‘" nfw\n were pulled down, uulonly sb:tng
j Acasﬂt;.prehablyofBomqn
mﬁe site of which is p

easional horizontal ones for binding, intermixed with

muisl,‘Vde;'xzn.Vdem,qd. allienus, In the im
vicinity of t etownareuomemtmaﬁng ‘
posed Roman amphitheatre, of the Roman camp
bury, and of the Roman oerimhone&'M' iden cas
Henry Pierpoint, Earl of Kingston, \m
of Dorchester, March 25th nua the. titk, after
having been revived on the 2ard of December, 1706,
finally became extinct on the death of Evei;m in
the last duke of Kingston. :
DORCHESTER, a parish (formerly a market
town) in the hundred of Dorcurster, couty of

Oxrorp, 85 miles (5.E. by 8.) from xford, and 49
(N.W.) from London, containing 854 i itants, The
town is situated on the banks of the river Thame, over

which there is a stone bridge, at a short distance to the
north of its junction. with the river Isis, or Thames, It

is a place of great antiquity, supposed to have m
‘British town, and afterwards a Roman station,

by Richard of Cirencester Dorocina, being situated on
the Roman road passing through the centre of the
island, and Roman coins and medals having been fre-
quently discovered here. Under the Sa.xgns it flon-.
rished greatly, and Cynegils, King of Wessex, having
been converted to Christianity, and baptized at Dor-,
chester, by Birinus, an Italian priest, founded here a
blshopruk, of which Birinus was the first bishop; and the,
see continued, with a short intermission, to be fixed here

till after the Norman Conquest, when it was removed to
Lincoln.  King Athelstan held a council at Dorchestu'

in 958, when he ted a charter to the ahbe

bury, in which this plqce“ia g,tyle
Dornacestre. Acco ding

from the incursion
moval of the b
ta.nee, 80 that !




mdhwpnmwm aa.no royal bmmty and
parliamentary grant. Earl Fitzwilliam was patron

'£.

&807‘ Amw*q:hnpdhubeenereetednpona
more eonvenient site than that of the ancient one.
Rev. Robe)-t Turie, in 1720, gave £40 towards endowing
u school, in aid of which, the Duke of Devonshire, and
other benefactors, have, by various bequests and do-
nations, raised the ‘income to £37, 18. per annum, this
sum being epplied to the education of thirty childrén, in
& school-room recently erected by subscription.

- DORE-ABBEY, a parish m the hun of Wee-
TREE, county of Hmu-:ronn, 2 miles (B.W. by W.)
from Hereford, containing 528 mhabxtants The living
isa rcctoi'y, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Here-
ford, rated in the king's books at £8, and in the patronage
of John Hickford, Esq. The church is dedicated to the
Holy Trinity and St. Mary. An abbey of white monks,
m honour of the Blessed Virgin Mary, was founded
in the ‘of Stephen, by Robert, son of Harold, lord
ol’ E‘wyu which consisted of an abbot and eight re-
i whose revenue ut the dmolutlon was valued at

t:o n l.nd pannh in the second
county of Surrey,
(s §.W.) from
Worthing, Bog-
mts. This

name, commands an extensive view of the . ’
country, and is a place of resort for ‘summer excur-
sions from Loadon. Betchworth castle, cecup;
site afuuvuhmm fortress of that name, on ﬂk W
bank of the river Mole, is beautifully sitwated
tensive park, celebrated for the stateliness 0?»
chesnut trees, some of which are seven yards in
aud produce fruit equal to the Spanish tree.
were also ‘two other ancient fortresscs in the pmnh
called Benham and Ewtons castles, which are stated to
have been demolished by the Danes : vestiges of the
moat that surrounded ench are still apparent, and the
former has given name to a meadow m which it stood:
The vale beneath Box Hill, called Holmward or Holimn-
dale, was for ‘several ages the retreat of the ancient
Britons, in their conflicts' with the Romans, and after-
wards that of the Saxons, when the county was harassed
by the Danes, on which account it ‘has become the sub-
ject of a distich deéclaratory of the unconquerablencss
of the dale: inthereign of Charles 11 it was celebrat-
ed for red deer, which the Duke of York, ' after-
wards James II., preserved for his own sport : it was
subseqnently noted for the production of immense
quanutxes of strawbernea, which were couveyed to mar-
ket in horse-loads, but is now overgrown with furze.
The streets are spacions, and the foot-paths have been
recently paved the housés, though mostly of ancient
date, are in general well built, and of neat appearance:
the town is lighted with oil by aubsemmon,and supplied
with water brought from a spring by water-works, the
property of a private individual, who has constructed
baths adjoining them for the publie dccdmmodutxon A
book society has been formed under the patronage of the
gentry resident in the neighbourhood ; a reading society

is principally supported by the mhabnnnh of the town;;
and ‘a circulating library has heen established by a
number of subscribers, who pay an annual subscription
of £2. 2. in advance. The trade is principally in meal
ime, the latter being considered s:gaior in
ap anyprodncedeliewbem ‘poultry (of which a
ar species, having ﬂvechm, stated to have been
hither ‘by the Rowmans, is known nmdng ‘the
Harking Mls,) is sold m lq'ge quiihtléﬁ
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dwellers on the sea-shore.

sty Dor satta, which is of
similar meaning, the dwellers by the water.
The Romans included it in the division called Britan-
nia Prima, and the Saxons in the kingdom of Wessex.
Of the early history of this county there are but few
authentic memorials. On the departure of the Romans,
the Saxons, notwithstanding the vigorous opposition
they met with from King Arthur, obtained possession
of this and most of the other western counties; and
Cerdic, who landed in the year 495, completed his con-
quest of these parts in 530, by the capture of the Isle of
Wight ; and, having founded the kingdom of Wessex,
was crowned at Winchester in the following year : se-
veral memorials of his name are preserved near the
southern coast of Dorsetshire, This kingdom became at
length the most considerable of the heptarchal states. In
1002, Sweyn, King of Denmark, having landed at Exe-
ter to revenge the massacre of the Danes, in his march
from that city to Wilton, destroyed Dorchester, Clifton,
Sherborae, and Shaston (now Shaftesbury) ; this having
been the first instance in which Dorsetshire endured, to
an extent worthy of being recorded, the miseries inflicted
by that people. During the Norman times, history does
not furnish us with any material events as having
occurred in this county. There is an account indeed
of a dreadful plague which broke out in Dorsetshire
in 1348, so terrible that . in many of the villages all
the inhabitants died, the houses fell down, and were
ver . inhabited. In 1588, great preparations
to fortify the southern coast, on the ap-
Spanish Armada ; and Portland, in par-
strongly fortified and gasrisoned. During

y war® the most ce”fderable of the
king; but the people,

)

Britons, whose names
By the Saxons it was

- ’

- mot a mar
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.Tigis county was successively under the episcopa
Jurisdiction of the see of Dorchester in Oxfordshire, of
that of Winchester, and of that of Sherborne ; and when
the lagt was united to that of Sarum, it remained
of that diocese till the 31st of Henry VIIL, when it
became part of the newly constituted bishoprick of
Bristol, by patent, June 4th, 1542.  Of the six deaneries
into which that diocese is divided, five are within this
county, viz., those of Bridport, Dorchester, Pimperne,
Shaston, and Whitchurch, comprising two hundred and
fifty-eight parishes, of which one hundred and sixty-
three are rectories, sixty-two vicarages, and thirty-three
perpetual curacies. The archdeaconry of Dorset is co-
extensive with the diocese of Bristol, and comprises the
whole of this county. The bishop holds his triennial,
and the archdeacon his yearly, visitation, at Bridport,
Dorchester, Blandford, Shaftesbury, Cerne-Abbas, or
Whitchurch.  For civil purposes it is separated into
the following divisions : Blandford (North and South),
Bridport, Cerne (sub-division), Dorchester, Shaston
(East and West), Sherborne, and Sturminster.” Bland-
ford North division contains the hundreds of” Coombs-
Ditch, Pimperne, and Rushmore, and the liberty of
Dewlish : Blandford South division contains the hun-
dreds of Corfe-Castle, Beer-Regis, Hundredsbarrow,
Hasilor, Rowbarrow, and Winfrith, and the liberties of
Bindon, Owermoigne, and Stoborough. Bridport di-
vision contains the hundreds of Beaminster-Forum and
Redhone, Eggerton, Godder-Thorne, and Whitchurch-
Canonicorum, and the liberties of Broadwinsor, Framp-
ton, Lothers and Bothenhampton, and Poorstock. Cerne
sub-division contains the hundreds of Buckland-Newton,
Cerne, Totcombe and Modbury, and Whiteway, and
the liberties of Alton-Pancras, Piddletrenthide, and Syd-
ling-St. Nicholas. Dorchester division contains the hun-
dreds of Culliford-Tree, George, Piddletown, Tollerford,
and Uggscombe, and the liberties of Fordington, Isle
of Portland, Piddlehinton, Sutton-Pointz, Wayhouse,
and Wyke Regis and Etwall. Shaston East division
contains the hundreds of Badbury, Cogdean, Knowlton,
Loosebarrow, Monckton-up-Wimbourne, and Wim-

‘o Bourne-St. Giles, with parts of the hundreds of Cranborne
~and Sixpenny-Handley. Shaston West division contains

the reriaining parts of the hundreds of Cranborne and

any-Handley : and the liberties of Alcester and
am. Sherborne division contains the hundreds
rborne and Yetminster, and the liberties of Hal
Ryme-Intrinsica ; and Sturminster division
containg the hundreds of Brownshall, Redlane, and
Sturminster n-Castle, and the liberty of Stower-
Provost. Dorsetshire contains the town and county of
"= town of Poole, the borough and market towns of

lport. Dorchester, Lyme-Regis, Shaftubv, are-
ham, and the united boroughs of Weymouth and- Mel-
combe- The borough of Corfe-Castle, which is
) town, and the market towns of Beamin-
ster, Blandford-Forum, Cerne-Abbas, Sherborne, Stur-
minster-Newton, and Wimbourne - . Bridport,
Lyme-Regis, Poole, Wareham, Weymouth are
ports also. Two knights are returned to parliament
for the shire, and two. atives for each-of the
nine horoughs :

<
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put however, cultivation is
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place is a Nm where upwards of six_ thousand

ne, on an average, are supposed to be shipped
aunually, first stratum in these quarries is about
one foot of bhckwh or reddish earth ; then six feet of
st,wa m it for exportation : below tbxs is the bed of
good. stone, ten or twelve feet deep, and heneath it flint
or clay. The stratum of stone that is worked for sale
lies nearly paraliel with the upper surface of the island,
and without much earth or rubbish on it. . When the
beds are cleared, the quarry-men proceed to cross-cut
the lu-ge'ﬂns, which is done with wedges, The beds
being eut into- distinct lumps, are squared by the ham.-
mer to the largest size which they will admit, and blocks
are thus formed from half a ton to six or eight tons’
vmight Thg colour of the Portland-stone, or freestone,
a8 it is mmetames called, from the freedom with which
it may be broken into any shape, is well known, as al-
most white, and as composing the materials of the most
:glcmhg e:;c;;om in Lonﬁbn, as well as in other parts

Tl 1

. of several more. The church of Fo
gin the Saxon style :

tbem in various directions, numerots barmui dis-
pened,-wellmothumemorialsofmm
ancestors. Near Dorchester are the remains of a Roman
amphitheatre, which is computed to have held near
thirteen thousand spectators. A large circular intrench-
ment may be traced on Woodbury Hill, supposed to haye
been the Casira Statica of the Romans. On Hambledon
Hill is another encampment, also the remains of what
has been thought a labyrinth. The relics of ancient
castles are numerous in Dorsetshire, of which, the most
considerable were those of Corfe, Brownsea, and Port-
land. Numerous barrows, or tumuli, are dispersed over
the county, especially the more open part. of it. ;

Before the Reformation there were in this county
twenty-nine religious houses (including one preceptory
of the Knights Hospitallers) and eight ancient hospitale.
The monasteries, the ruins of which may yet be dis-
cerned, are those of the monastery of Benedictines at
Cranborne, a part of which now forms the parish church,
one of the oldest in the county; Cerne abbey, said to
have been founded by St. A .theﬁewwmunsof
which are interesting ; Milton abbey, whose church is
now used as a private chapel ; the monastery of Shaftes-
bury, the ruins of which are dismnble near the mansion
of Sir Thomas Arundel ; some parts of the cloister and
domestic buildings of ‘the abbey of Sherborne, mow
occupled by silk machinery; besides emsndgmble remains
rdington, is partly
those of Dorchester, Sherborne,
Rapisham,  Weymouth, and Shaftesbury,

rks ¢ mmgn!watm “t m
= :ﬂn- _ A.ylwood and Corfe :ulphs::-



gs, on April 27th, May
‘.ﬁerlsth A castle

TO V, a parish in_the hundred of Anlnmou,
BuckiNGuaMm, 55 miles (N.N.W.) from Thame,

z 133 inhabitants. The liv serpehd
~ curacy in the urchdeaconryofBuckingx‘;m dioéene
LNhA 2900 voyal Bowity. atidin the'

(mm'l‘he

f ’ﬁ. “ln endowed with £8 per annum private
Dnn and Canons of Christ Church,
Mchh dedicated to St. Tohn the
, a hamlet in the  of WiLnx-
COTE, in that part of the parish of TAmworTH which is
in the Tamworth division of the hundred of HemrING-
FORD, county of WARwiCK, 3 miles (8.) from Tamworth,
o DOTRON. mh‘bm;mchhl B
an extra- berty, in the eastern
d!vhibn of the hundred UDLEIGH, county of DEvoN,
g 13 inhabitants.
Ui H’I’ON a joint parish with Dunton, in the
lmndred of GaLLow, county of Nonrox.l, 2 miles

. (w\ 'frotn Fakenbam. The livi diocl:ﬁed
molidated!ﬁththstof h
._ ,lchlpelryinthepmshofm

’,, on is returned.
LevLanp, county of Lucunn
) Om.we population i‘
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DOVERDALE, a parish

habitants.
archdeaconry
klngubooksatﬁs 8. 6%, mdowedﬂtliﬁioo priwte
of benefaction, and £200 royal bounty. The Rev, George
'l‘hgmuwupstroninlm The church is dedica
to St. Mary. !
DOVERIDGE, a parish in the hundred of APPLE-
TREE, county of Dersy, 13 mile N.) from Ut
toxeter, containing 843 inhabitants, living is a
vi , in the archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of
Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the King's books
£12.2. 1. The Duke of Devonshire was patron in 17!
?le church, dedjt;ud to StkC\;thbert has consider-
able portions in early sty! oEngM irchitecture,
Isaac Dance, in 1786, bequeathed 40s. a year t ds
the of a school, which unnnﬂ:y il'
k, by whone furthe
'
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ueror, who put
and destroyed the town by fire.
Domesday-book, Dovor equipped twenty
i the king's service, in consideration
of being exempt from all tolls and taxes, and of various
v . Some authors have supposed that the
h of the Knights Templars, in this place, was the
scene ofKi:’g John's hmm_'linﬁng’lwnsm'l'lmlcrﬁe bou:fi ll:l 'c:‘o}wn
to ‘the pope's w ] imself as
a feadtwrym vmm tl::g:te:'of Rome; but it is more
probable that this ceremony took place at St. John's, in
the ndpln!%puﬁsh of Swingfield, where there was a
preceptory of Knights Templars, founded previously to
‘1190. 1In 1216, Lewis the Dauphin having landed at
Stonar, near Sandwich, and captured several
places, besieged Dovor castle, but was unable to take it ;
and in the of Ed L a great part of the town,
with some ous houses, was burnt by the French,
‘who were nevertheless soon driven back to their ships,
Ace to the town records, Dovor, in the reign of
dward 11, was divided into d:wenty-oae wards, uchhof
ch was compelled to provide, at its own charge, a ship
;,.ﬁ'ﬁ return the town had the
T packegboat, to convey

v
b,

) L 11eel

f . seated in a beautiful valley, between stupendous

Dov
8 ship the impregnable, bearing the flag of hi
%ﬂl the Duke of Clarence, as Mﬁ:
4 ded here on a visit to the Prince :

* The town, which is built in a semicircalar

chalk-stone, from the summits of which the view
sea in Yrout: with the opposite coast of France, i

excellent, and most of them modern ; it has one princi-
pal street, more than a mile long, and several inferior
ones, which are well paved, and lighted with gas, under
an act passed in the 3rd of George IV. A theatre
and assembly-rooms were erected in 1790, On the
parade are warm, cold, and shower baths of salt water,
with every accommodation for sea-bathing ;. also good
libraries and reading-rooms. The many respectable
families which frequent the town during the summer,
have rendered it a watering-place of great celebrity.
The environs are delightfully pimnmue, and there are
several fine views in the neighbourhood.

The castle is of very ancient foundation, being attri-
buted by the vulgar to Julius Ceesar, but by respectable
antiquaries to Claudius, It is situated on a lofty emi-
nence, about half a mile northward from the town, is
approached by a bold ascent, occupies a site of thirty
acres of land, and consists at the present time of two
courts, defended by wide ditches, and communicating
with the towers within, by means of subterraneous pas-
sages. The lower court, excepting on the side next the
sea, is surrounded by an irregular wall, called the curtain,
and flanked at unequal distances by numerous towers
of different shapes and ages. During the lapse of years
they have all undergone very considerable alterations.
That which Godwin erected, in the time of Canute, has
long been removed, nor was its site known for ages, enti

discovered in making a new road ; Chilham or

- Caldescot. tower is the third from the edge of the cliff,

and at the back of it was a

) the reinforcement
that enabled Hubert de Burgh successfully to with-
md the Dauphin, in the reign of John. This tower
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are supposed to . comst iil"the reign of of ordnance, tothewpofihlﬂl, which is ¢
John, by Hubert de _' n constable of the castle, commanded by g

bravely defmdedit. n , rain sions
of the French. val,’or'St.;’ 3ohn wer is
the next in order nﬁerAdnm Fitzwilhm
who a/ccompame& thm r to England and re-
ceived from that r \ the scarf from off his own
armatthab;tt.le ' Hastings, as a reward for his dis-
tinguished brave “Avianches, or Maunsel’s tower , but as se
stands in an ¢ formed by the curtain wall, and ‘ ﬂaeﬁﬁtmthori-

is one obl'eqt relics of the Norman towers;
it was Qf oy »a&er two constables, or governors,
the latter of whom was lord warden in the reign of
.Henty,lli.» the first floor was a kind of vault, arched
with stone, and open in front, and in the wall, which Is
wvery thick, is a_gallery, or passage, ascended by stone
_steps, where archers could range one above another, and,
through small apertures, command the ditch on cither
side, as also the approaches to it from the curtain.
Through the gallery is an ascent to a platform over the
top of the vault, partly surrounded by a wall, and having
a spiral stone staircase, which leads to the top of the
tower. Near the entrance denominated the Palace Gate
is a stately fabric, named, in the reign of Edward IV,,
Suffolk tower, from de la Pole, Duke of Suffolk; adjoin-
ing which is the old arsenal tower, and farther on were
formerly the king's kitchen and other offices.  All this
side of the castle presents a modern appearance, the
back part having been cased over, and the front being
hid by barracks erected in 1745. The keep, or palace
tower, built after a design by Gundulph, stands near
the centre of this court : the entrance, originally on
‘the east, is now on the south side; it opened by a grand
portal, now walled up, into the state apartments, w&e
neral lofty and spacious, which, as was usual in es
in earlier days, were on the t’lnrd story. The staircase
.has two vestibules, and was at different heights
by three strong gates. Ascending by the vestibule on
the right hand, is & room a itly designed for the
warden of the first gate, opposite is another, pro

s, richly

en\beﬂuhedthh zigzag and other work.
ve this is a

Above gﬂ&&m”ly ornamented, and under

bpblyﬂle chapel, adorned on every side with ﬁesutiful ‘the rep et o

ties have of llte, excrcised n within its
Jimits, independently of the lo arden’:"’-'h is still
.extra-parochial. During the late war with France, the
‘western heights of this town were strongly fortified up-
‘on the modern system : the works are o admirably ar-
ranged, and the position so advantageous, that, whilst a
small garrison would suffice for its defence, a large army
can be disposed of within the walls, There are three
entrances to the heights, one by Archcliff fort, another
by the New Military road, and the third from the head
of the town, by a staircase of very peculiar construction,
called the Grand Military Shaft. The immediate entrance
to the harbour is protected by Archeliff fort, at the ex-
tremity of the pier, and Amhurst battery at the north pier
head. A new military road has been constructed to the
fortifications of the western heights, the lines which con-
nect these extending from the eastern redoubt to the
sally-port west of Archcliff fort. Thus the whole line of
defence round the town is complete, from the castle to
Shakspeare’s cliff, so called from the sublime but some-
what exaggerated description given by the great dra-
matist, in his y of King Lear. There is a military
hospital of recent erection at the west side of the town.

Dieu, was converted into a vic
As a port, Dovor darxve: its

During the war this port was famous for privateen -

from

‘the chapel and the first vestibule is the dungeon, in
Which' 5 vt tes prso e ek

d the service with many cutters ome trans-
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+ The first' charter of incorporation was granted by
Edward I ; another was offered by Charles II., but not
accepted.  The old charter was probably surrendered to
Charles II., and, in 1684, a new one was granted, ac-
cording to the provisions of which the town is now
governed, though the charter is lost, The corporation
consists of a mayor, twelve jurats, thirty-six common
council-men, with a recorder, town clerk, and other
officers. The mayor, who is coroner for Dovor and its
liberties, is chosen on ‘the 8th of September. The
borough was formerly divided into twenty-one wards,
but now comprises only thirteen. - It returns two mem-
bers to parliament : the right of election is vested in
the freemen by birth, marriage, apprenticeship, purchase,
» and gift, the: number of whom, resident and non-resi-
dent, is upwards of two thousand three hundred : the
mayor is the returning officer. A court of record of
unlimited extent was d by charter of confir-
mation ‘in the 20th of Charles II., to Dovor, as well as
to the rest of the cinque-ports : the judges of this court
are the mayor and jurats; the town clerk issues the
. Sessions for the ibexties, which
- the Virgin,
| and

in the 24th of
Tyt
Charlton, Buck

y
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belonged to the castle, and to this

day the courts of Ch-nmz ery and Admiralty for all th
cinque-ports and their members are held in it. According
to uwdition,f.h‘wm. the first Christian British king, built
a_church within the castle, and endowed it with the du-
ties of the port ; of this edifice, the chapel is dempolished,
but the steeple, in which several Roman bricks are visi-
ble, and the principal parts of the external walls, forming
the body of the church, are yet standing ; it was dedi-
cated to St. Mary, and subsequently called “the Lady
of Pity's chapel ;" there is still a chapel in the castle
for the garrison. There are places of worship for
General and Particular Baptists, the Society of Friends,
Independents, W Methodiste, Unitarians, and
Roman Catholics. charity school for the main-
tenance and education of forty-five hoys and thirty-four
girls was founded in 1789, and is supported by voluntary
contributions, in addition to an endowment of £900
five per cent, stock, producing together on an average
about £220 per annum: a new building was erected
for it in 1820, sufficiently spacious to accommodate two
hundred boys and two hundred girls, together with a
house for the master and mistress. A school of indus-
try for girls was established in 1819; and there are like-
wise an infant school, a dispensary, and a savings-bank.
Apriory of secular canons was founded herein the seventh
century, which in 1140 was changed into a Benedictine
priory, the revenue of which, at the dissolution, was
£232. 1. 53. The remains of a preceptory of the Knights
Templars at Swingfield, near Dovor, and of their succes-
sors, the Knights of St. John, are¢ now a farm-house ; the
eastern or oldest part was the chapel, the east wall of
which has three windows of early English architecture,
and three Norman ones above them: various other
fragments of the original edifice are still apparent, and
the remains of foundations to a considerable extent may
yet be traced in different parts of the farm-yard. Dr.
White Kennet, Bishop of Peterbo , who died in
1728 ; and Earl Hardwicke, Lord High Chancellor of
England, who died in 1764, were natives of this town.
The ciNQuE-PoRTS, or five havens, viz., Hastings,
Sandwich, Dovor, Romney, and Hythe, so named from

; ) £400 royal
bounty ;. the church bel oy b

not amounting to  their supremacy over the other ports opposite the coast
ju-#of France, still retain that desi

tion, although two
) ports, viz., Rye and Winchelsea, have been added.

7 are not mentioned collectively in Domesday-book,

but Dovor, Sandwich, and Romney, only as privileged
5, whence it has been infered, hat aty:ltm} period

e was no community in these ports; yet John, in
arter to the cinque-ports, expressly refers ta char-
possession of the barons, granted to them by
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f Hythe, West Hythe: Tenterden is a member of Rye,
and Winchelsea has no member. Most of the coast
from - the north side of uw Thanet to Hastings
is within the jurisdiction of the cinque-ports, Anciently
they were all safe and commodions harbours, but great
alterations have taken place in some of them: the
harbours. of Hastings, Romney, and Hythe, are en-
tirely destroyed, and the rivers Rother and Stour are
becoming gradually more difficult of navigation. Dovor
lmbum iv/thapandime of a large sum, is

of admitting ships of moderate bur-

dul. and. ly survive all the other ports. By
an Mmmn the court of admiralty held near
the sea-side at Dovor, in June 1682, it was found that
the jurisdiction of the admiralty of the cinque-ports ex-
tended from Shore-beacon, in Essex, to Red cliff, near Sea-
ford, in Sussex. The offices of lord warden of the cinque-
ports-and constable of Dovor castle are now invariably
united, . The lord warden has a right of warren over
a very extensive tract, called the Warren, and appoints
warreuers to the . The freemen of the
emquo-vporu are styled “Barons,” and in former times
enjoyed great dignity, being ranked amongst the
mﬁlltyof the hngdom Before the formation of two
houses of parliament, the members were called over in
the following order, viz,, on the first day the lower
class, as burgesses and citizens; on the second, the
knights ; mdonthzthnd,thebtromofthecmque-
ports and the peers ; whence it may be concluded that
the barons ranked with the peers, and above the knights,
and that these two superior orders, previously to the in-
vestiture of knights and citizens with legislative autho-
ritmeompuodthcutwulcouncﬁ. The barons of
~have the honour of beu'ing the

mophvom the king and queen at the coronation,
wh-eaouhut noblemen (except oermn of theroyd
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This was: veonﬂrmed by
James IL, and under it the ports are mow governed.
The arms of the cinque-ports collectively are the sameas
those of Dovor, and each of the other ports separately.
DOWDESWELL, a parish in the hundred - of
Braprey, county of Gwvc:nnl, 44 miles (8.E.byE.)
Cheltenham

from , containing 181 inhabitants. The liv-
ing h:mtsory rated in the king's hooks at £13. 6. 8.,
in the Jnriadmﬁonofthe Rector of Withington,
wbodoeanothawemexercwemy authority, Mmknﬁi
was patroness in 1826. The church, dedicated to St.
chael, is a cruciform structure, built in 1577, with a
tower and spire rising from the intersection. There
are remains of several ancient fortifications, and some
leaden coffins have been found within the parish, Near
Andover's Ford a battle was fought between Chrlu lc
and the parliamentary forces.

DOWLAND, a parish in the lmndrod of Non:.

Tawron with Wmmv, county of Dzm, 5 miles

pnvateheuﬁcm and&ioo-royd Uolmty.

Northcote, Bart. was patron in 4797,
DOWLES, lplxhhhthehndudd’

county of sAw:, 13 mﬁh (N.



 £8.14.9., and in the J

pow 69’ pow
of Or date, gave ﬂmubew«mhmwquﬁwf
; a school, the income from which is £26 a year :

% mmm of hm@mﬂ&
. to
sion has been

uaniip»fot MMw&q.,h
IM;WJIN,G&MGI’M&M to
w schodlmistress for teaching eight children.
+ ' DOWN (EAST), a parish in the hundred of Bravn-
TON, county of DEvon, 6§ miles (N.N.E.) from Barn-
staple, containing 422 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of e, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £18. 3. 9. The
Rev. J. P. Coffin was patron in 1800.  The church is
dedicated to St. John the Baptist. At a place called
Nortcote are several stones, proboblymmemumiveol
some British heroes slain in battle.

. DOWN (ST. MARY), a parish in the hnndred of
Nom Tawron with WiNnknev, eounty of Drvonw,
24 miles (N.E.) from Bow, containing 400 inhabitants.
The living is a ,in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Exeter, rated hthehnglbooksatl.lﬂ 18.4. Miss
Wiyvill was patroness in 1812. The church has a Nor-
man door-way, and contains some curiously carved oak
seats, and ancient tiles in the same style. The river Yeo
ww&em

~DOWN (WEST), a"parish in the hundred of
Bumw county of Devow, 4 miles (8.) from

- Iifracombe, containing 562 inhabitants. The living is a

discharged vicarage, in the archdeacoury of'

&iﬁdhmesf%rﬂedintbekmg‘lbooha&
‘of the Bishop of Exeter.
WM ‘dedicated to the Holy'l‘rlmty,conums a

+ joining the school-room are

' datﬂsm, £21 is appropriated to the instruction of

fifteen children, and the rest is retained for repairs : ad-
apartments for the master.

DOWNHAM, a township in the parish of Wymonp-

HAM, hundred of Forkuog, county of Norvorx, 14 mile

(N.E. by N.) from Wymondham, i
by N.) ym containing 935 inha

DOWNHAM-‘MARKET a market town ud parish
in the hundred of (‘ucxcmz, county of NorroLk, 424
miles (W.) from Norwich, and 85 (N. by E.) from Lon-
dm,conhmingminhabmm: This place, which, from'
its situation near a navigable river, is called in ancient
records Downham Port, derives its name from the Saxon
Dune, a hill, and Ham, a residence. In the reign of
Edgar, the town was granted to the abbey of Ramsey,
in Huntingdonshire, and the abbot, in “the of
Edward the Confessor, obtained for it the grant of a
weekly market, and in that of John, the privilege of an
annual fair, Near the foot of the bridge was an ancient
hermitage, and adjoining ‘the church was ‘anciently
a Benedictine priory, a cell to the abbey of Ramsey,
to the abbots of which Henry I1L. granted very extensive
privileges, among which was the powerto try, condemn,
and execute felons at their gallows of Downham. The
town is pleasantly situated on the declivity of an emi-
nence, about a mile to the eastward of the river Ouse,
commanding an extensive view to the west of the fens,
with which it is connected by an ancient wooden
bridge. It consists of thmﬁreetn,wellpoudby’ub’-‘
scription, and is amply supplied with water from
Here is an extensive foundry for usﬁngchuvhbelh
and within a mile of the town is a considerable manu-
factory for mustard, and for the preparation of lmseed
oil, the machinery of which is propelled by steam. Down-
ham has for ages been celebrated for its butter, of which
immense quantities were sent by the navigable river Ouse
to Cambridge, and being afterwards forwarded from that
town by land carriage to London, it 7 obtained
the name of Cambridge butter. The market, which is
supplied with wild fowl and fish from the fens, is
m&hn-dny the fairs are, March 3rd (one of the largest

: for horses in the kingdom), May 8th for cattle, and No-

vember 13th for toys ; statute fairs are also held in the
week , and in the week following, old Michael-
g 'l?heemmty hold here a petty ses-

* mas-day
ﬂmmmvmwy,-a.mmum

by the lord of the manor, intho
~-I’bhhgion&-chupqu archdea-
conry of Norfolk, nnddualequuwhh.mhﬁn
lhoohstlﬁ.mi Miss Franks was p: .

d 1811. The church, dedicated to St. Edmund, is a venera-
84, ble structure in thtwdmt!tﬁedw.um,‘
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charity school, in which sixty-five boye ‘are taught read-
ing, writing, and arithmetic, on the Lancasterian

was founded in 1808, by&e"lae ‘Mr.
and is supported by his widow; and a National school
for seventy girls is supported by subscription

DOWNHAM-SANTON, & parish in the hundred of
LACK¥ORD, county of SurroLk, 23 miles (E.N.E.) from
Brandon-Ferry, ‘containing 79 inhabitants. = The living
is a curacy, in’ the archdeaconry of Sudbury,
and diocese ‘of Norwich, endowed with £200 private
benefaction; and £1200 royal bounty. The Earl of Ca-
do%n mﬂm‘h 1815, The church is dedicated to

ary. 'The navigable river Ouse flows on the northern
side of this parish, which suffered greatly in the seven-
teenth ceritury by the sands that overspread the neigh-
bourhood.

" 'DOWNHEAD, a hamlet in the parish of Wesr
Camer, hundred of SomerTON, county of SoMERSET,
3% miles (N.E. by E.) from Ilchester. The population
is returned with the parish. Here was formerly a cha-
pel, but it has been demolished.

DOWNHEAD, a chapelry in the parish of Dovrrine,
hundred of WartesToNE, county of SomMERsET, 53 miles
(B.N.E.) from Shepton-Mallet, containing 208 inhabi-
tants. - The living is a perpetual , annexed to the
vicarage of Dauln% , in the archdeaconry of Wells, and
dmcese of Bath and Wells. The chapel is dedicated to
All Saints.

DOWNHOLME, a parish in the western division of
the wapentake of Hane, North riding of the county of
Yorxk, comprising the townships of Downholme, Eller-
ton-Abbey, Stainton, and Walburn, and containing 251
inhabitants, of which number, 118 are in the township
of Downhohne, 4% miles (8. W. by W.) from Richmond.
The living is a , in the archdeaconry of Rich-
mond, and diocese of ( henter, rated in the king's books
at £5. 15. 10., endowed with £600 private benefaction,
and £600 my‘l bounty.  John Hutton, Esq. was
tron in 1808. The church is dedicated to St. Michnel
In a fertile part of this parish, near the river Swale,
are situated the ruins of Ellerton nunnery, couusting

of the shell of the chapel. Tradition refers its

foundation to a person of the name of Wymer, or Wy-

mor, in the reign of Henry IL, for nuns of the Cister-

cian order : ntmaiuohﬂon ltamualrevmuew

uﬁmnted at £8,

" DOWN ‘a tything in‘thepamhof Mmu-

Wd‘cnmn,wnmy‘ So-
442 inhabitants.
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‘Clarke,
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name to the hundred in which it um«mmﬁ
a castle, the intrenchments of which may still be traced
at the south-east ‘of the town ; and in the
centre of them is a WWMM“
the keep is supposed to have been erected.  King John
is said to have had apdmutﬁsphmvﬂh“
down part of an old building, called the Court House; or
King John's Stables, 'martpi fom;;i m memm
imagined to be representatives ‘of
e!:;‘;m-t Downton is a horough by prescription : it first
sent members to parliament in the 23rd of Edward I,
and continued to exercise that privilege till the 38th of
Edward I1., after which there was only one return
(in the 1st of Henry V.) until the 20th of Henry VI,
since which they have been regularly continued. The
right of election is vested in persons having a freehold
interest in burgage tenements holden by a certain rent,
fealty and suit of court to the Bishop of Winchester,
who is lord of the borough, and paying reliefs on de-
scent and fines on alienation. The number of voters
is about twenty : the twenty established burgage tene-
ments, which are all numbered, were sometimes divided
at contested elections, so as to make the number of vo-
ters amount to one hundred or more; but after repeated
contests, the late Lord Radnor obtained, by purchase,
the entire patronagé of the borough ; and the deputy
steward of the lessee of the hundred, who is chosen at
the court leet, and commonly styled mayor, is the re-
turning officer. On the Avon are several paper and grist-
mills ; and there is a large tan-yard : malting is carried
on to some extent, and several persons are engaged in a
branch of the silk manufacture, and in making straw-
plat. A market was formerly held on Friday, which
has been discontinued. There is a fair on April 28d,
for cattle, and another on October 2nd, for lheq: ﬂid
horses. :
" The living is a vicarage, in the nehdueonryud
diocese of ‘Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £20,
and in the of the Warden ‘and Fellows of
‘Winchester The church, dedicated to St. Law-
rence, is a spacious edifice, eomuhgmfs nave, aisles, .
transept, and chancel, with a central tower, which in
1791 was rﬂudﬂw&et higher, at the expense of the
late Earl of Radnor,who uhohagelyconmwww
eoutdhm,mt repairs in the bod dxﬁ: ,
church ; Wmﬂwa;-w ‘organ ! !
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Mmmm between £40 and £50

poor persons of Downton,
.- Here is"an ancient cross,

e e

mhMmmtbplmhm‘

mqmvhen a poll is demanded : in 1797, it was re-

M bvﬂn mn.un ukenotmmdeﬁm‘ dis-
services, on Admiral Lord Nelson.

DOWSBY; a parish in the wapentake of AVELAND,

of KesreveN, county of LiNcoLy, 6 miles (N.byE.)
Bourne, containing 201 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's booksat £11.19. 2. The Rev. T. Forster was
patron in 1807. The church is dedicated to St. Andrew.
- DOXFORD, a township in the parish of ELLinuam,
southern division of Bamsroveu ward, county of Nor-
THUMBERLAND, 74 miles (N, ) from Alnwick, containing
54 inhabitants. .

DOYNTON, a pamh in t.he upper division of the
hundred of LanerLey and SwiNesEAD, though locally
in the hundred of Pucklechurch, county of GLouCESTER,
7 miles (8.byw.) from Chipping-Sodbury, containing
415 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's
books at £€ 14. 11. 3., and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicated to the Holy Trinity ; the chancel
was rebuilt about 1768." On the summit of some lofty
rocks, between which runs the river Boyd, are in-
trenchments, to be Roman. Veins of lead-
ore are found here, but they are not sufficiently produc-
tive to pay the expense of working, The Rev, William
. Langton, about 1666, gave certain money in trust for

the of lands, now producing £30. 6. 2. a year ;
this bequest has been consolidated with two smaller le-
gacies amounting to £6 per ann ing together
£386.6. 2., theome. £14 is - a schoolmis-
; and - is laid out

wwﬂ;um«we paruh of Crunca-
‘-W Repron and GrEsLEY, county
‘W.)"ffom Burton upon Trent,
It is in th&hvw of Tnz}

. ~7> m
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You. ~comprising the townships of Camblesforth,
Long Drax, and Newland, and containing 1083
tants, nfwluchnumber 370 are in the township
of 4 s(NNE)fmmsm The living is
a dis ed mange in the archdeaconry and diocese
of York, rated in the king's books at £4, endowedthh
£600 myal bounty, and £1600 parliamentary grant,
:ndmthepatromgeofthe(}rowu The church is dedi-
mtedtoSt Peter. 'The free grammar school was erected
in 1669, by Charles Reed, Esq., and endowed by him
with £2000, for teaching all the poor childrensof the
parish, and for occasionally putting out apprentices;;
he farther directed, should any be found capable, that
they were to be sent to one of the Universities. He also
erected six almshouses, to be kept in repair from the same
fund, for three aged persons of each sex, This benefactor,
when an infant, was discovered lying among some reeds,
and was, from that circumstance, named Reed ; having
been  brought up by the parish, he was put to the sea
service at the age of sixteen, and after fifty years' absence
returned opulent, and testified his gratitude to his pre-
servers by the above benevolent acts. ¢

DRAX (LONG), a township in the parish of Drax,
lower division of the wapentake of BArksTONE-AsH,
West riding of the county of York, 4§ miles (N.E.
by N.) from Snaith, containing 187 inhabitants. A
priory of Black canons was founded in the time of
Henry 1., by William Paynell, to the honour of St.
Nicholas, the annual revenue of which, at the. dissolu-
tion, was valued at £121. 18. 3.

DRAYCOT-CERNE, a parish in the hundred of
Marmessury, county of Wirrs, 4 miles (N. by E.)
from Chippenham, containing 169 inhabitants.  The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and
-diocese of Salishury, rated in the king's beoks at
£6. 7. 11, and in the patronage of the Hon. W, T, L. P.
Wellesley. The church is dedicated to St. Peter. . Dr.
Buckeridge, successively Bishop of Rochester and Ely,
was born here, about 1562 ; he died in 1631.

DRAYCOT-FOLIATT, a parish in the hundred
of KiNGsBRIDGE, county of Winrs, 43 miles (8.8.E.)
from Swindon, containing 24 inhabitants. The living is
.a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and diocese
of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £6. 6. 8.
A. Godderd, Esq. was patron in 1817. The church
has long since been demolished.

DRAYCOT-FOLIATT, a chapelry in ﬂn pmsh
.of Wircor, hundred of SwanBorovGH, county of
Wirrs, 2% miles (N.) fmml’ewny Thepop\lhtnn
_is returned with the parish.

DRAYCOTT, a joint. hheﬂ;ymdehpdrymhmhe
in the parish of SawLey, hundred of MorLEsTON and
Larcaurcs; county of DErsY, 63 miles (E.S. E.) from

L, con with Wllne, 1102 inbabitants,

" DRAYCOTT, a tything in deJﬁumx
' hundred of s-ron, eonnty of Soumni containing 21
w RO o0 S 8 e T

and pm'ﬂy in that of mwm 'W
Onnnn. D i
- dred of WINTERSTOKE, Mymmpa nik-
omr.byw. MWM« vin iy
RAYCOTT, a township in the
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£ e d Lgh’ s 3 iy ’ by
(N.N.W.) from !&m”inz.he Marsh, contm?

miles
ing 107 inhabitants,
Ly DRAYCOTT in the mﬁs a parish in the south-

ern dmsinn of t‘n
Srarrorp, 2§ miles
579 inhabits

of Té'mowsx.ow, county of
 (8.w.) from Cheadle, containing
. 'The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of ‘and diocese of Lichfield and Co-
ventry, rated in ‘the king's books at £9. 6. 6., and in the
p ‘of the Dowager Lady Stourton. The church,
‘to St. Peter, contains some fine old monuments
d‘ the ﬁhmly in the church-yard is a pyra-
midal iﬁﬂ!e gimilar to those with which the Danes
marked the depository of their deceased heroes. There
fht*phce’of worship for Roman Catholics. The parish,
: which runs the river Blythe, is in the honour of
'i’lxtb\ﬂ‘y ‘duchy of Lancaster, and within the jurisdiction
of a court of pleas held at Tutbury every third Tuesday,
for the recovery of debts under 40s. Near the vi
is the hamlet of Totmonslow, which gives name to
hundred; it contains but a few houses, though it is sup-
posed to have been maentlynpluce of some importance.
" 'DRAYTON, a parish in the hundred of Ock,
county of Brrks, 24 miles (S.w. by 8.) from Ahmg—
don, containing 498 inhabitants. The living is a per-
petual curacy annexed to the vicarage cf St. Helen's,
Abingdon, in the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese
of Salisbury.  The chapel is dedicated to St. Peter.
The Wilts and Berks canal passes through this chapelry.
In 1780, a dreadful fire which raged in the village
1 | more than thirty houses.

DRAYTON, a township in the parish of Bring-
HURST, hmdred of GarTrEE, county of LeicEsTEr,
24 miles (W.) from Rockingham, containing 104 inha-
bitants. Here was formerly a chapel, which was dedi-
cated to St.James, now desecrated. There is a small
endowed free school. Fox, founder of the sect
:;I&dtheﬁocﬂyof!\-hnds was born utthirpheein

“DRAYTON, ‘a parish in the hundred of Taveruam,
-wuhtroflouoﬂx ‘4L miles (N.W.) from Nom&,

283 inhabitants. The living is a
mtm-ymm ‘of Hellesden, in the ucbﬁélcom‘y
and diocese ﬁ*NoMeh,mﬁed in the s books at
£6, 2.9., and in the - of the B owa-
wich. The church is 'd to St.

- DRAYTON, a' hmbth“ﬂw
mwm;wymmmu,a of a
pulation is returned. A Roman pavemen M
near this place in 1786. ©
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“the hundred of Broxmam, isa
D e

racy, within the
MCheﬂter > MM
£400 royal bouty, a

and Canons of
dedicated to St. Leonard. PR
DRAYTON, apamhm thehmhddmurﬂ
BuLsToNE, county of SOMERSET, 2 miles (&W,) from
Mddlmq.

Lan containing, with the tything
469 inhabitants. The living is a Kiaptud

the archdeaconry of Taunton, and of Bt.thm:l
Wells, endowed with £600 private benefaction, and
£600 royal bounty. R.T. Esq, was pttmn
in 1816. The church, dedicated to St. Catherine, is an
ancient structure, with an embattled tower at the west
end, and a fine south porch of Norman architecture.

DRAYTON, a township in that part of the parish
of PenkripGr which is in the eastern division of the
hundred of CurrLesTONE, county of SrTArromrp, 1%
mile (N. by E.) from Penkridge. The population is re-
turned with the township of Penkridge.

DRAYTON, a township in the parish of OLp STRAT-
FORD, Stntford division of the hundred of BARLicAEWAY,
county of WAnwxcx, 2} miles (W.) from Stratford upon
Avon pulation is returned with the parish..

N (DRY), a parish in the hundred of
ans'rnn-row, county of CAMBRIDGE, 5 miles (W.N.W.)
from Cambridge, containing 420 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, inthe archdeaconry and diocese of Ely,
rated in the king's books at £21. 1. 3., and in the
patronage of the Dean of Christ Church, Oxford, The
church is dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul. There is
a school supported by donations from the Rev.
Hulop, in 1729, nnd Elizabeth Hetherington, in LWL

about £7. 17. 6. per annum, :
m%'I‘ON (EAST), a parnsh in the Sauthchy
dlvision of the wapentake of BasseTrAw, countyof Nor-
TINGHAM, 4 miles (N.E.) from Tuxford, con M
inhabitants. The livingis a vicarage, nted in n
books at £9. 8. 4., and in the pe
and pa . of the Dean and Chapter of
church is dedicated to St. Peter. There m ha
«ease at Askham and Stokeham, mtlﬁlplith.."" i
a free school endowed with £25 per amnum,
-~ DRAYTON (FEN), a parish in the hundred of Pax
worTH, county of Camsrins, 3§ miles (S.E. by 8,)
from St. !m, mnhinmg 325 inhabitants. The
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i ning 117 i :
ter, ‘1088“&:%&‘ house to be Mﬂt and be-
an annual rent-charge of £25 towards the main-
s T
e, aughton, amston,
Milton, and Bevercotes. .
“DRAYTON-BASSETT, a parish in the southern di-
vision of the hundred of OrrLow, county of STAFFORD,
ﬁ;m'ﬂeh (s.8.w.) frbm meorth containing 468 in-
: itants. The living is 4 rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Stafford, and dmoese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in the | s books at £7. 8. 4., anﬂmthe!;a
of ‘the Crown. The church is Qedicated to 'St. Peter,
mﬂmum ‘and Tazeley canal passes through the
DKAYTUN—BEAUCHAMP a parish in the hundred
of CorresLor, county of BuckiNgmaM, 2 miles (W.
by N.) from' Tring, containing 272 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the _archdeaconry of Buckingham,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the King's books at
’H!éub 7. Lady R. Manners was patroness in 1808,
church is dedicb.ted to St. Mary. A school has been
shed on the British system.
YTGN in mLEs or MARKET-DRAYTON,
bf -the market towh of Drayton
sion of the hundred of Brap-

. “ﬁmlm LRI x* ;‘I.‘ :

and modeu&lywell paved, and the houses
neat a ce. There are man T, paper,
and for hair-cloth for chair-bottoms, and some lmameu
is done in malting ; but the trade, which was formerly
very considerable, has declined, in  consequence of the
construction of the Grand Trunk canal. The market,
formerly of greater repute than at , is on Wed-
nesday. Fairs, for horned cattle, sbeap

and hempen and woollen cloth, are held on. /the )

nesday before Palm-Sunday, Wednesday before Jm;w
249nd, September 19th, and October 24th. The petty

sessions for the Drayton division of the hun@d are
held here. o y
SalThe living is a vi in the 1 of
op (except that portion of the parish lying in the
county of Stafford, which is within the peculiar jurisdic-
tion of the courts leet and baron of the manor of Tyrley),
and diocese of Llchﬁelddeoveutry,ntad in the king's
books at £12.10. 74., and in the patronage of Richard
Corbet, Esq. The church, dedicated. to St. Mary, was
bmlt vnth the exception probably of: the steeple, in the
reign of Stephen ; it consists of a nave, aisles, a ¢hancel,
and a square tower supported by buttresses and adorn-
ed with battlements and pinnacles : the uhulcd the
building, except the tower, was thoroughly r in
1787; and it has lately received an tion of
one hundred and fifty sittings, one hundnd ‘of ‘which
are free, the Incorporated Society for the
ment of churches and chapels having granted &£

towards defraying the expense. Here are places of
worship for tists, Independents, and Wesleyan
Meth A free grammar school was founded in

1554, and' endowed with a rent-charge of £22 per
annum by Sir Rowland Hill, and £10 per annum

3 byLady Lake, for & master. and .an usher, whose
 offices were consolida

ted by a decree of the court of
Chancery in 1816, and the master's salary fixed at £25

1 per_annum; the school is open to all the boys of the

the usual number of scholars being about sixty.

ﬁlﬁ(),ﬂmkev Richard Price left property  pros

nciently ~ ducing £8, 14, pxsiobm, “for teaching children, -and
T e

ohn Bill bequeathed: £240, for
cing ten boys. . There are also
ions, for apprenticing poor chil-
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ollect pe 4'1'.. P“_
oﬁu\g ving to a scarcity in this article of fuel, coal ol
‘owing @ 8 e ‘coal was then
‘adopted, and has since been continued. OFf the brine
obtained, one-fourth part is salt, whilst in- that of North-
wich, in Cheshire, the proportion of salt is only one-
sixth, The want of conveyance by water for a long time
~operated as an impediment to the extension of the trade,
but in 1655 a project was formed for making the Sal-
warp navigable, though not then undertaken. However,
soon after the Restoration, the design was renewed, and
operations commenced : but, when five out of the six
~ locks which were considered necessary for the purpose
were completed, the attempt was abandoned, from a
conviction of its inefficacy. An act of parliament was
then obtained, in 1767, for cutting a canal from
this town to the Severn : it was consequently begun in
l13768(,11&11&1 (ilomphct%d gd 1771, under the direction of

rindley, the- celebra eer, at an of
£25,000. The canal is nae:iggi:ble for'vusd?p;fns:hty

o i 14T
o

containing 2176 inhabitants,
» Saie This place was anciently de- tons' burden, and the junction takes place at Hawford.
Lot Beal anid -Avms: -mominated Wich, or Wiche, A building, called the Exchequer-house, where the pay-
from the wiches, or salt springs, with which the neigh- . ments from the persons who held licenses to make salt,
‘bourhood abounds ; and the prefix Droit, right or legal, and the other profits derived by ‘the corporation from
is supposed to refer to some exclusive privilege for the the brine pits, were made weekly, was erected about the
manufacture/of salt, obtained by the inhabitants. Droit- year 1581, but it was taken down about the year 1826,
-wich appears to have been a town of the ancient Bri- and new court-rooms have been built near the spot
“tons, called by Richard of Cirencester Saline, from its ~on which it stood. At the same time an old market-
saline springs ; having been situated on a British road, house was taken down, and a new one formed under the
- called the Saltway., There is no evidence of its having court-rooms;. also two good prisons. The malting
‘ever been occupied by thé Romans ; but under the Saxon - trade is carried on to a limited extent. = The market is
; . it rose to importance, and seems to have on Friday; and fairs are held on the Thursday before
‘given name to their province of Wiccia, the 20th of June, and the Wednesday hefore St. Thomas’
tershire c¢onstituted the principal part. "D - day ; during which a court of pie-powder is held.
-+ The town was originally incorporated by a charter
. from John, conferring on the inhabitants various pri-
vileges, which have been confirmed and increased by
-succeeding monarchs, By the charter of the 22nd of
James I., which refers to prior charters, the body corpo-
‘rate consists, of two bailiffs, a recorder, two justices, a
; town clerk, burgesses, &c. The bailiffs, the recorder, and
now the bailiffs for the preceding year, are justices of the
e- peace : the bailiffs are also clerks of the market, and
coroners for the borough. A court of record is held
~every Thursday before the bailiffs and town-clerk, for
the recovery of debts under £10. A court of session
| quarterly by the bailiffs, recorder, &c.; and a
Teet twice a year before the town clerk. The
‘burgesses have the power of enacting bye
yall cases exercige exclusive jurisdiction.
S Soh o bt
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having adopted either of them as the successor to his
burgage tenure, his burgess-ship, becomes extinct, The
freedom may also be obtained by gitt.of the corporation
at large. Each person made free must possess, at least,
n quarter of a plat of inheritance. . The parliamentary
influence is possessed by, Imd Foley, who nommam
hoth members,

The borough eomprisuthe greater part of the umtod
parishes of St. Andrew and St. Mary de Witton, those
of St. Peter de. Witton and St. Nicholas, and a small
pm-ﬂon of that of St. Augustine de Wich, or Dodderhill;
all in the archi and diocese of Worcester. The
parishes, of S;. Andrew and St, Mary were united by
letters patent of Edward VI., dated 4th of June, in the
second year of his reign, which union was confirmed by
an act obtained in the 13th of Charles IL. . The living
is a discharged rectory, rated in the king's books at
£7.12. 1., and in the patronage of the Crown, The
church, which was rebuilt after having been destroyed
by a casual fire in 1293, has some fine ‘portions in the
early English style, with additions of later date: the
southern entrance, which still remains, appears to be
Saxon, The living of St. Peter's is a discharged vica-
rage, rated in the king's books at £6, and in. the
pntron of Earl Somers. The church has a tower
in the later English style, some fine decorated windows,
and a small quantity of ancient stained glass. A cha-
pel of ease to this church formerly stood on the bridge,
but it was taken down and a new one built in 1763,
on a different site. The living of St.Nicholas’ is a rec-
tory, rated in the king's books at £4. 9. 7., and in the
patronage of the Crown. The church was greatly injur-
ed during the parliamentary war, and only about half
of the tower remains. Here are places of worship for
Independents and Wesleyan Methodists. The hospital
of St. Mary, in the parish of St. Augustine, was founded
for a master and brethren, by Walter de Dovere, in the
reign of Edward L, under the patronage of the prior and
convent at Worcester : part of the building still remains
near bmdge - The Coventry charity hnspitnl
which is situated in St. Peter's parish, comprises nine-
teen tenements occupied by thirty-eight old men and
women above sixty years of age: it was founded in

ce of a bequest from Henry Coventry, Esq,,

consequen
‘who, in 1686, left £1000, to erect a workhoule, or

hospital, and £240 for its support. Here isa charity
mboolfprfqrtyboysnnd forty girls, who are educated,
clothed, and, on leaving school, apprenticed. Richard
de Wich, Bishop of Chichester, was horn hmz he was
aman of extensive erudition for those times, and was

b’ UMW-) in lm, nine -years .‘M h
lﬁ The inhabitants of the borough held his fame

‘and were wont to oelabu:ppn o

great estimation,
WMMMW &c., in honour
emmnt

'th
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qu& ‘n ‘the unhdm w “ﬂo
cese of Lichfield and: m-amu king's

books at £10. 2. 1., endowed with €600 private be-
nefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £600 parliamen.
tary grant, and in the pa of the Crown.. am
church, dedicated to St. John the Baptist, has a tower
and spire at the west end, opposite to which ‘there ! was
once a chantry chapel, now converted into an inn., - There
are. of worship for the Society of Friends, Inde-
pendents, and Wesleyan Methodists.  Dronfield, in
Domesday-book called Dranefield, had formerly the privi-
lege of a market, but on account of its proximity to Ches-
terfield and Sheﬂield it has been long discontinued. There
is a fair for cattle and cheese on April 25th, and another
fair on Augnst 11th. Scythes, sickles, and edge-tools,
are manufactured here; and there are manufactories for
cast ware, various amcles in cutiery, and saddlersiron-
mongery, also for spindles for cotton works. A great
quantity of coal is obtained in the neighbourhood.
grammar school was erected in 1579, by Thomas: Fan-
shawe, Esq., in pursuance of the will of his father, datgd
in 1567, by which it is endowed with lands now produci
an annual income of £200.. Queen Elizabeth, by letters
patent, empowered the above-named executor to make
the necessary statutes for its government, and ordained
that the vicar and churchwardens, or in default, six
wise and . honest men, to be chosen by his heirs, should
be constituted a body corporate, by the name of “ The
govemors of the ar school of Henry Fanshawe,
-The master's salary is £150, the usher's £66,
besldes which they heve each a dwelling-house ; one hun-
dred and thirty childven are educated upon this foun-
dation. There ave two other free schools in the parish,
one at Dore, and another at Holmesfield. At Cawley
is a sulphureous spring, with a bath annexed. = Ahout
two miles from the town are the remains of Beauchief
abbey, founded in 1183, for Premonstratensian, or White
canons, by Robert Fitz-Ranulph, Lord of Alfreton, one
of the éxecutioners of Thomas & Becket, to' whom jt
was dedicated ; on its dissolution, in the 26th of - Heq;y
VIIL, the revenue was valued at £157. 10, 2.
DROXFORD, a parish in that part of the hmdud
of Brsmor's Wavream which is in the Porndnvm diyi-
sion of the county of SourramrroN, 3§ miles (E. byw z
from Bishop's Waltham, containing 1410 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the |
Incumbent, rated in the king's hooka at £17.19. 44 3
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Winchester.
church, dedicated to St. Mary and All Saints, is a curi

‘specimen of early Norman architecture. . The:

is within the jurisdiction oﬁﬁpChemM#r
Wmmevmmm themmmfm




dred and uwrub
into a garden ' castle, built out of the
ruins’ rnfmqh&fﬁt,ﬂmdf “part of the ‘remaing of
Adrian’s wall; which terminated a little to the westward.
Two draw-wells, mmm nhlnwork,mﬁia-
wvmd about 1780.

~DRURIDGE, a hmﬂet in ﬂxe parigh o{ ‘Woonnomr,
usﬁrn division 'of - Monexry- ward, county of Nowr-
THUMBERLAND, 9F miles (N.E. by N.) from Morpeth.
The population is returned with the parish. It is situ-
wedmthelhmdhbnyofthemnenamemthe
North seal |

‘DRYBECK, a towmlnp in the parish of St. Law-
RENCE, Anu:m', East ward, county of WESTMORLAND,
3 miles (8.8.w.) from Appleby, containing 100 inha-
hitants,

‘DRYPOOL; a parish in the middle division of the
wapentake of Horptrness, East riding of the county
of Yorx, comprising the townships of Drypool and
Southeoates, and containing 2207 'inhabitants, of which
number; 1409 are in the township of Drypool, § a mile
(B.) from Kingston upon Hull. The living is a per-
petual curacy, in the archdeaconry of the East riding,
and diocese, of York, endowed with :£600 royal bounty,
and £ 1000 parliamentary grant. 'W. Wilberforce, Esq.
was patron in 1826, The church, dedicated to St, Peter,
has been lately rebuilt in the style of the ancient struc-
ture, and has received @n addition of eight hundred and
fourteen sittings, of which five hundred and sixty-two
are free, the Incorporated Society for the enlargement of
churches and chapels having granted £500 toward
defraying the expense. There is a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists. The parish is bounded on the
east by the river Hull, and the village is deemed a part
of the town of Kingston upon Hull, being contiguous
thereto.  Near this place was situated the village of
Frisneck, ‘which was" swalloved up by inundations of
the Humber. ‘

DUGKINGTON ‘a township in the parish of Max-

division of the hundred of BroxTon, county
pahtine of Cagrster, 3% miles (N) fram Mnlpas, con-
Bi inhabitants. -

i INGTON, a pnrisl; in the hnndreg. of
Bamrron, emty of Oxrorp, 14 mile (8.) from Witney,
Ming “the hamlet of Hardwicke, 497 inhabi-

tants. - The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and
 diocese of Oxford, rated in the king's books at £24.10.5.,

in'the patronage of the President a
pdalen m,;mm; mch ‘i‘in dedicated to

M. “which has been converted

%
e

' DUCKMANTON, a pmhmthehundredofs«u
: mmﬁbmr; ‘8% miles (B.) from Chesterfield,
containing, with Sutton, 685 inhabitants. The living isa
«wmm ‘Sutton in

teaching ~ﬁ*l!75'0 is uh«i%ﬂ we‘ o)

T R T B

7 val of a detachment from Worcester ;

7&‘}.

tronage of the Principal and Fellows 0f Bménoie
lege, Oxford. ' The church is dedicated to All Saints,
DUDDEN, a township in that part of parish of
TARVIN which is in the second division of the hundred
of Eppissury, county palatine of Cuestrn, 8 miles
Eﬁ . by w.) from Tarpnrley, containing 243 mhnbi-

TEF i coidoniSi et A
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rated in'the king's books at £20. 19. 6., and in the

DUDDINGTON a parish in the hundred of Wrrry-

BROOK, county of NorTaAMPTON, 6 miles (W. by N.)
from Wandsford, containing 352 inhabitants, The
living is h perpetual curacy annexed to the vicarage of
Gretton, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of
the Prebendary of Gretton in the Cathedral Church of
Lincoln, The church is dedicated to St. Mary. There
is a place of worship for Independents. Here is a free
school for twelve poor children, endowed with £10 per
annum under the will of Mr. Jackson.

DUDDO, a township in the parish of Normay,
otherwise Norhamshire, county palatine of Durmay,
though situated to the northward of the county of North-
umberland, 13 miles (N.N.W.) from Wooler, containing
285 inhabitants. On the summit of Grindon Rigg are
the remains of Duddo tower, and near it six rude stones,
set up in commemoration of the victory gained by the
English over the Scots, in 1558.

DUDDO, a township in the northern division of the
parish of StannNiNgron, western division of CasTre
ward, county of Non'ruvunnnmmn, 4% miles (8.8.W.)
from Morpeth. The population is returned wnh the
parish.

DUDLEY, a market town and parish, in the lower
division of the hundréd of HAvrsHirEe, county of
WorcesTER, though locally in the southern division of
the hundred of Offlow, county of Stafford, 26 miles
(N.N.E.) from Worcester, and 127 (N.W. by N.) from
London, containing 18,211 inbabitants. 'This place de-
rives its name from Dodo, or Dudo, a Saxon prince, to
whom it belonged a* the time of the Heptarchy, and who
built a castle here about the year 700, which was' after-
wards, during the contest between Stephen and the Em
press Matilda, garrisoned for the latter, by Gervase Pag-
anell, to whom the barony at that time belonged. Gervase
having subsequently taken part in the rebellion of
Prince Henry against his father, Henry II., his castle
was demolished in the 20th year of that monarch's
reign.  Roger de Somery having obtained possession
of the barony, to convert his mansion into a
castle, and for his firm adherence to Henry IIL, in
his wars with the barons, was permitted by his' sove-
reign to complete the fortifications. In the carly eapan
of ‘the parliamentary war the castle was
the royalists, an /
mont with great bravery against the pnrho.;unﬁr

e¢l

who were compelled to raise the siege b

m‘tohmbeenrepdred W‘&b
tained the si ,andan

d in 1644 defended by Colonel ma-]

F!lq
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the postern tower, the walls and windows of the state
apartments, the- kitbheni MJMMW “the site

is extra- ’lc"ehat of
the early decomad style of “architecture, of
which there are several fine 'p ‘‘remaining, inter—
mixed ‘with others of ‘the later English style. ~The

grounds are very extensive, and have been béautxfuﬂy
laid out in shrubberies and walks, affording a succession
of different views of this highly picturesque ruin. About
half a mile from the town was a monastery of Cluniac
monks, founded about the year 1161, by Gervase Paga-
nell, MMM to St. James, as a cell to the abbey at
Wen!uek ‘the ‘revenue of which, at the dissolution, was
£36. 8. M are still considerable remains, forming an
in feature in the view from the castle hill ; and
near them, the Earl of Dudley has erected within the
last ‘few ‘years a handsome building, which, from its
pro!imity to the ruins, is called the priory, in the later
style of English architecture, as a residence for his
mimng agent.
The town i plmantly situated in a tract of country,
the surface of which is finely varied, though in several
_places disfigured by mining operations, which are exten-
" sively prosecuted in the vicinity ; the principal street is
spacious; and the whole town is well paved, and lighted
with gas ; the houses are in general neat and well built,
and many of them are large and elegant ; the inhabitants
are supplied with water from wells of considerable depth;
and the environs, besides the castle hill, which is a fa-
vourite place of resort, abound with pleasant walks and
rides. A public subscription library, established in
1805, contains an 'extensive collection of books: as-
semplu.s are held occasionally at the hotel. - The trade
arises chiefly from the geological character of the neigh-
bourhood, which is remarkable for the variety and ex-
tent of its mines of coal and iron-stone, lying on each
side of a line of basaltic rock and limestone. . Among
‘the heds of coeal is one vein of excellent quality anda-
traordinary thickness, called the “Ten-Yard coal,” which
is supposed to ‘be now nearly exhausted : other- strata,
but much thinner, have been found at a greater depth
from the surface withiin the last twenty years, and many
other mines have been discovered in the neighbourhood,
‘which supply the great consumption of the
‘iron-works and ‘manufacturing places : the produce, by
means of the canals, is also conveyed to several of the

, and the metal is'not o
ud rods, but in extensive

smelted in the n

78

“mentary commissioners, the site havi
~ the W

iﬂhﬂcuﬁﬁ&*‘%elmnmuﬁctureheuﬂdonto ;
'averymme‘m & large quantity of ore is

o . -

mmm /i
in malting is-
three ‘;:’Iugt; feet High, and nine
wide, has been mtﬁthnomh the rock on which the castle
is ‘built, for the wmzmw

caverns under the castle hill, in'which it is
the kilns ; it is in some places more than twenty yards
below the surface, and forms a communication with the
and ‘canals, - The market is
on Saturday: the fairs' are on May 8th, foricattle;
cheese, and wool ; August 5th, for lamhs y;and ’Oebohw
2nd, for horses, cattle cheese, and wool. ot Toevid
The town, though formerly a borough; Ming
turned two members to ‘parliament in the 23d of Ed-
‘ward 1., is within the jurisdiction of the county magis-
trates ; a mayor, bailiff, and other officers  are appointed
annually at the court leet of the lord of the manor, but
exercise no magisterial authority. An application is at
present being made for the renewal of certain privileges,
under an ancient charter which:is said to have been
granted to the town. Dudley formerly comprised the
parishes of St. Thomas and St. Edmund, now united, the
church of the former being parochial, and that of the
latter used as a chapel of ease. The living is a vicarage,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in
the king's books £7. 18. 6%., and in the patronage of the
Earl of Dudley. - The church of St. Thomas was rebuilt
in 1819, at an expense of £ 23,000, of which sum, £ 7600,
including £2000 contributed by the Earl of Dudley, was
raised by subscription, and the remainder by a rate ; it is
a handsome structure in the later style of English archi-
tecture, with an elegant and lofty spire, and is not only
an ornament to the town, but from its elevated situ-
ation forms a fine feature in the landscape. . The church
of St. Edmund having been demolished during the par-
liamentary war, was afterwards rebuilt, chiefly at the
expense of two brothers of the name of Bradley, as-
sisted by a subscription among the parishioners, about
the commencement of the last century. At Netherton
another large chapel of ease, dedicated to St. Andrew,
has recently been eérected, by grant from the parlia-

beenmw

the Earl of There are three of worship
for the Primitive, one one for the Kilhamites, and two for |
Mcthodim,mdmudﬁmm,¢

ofmends, Independents, and Unitarians. °
cchndm founded in 1562,

‘the
'l‘hfne

‘formedinto
foundrie %mmamﬁrmmm this
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~and - instructing
bowwmmhdm,m ‘endowed with. hnd.,
Messrs Robert and Samuel, and Mrs. Ann, Baylis : the

school-room has been recently rebuilt, and, exclusively of
those on the foundation, about two hundred other boys
are now educated, the funds having much increased,
fnmthelmpwementnf the land, &c.: the school is
now under the care of the Unitarians. The Blue-coat
-chool was founded in 1708, in which there are now about
two hundred and thirty boys; part of the funds is ap-
ied to the support of an infant school recently esta-
blished. A school ‘of industry has been established,
in ‘which two hundred and twenty girls are educated
and taught to work. The Unitarians also support a
similar school for girls, the number at present be-
about eighty. In Lady-wood is a valuable spring,
c:gledthe Spa Well, in high estimation for its efficacy
in cutaneous disorders, and complaints artmg from,
indigestion. There are also several chalybeate springs.
In the lime quarries a fossil, called the Dudley
locust, is found in great numbers and variety of size,
and supposed to be a petrifaction of an extinct species
of the monoculus. About a quarter of a mile from
the town is a tract of country, comprising about twenty
acres, vulgarly called the Fiery Holes, from which
smoke continually issues, and sometimes flame; veins
of coal underneath are supposed to have been set on
fire by some accident, and to have continued burning
ever since. Richard Baxter, the celebrated non-con-
formist divine in the reign of Charles II., was for some
time master of one of the schools in this parish.
“confers the title of earl on the family of Ward.

' DUDLESTON, a chapelry in the parish of ErLes-
MERE, hundred of Pimuiny, county of Saror, 43 miles
(N.W. by w.) from Ellesmere, with which the popula-
tion is returned. = The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of Lichfield
and Coventry, endowed with £510 private benefaction,
and £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
M&f“mmen ‘The chapel, dedicated to St. Mary,
ll;lzemmd an addition of onesohundr;d ag
C ‘%‘I ,-nﬂl&-a:hw { i ¢ c‘ﬁty or the
irgement. of ahuchrhlnd chapels having granted

",‘mtmlhiyinﬂte po.mhlal clnpek-y of

‘division of CoquerpaLE ward,
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Baptists, Wesleyan Methodists, Unita-
In Domesday-book it is called Dma?(:udm
dmm-ibedu having “uchurch.nmmdw mills ;"
itﬂﬁwwutﬁformgd),)m of the demesne o(Hmyde
Ferrars, who, in 1096, possessed a casﬂeonucmmmpe
north-west of the village, the site of which is now called
Castle-Orchard. ' This fortress was held by several of the
turbulent descendants of that powerful baron, of whom
William, for rebellion in the reign of Henry 1L, lost - his
estates by confiscation, but, in 1199, they were restored.
by King John to his son William, with the title of Earl
of Derby. Earl Robert joined in Simon de Montford s
rebellion, and garrisoned his castle of Duffield
Henry IIL, but was defeated and  taken prisoner at
Chesterﬁeld by Henry de Almaine, upon which the
king sent his son,afterwards Edward L., into the county
of Derby, to ravage with fire and sword the lands of the
earl, and take revenge for his disloyalty, and under
that order the castle was dismantled, and the demesne
fell to the crown. In 1330, Henry, Earl of Lancaster,
claimed seven parks in Duffield Frith, and, in the reign
of Elizabeth, frequent mention is made of the. extent
and importance of the royal possessions at Duffield,
the appointments of stewards, rangers, and various
other officers, and of great leets, and three weeks' courts
held there, it being then a portion of the duchy of
Lancaster, and so it continued till the reign of Charles I.,
when it was granted to: several persons. The village,
pleasantly situated on a fine plain, through which flows
the river Derwent, contains many good houses, and is
very respectable. There are cattle fairs on the Thursday
following New Year's day, and on March 1st. William
Gilbert, in the 7th of Elizabeth, surrendered = cottage
and lands for the maintenance of a school, towards which
Joseph Webster, in 1685, bequeathed an annuity of £10;
the annual income of the schoolmaster is £124. 9. 10.,
with a house and garden : twenty-four children are edu-
cated upon this foundation. An almshouse was built by
Mr. Anthony Bradshaw, who died in 1614 ; it is en-
dowed with a rent-c upon an estate at Holbrook,
and with £100, thegxft of William Potterell, in 1785 ;
the inmates are two old men and two old women, wlm
have each two apartments, with allowances of ls. per
week, and 5s. a year for fuel. There were formerly other
almshouses, erected in 1676, but they were taken down
in 1810.

DUFFIELD (NOB.TH), a township in the parish of
SkipwiTH, wapentake of Ouze and Derwent, East
ridhgsa of the connty&fhmxn,bi miles (N.E.) from

by, containing 433 inha ts

DUFFIELD (SOUTH), a township in. the parish of
mGnmuan, wapentake of Ouzr and DERWENT,

East riding of the county of YoRrx, 5 miles (E.N.E.) fmm ¢

%nmmnmx 181 mh-bztants Theae hm place of
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rebuilt about 1775 mum tuated half thousand children ; there is also a Roman Catholi¢ cha:
a mile north of the village. A dmhipfor pel. A Sunday school, for children of all denominations,
Wesleyan Methodlsuwu i hmm. There are is kept in a meat brick: erected by s
considerable lead mines in the parish, worked by the tion, upon land given by the late F. D. A
London Lead Company, ducing about one hundred and containing a well selected library for ‘the use 6f
and forty-four stone. of - per week : the oreis inhabitants. Lieutenant-Colonel Robert Duckenfield, &
smelted at a mill about a x fmm the village. The free distinguished parliamentary officer, and a ‘member “of

school, founded in 1670 by Christopher Walker, was re-
built by mhscnptmn in 1824, and is principally supported
by a yearly rent-c , the bequcst of Michael Todd, in
1692. Dummvp ock-pnke, and Merton-pike, each
ubout one thomsand feet in height, uniform, and of easy
ascent, are | supposed to be artificial mounds raised over
the relics qf ancient British heroes of rank, or for some

rell%mu
GEE%Y a township in the parish of Kirny-

n(,nu.rrx, wapentake of Buckrose, East riding of
1e county of York, 63 miles (E.8.E.) from New Malton,
containing 154 inhabitants,

‘ Uﬁl%lSHAGG a township in the parish of Oving-
HAM, eastern division of TinpaLe ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 13 miles (W.8.W.) from Newcastle
upon Tyne, containing § inhabitants. This township,
called also Ducashagg, and Dukershagg, consists of only
a farm-house and farm.

DUKINFIELD, a chapelry in the parish of
Srockrort, hundred of MaccrLesFIELD, county pala-
tine of CuEsTER, 6 miles (N. E. by N.) from Stockport,
containing 5096 inhabitants, The village, called by the
Saxons Dockenveldt, is seated upon a pleasant eminence,
at the foot of ,which, to the northward, runs the rapid
river Tame, separating the township from the town of
Ashton under Lyne, in Lancashire, as it did the King-
doms of Northumberland and Mercia during the Hep-
tarchy, when strong fortifications for the protection of
cach at this point were constructed, on opposite banks of
the ltream, some vestiges of which are still discernible.

ears ago the inhabitants of Dukinfield con-

sisted only a few farmers and day-labourers, but since
the introduction of the cotton trade it has become an
extensive and flourishing place ; there are several cotton
factories, worked by eleven steam-engines, equal in
power to two hundred and fifty-five horses, which put in
motion one thousand four hundred and seventy-five
pp 0oms, and turn one hundred and thirteen thou-
nd one hundred and fifty-four spindles. The mines and
qua.hga wanght in the townclnp yield a considerable
arealsoextensive collieries,

the -huﬁsofmmgz‘i?nemhangmnktothedepth of one tl :

hundred twenty f Iron-ore is abundant, and

furnace wmm tly erected fornmltmgit,::
s hebgancamedm in remote .
breaks which

Cromwell's council of state in 1653, was born here.

DULAS, a parish in the hundred of WesTREE,
county of Hrrerorp, 134 miles (8.W. by W.) from
Hereford, containing 60 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Brecon, and
diocese of St. David, endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, £ 600 royal bounty, and £ 200 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Gleucelter
The church is dedicated to St. Michael.

DULLINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of Rap-
FIELD, county of CAMBRIDGE, 3§ miles (8. by W.) from
Newmarket, containing 625 inhabitants. The living is
a dmcharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Ely, rated in the king's books at £12. 15. 5. Mrs.
Pigott was patroness in 1828. The church is dedicated
to St. Mary. There is a school with an endowment of
about £4 per annum, the gift of Borradill Millicent,
in 1678.

DULOE, a parish in Wesr hundred, county of
CornNwaLL, 3% miles (N.N.W.) from West  Looe,
containing 779 inhabitants. The living is a \nmage
and a rectory consolidated, in the archdeaconry of
Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter, rated together in the
king’s books at £30. 15. 24., and in the patronage of
the Master and Fellows of Balliol College, Oxford.
The church, dedicated to St. Cuby, contains an altar:
tomb with sculptured ornaments, upon which is a res,
cumbent figure of an armed knight, with an inseription
in memory of Sir John Colshull, who died in 1483,
The Looe navigation bounds the parish on the east.
A silver and lead mine was opened several yun'l lgo,

being unprofitable it was soon afterwards :

DULVERTQN,& et town and paris
dred of WiLriToN and FREEMANNERS, ¢
MERSET, 13 miles (W.) from Wivelisco
(W.by8.) from London, containing 1127
This place probably derives its name from bdng
in a deep valley, and up
whieh rises in Exmoor F\




the steward of the manor. The living is a in
the arch v of Taunton, and diocese of Bath and

‘Wells; rated in the king's books at £21. 10. 10., and
in the dge of the Dean and of ‘Wells
The church, 10 -All Saints, is a neat edifice in
the ancient of English architecture, with a square
wvm A charity school was founded in
1786, by Mrs. Elizabeth Dyke, of Pixton, who endowed
it for thirty poor children of the parish, with a tene-
‘ment producing £12 per annum ; the endowment was
subsequently increased with a legacy of £150 bequeath-
ed by Humphrey Sydenham; Esq. in 1764 ; with £40 left
" by Mrs, Penelope Sydenham; and, in 1769, with a legacy
of - £100 by the Rev. Lawrence Jackson; producing in
the whole about £80 per annum, by means of which,
and partly by subscription, the school is now conducted
upon the National system. About a mile and a half west-
north-west of the town is Bury castle, an ancient en-
‘campment.,  In the neighbourhood is a mineral spring,
the water of which is impregnated with iron, but it is
not now used medicinally: there is also a spring, called

Holy well, to which, on' Holy Thureday, it is still the.

custom to carry persons afflicted with disease. !
-+ DULWICH, a hamlet in the parish of Camprr-
WELL, eastern  division ' of the hundred of BrixTon,
county of Surrry, 4§ miles (8.) from London. The
pulation is returned with the parish.  The village is
pleasantly situated in a small vale, sheltered by rising
: in the immediate vicinity, and by the Surrey
hills in the distance: the houses are irregularly built,
but of handsome and’ le appearance: the en-

virons abound with elegant villas, which, from their
proximity to the metropolis, have become the residence
of many opulent

families.  The village is lighted by
~the inhabitants, and is within the
new vestablishment under Mr, Peel's
tir for toys is heldwon the Monday after Trinity
: a court leet is held annually. © At the east-
mity is God's Gift College, founded in 1619, by

n, Esq., who endowed it with the ma-
‘-‘f' € ‘ el : : T

~ the hundred of Krrrseare, county of GLOUCESTER, 6
. miles' (N.byw.) from Winchcombe, containing 374 in-
. habitants, ~The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry

and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's book
six at £18. 16.'8, dedicated to St. P

en  has an embattled tower at the west end. A rivulet,
), called the Ishorn, runs through the parish; and
ws, side of a hill a mineral spring rises. Dorothy
© in'1754, bequeathied £2 per annum for téac!
¢; the mfmmﬂmacm;, in 1728, ga

&- ‘ ¢
‘).—n

DUM e !

any of the offices in the college. The poor ﬁ‘@ﬂh@u
sisters have apartments in :ﬁ conege?w “every th th
requisite supplied them, and a very considerable pecu-
niary allowance. The buildings, chiefly in the Elizabeth
style, occupy three sides of a quadrangle, of which th
chapel constitutes one: the east wing was handsome-
ly rebuilt of red brick ornamented with &tone, in 1740,
and contains the school-room and apartments for the
fellows ; the opposite wing comprises the library and
apartments for the scholars. The ¢hapel has been en-
larged by the addition of an aisle and a gallery, for the
accommodation of the inhabitants; divine service is
performed regularly in the morning and afternoon : the
altar-piece is ornamented with a fine painting of the
Ascension, presented to the college by Mr. Hall; and in
front of the chancel is a black marble slab, covering the
tomb of the founder, who was buried in the chapel.  An
extensive collection of pictures was bequeathed to the
college by Sir Francis Bourgeois, in 1811, for the recep-
tion of which a handsome gallery has been erected at
the south end of the college: the building, which is
well calculated to display the pictures, is divided into
five rooms, in each of which are many specimens of the
first masters, of the Italian, Flemish, and English schools.
The collection is open to the public under certain re-
gulations, and attracts numerous visitors, particularly
during the summer months. A free school was founded
in 1741, by James Alleyn, Esq., Master of God's Gift
College, who endowed it with lands and messuages in the
parish of Kennington, now ucing a rental of more
than £200 per annum, for the instruction of podr chil-
dren of both sexes, of the hamlet of Dulwich, or within

-a mile of it; there are sixty boys and sixty girls in the

school, of which number twelve hoys and twenty girls
are clothed by subscription. The school-house, a hand-
some building facing the college, containing two distinct

* school-rooms, and  residences for the master and mis-
- tress, was given for that purpose by the master and
- warden' of the college. There are several medicinal

nigs in the immediate "neighbourhaod, the water of
which is similar in its propertics to that of Sydenham.
“'DUMBLETON, a parish in the lower division of

oks
The church, dedicated to St. Peter,
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charge of £4 ayeur,forteacw ‘poor ¢hildren ; sub-
sequent bequests have increased g*b ‘income to £15. 5.
which is paid to a schoolma: ‘(or the free education
of twenty boys, ' 7115 I
DUMMER-ANBMMmG an extra-
parochial liberty, ln the hundred of Maxssrinee, Faw-
ley division of fhe 1 ‘df MTuAmmx, '3 miles

“(N.N.E.) from Southan ~The population is re-
‘turned with the pa dﬂof South ‘Stoneham.
DUNCHIDEOCK, a parish in the hundred of Ex-

unty ﬁfvaoN 4 miles (8.W.byw.) from

ita g 200 inhabitants. The living is a rec-
the lh‘éhdeaconry and diocese of Exeter, rated
the king's books at £14.17. 1. Sir L. V. Palk, Bart.

g ,pttton in 1793. The church, dedicated to the Holy
f inity, contains a handsome monument to the memory

] L. Lawrence, Commander-in-chief in India
1) t the middle of the last century. Here is a house
?br ﬂ:e poor to live in, capable of recewmg eighty per-

DUNCHURCH a parish in the R v division of
‘the hundred of Knicrtrow, comnty of WArwick, 15
miles (E.N,E.) from Warwick, containing, with the ham-
lets of Toft and Thurlaseon, 1251 inhabitants. The
living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Coventry,
nnd dlocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the

s books at £14. 1, 104., and in the patronage of
the ishop of Lichfield and Coventry. The church, de-
dicated to St. Peter, is a handsome and curious edifice,
with a square embattled tower ; the western porch has a
fine Norman arch, ornamented with heads and zigzag
mouldings ; the chancel is of early English architecture,
with some windows in the decorated style ; the nave is
-also decorated, and the door-ways of the uisles ‘are or-
namented with remarkably rich mouldings : the tower is
_in the later English style, much enriched, but mutilated.
- Here is a free grammar school, founded in 1707, and en-
@owed by a bequest from Francis Boughton, of twenty-

a clergym&n ‘the same henefactor left twenty-four
lan the produce to be applied in ap-
boys : both charities are vested in eight

“three poor widows, which were
‘of Dunchurch, being a

table 'hé\uca'

seven acres of land and a house for the master, who must -

X mws Thomas Newcombe, printer, to the
enII'.,’James 1L, and William I11., bequeathed
g and endowing .uamm-u,tor‘-m

'Wpectnofthmﬁ mmm

of Somrrser, 5§ miles mm‘m,ymam"
containing 454 inhabitants. - mm«h a m
curacy, annexed to the vicarage of
archdeaconry of ‘Bath, and diocese bﬁM -wwm
The church, dedicated to St. Michael, stands on a lofty
hlﬂ,ndhlatthemmduﬁnemwm
namented with clustered pinnacles. On m.-mhm
is ‘a rude building, supposed to have béen intended for
a beacon.  There is a trifling endowment, ‘the gift of
Benjamin Symes, in 1778, for teaching two poor boys ;
and another, the bequest of Joseph Hellier, for seven
i s for wttleundnheepishaldontho 12th of
September.
" DUNHAM, a township in the ps.nsh of Tnonmoq,
second division of the hundred  of Eppissury, county
pdntine of Caesrer, 5 miles (S:W.) from Frodsham,
containing 306 inhabitants, The Duke of Bndgewutﬂs
canal passes near this place. There is a tnﬂmg bnquut
for the education of children. :

- DUNHAM, a parish in the South- elay dml:on cf
the wapentake of BasseTrAW, county of Nonxuem,
5% miles (N. E. by B.) from Tuxford, containing, with the
chapelry of Ragnall, 415 inhabitants, The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, rated in the king's books at £4. 13. 4,,
and in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the
Prebendary of Dunham in the Collegiate Church of
Southwell.  The church is dedicated to St Oswald.
There i8 a chapel of ease at Darlton, in this parish,
Dunham once enjoyed the privilege of a market, which '
is now disused; but there is a fair for cattle and
merchandise on the 12th of August. The river Trent
runs through the parish, and frequently inundates the
village, sometimes to the depth of ten feet, causing con-
siderable damage to the buildings; the inhabitants on
such occasions communicate with each other and carry
on their traffic through the streets by means of boats,
almost every houleha.vmg one athchod. to it for the

DUNHAM ( PR s o e 4
'LavNDITCH, ‘of Norvowrk, 5 miles (N.E.)

from Smlhqm, containinjuﬁs inhabitants, The living
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; Y pukmmﬁgeuofwolim-
litary road, ev “mear which urns have
been found. WN&MM&!WMM
awmmfmmmm
Mmthewapmhhofhwnm,
mwmmmm of LaincoLn, 6 miles (N.N,E,)
hgg inhabnm 'l‘heh;i;gﬂ::
Beuaandchwdiaimdh ratedinthekmglbookn
at £4. 6. 8., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in
the: ‘of the Bishop of Lincoln. The church is
dedicated to St. Chad. A bead cotrt is held twice a year,
when tenlhﬂhngsand a coat each are given to six

DUNKEmN a parish in the hundred of WeLLOW,

county of Soum-r,s miles (8. W. by8.) from Bath,
qonhming 365 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in

the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of Bath and
Wells, rated in the king's books at £ 10. 4. 7., and in
the patronage of Sir George Bampfylde, Bart. The
church is dedicated to All Saints. The old fosse road,
the Radford canal, and the Kennet and Avon canal, pass

the parish,

DUNKESWELL, a parish in the hundred of Hem-
YOCK, county of DEvon, 5§ miles (N. byw.) from Honi-
ton, containing 441 inhabitants. The living is a donative,
endowed with £400 private benefaction, and £400 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of Miss Graves. The
church is dedicated to St. Nicholas. Dunkeswell, which
anciently belonged to a Jew named Amadio, was pur-
chased by William Briwere, who founded, in 1201, an
‘abbey for White monks, to the honour of the Virgin
Mary ; the annual revenue of which, at the dissolution,
was estimated at £298. 11.10.

- DUNKESWITH, a township in that part of the
parish of Harewoon which is in the upper division of
the ‘of Craro, West riding of the county of
Yorxk, 6% miles (W. by 8.) from Wetherby, containing
287 ts. It is in the Forest division of the
honour of Kmlbormgh and ‘within the jurisdiction
of the peculiar court thereof.

IRK-VILLE, an mpl.rochlal liberty, in
the ihmﬁ'd of WesrteaTE, lathe of St. AUGUSTINE,
: mwxmsQﬂu (w byN) ﬁmm Cnnterbury
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ration from Philip and Mary, which was confirmed by Eli-
zabeth, under which the government is vested in a recor,
der, buliﬁ' and twelve burgesses; but at present they do
not possess magisterial anthonty, and the only function
they exercise, is the appointment of a constable, bread-
weighers and leather-sealers, which takes place annually
on the Tuesday after Michaelmas-day. The petty sessions
for the division are held here : a court lect for the manor
is also held occasionally. Formerly the manufacture
of baize and blankets was carried on very extensively,
but at ‘present. there is only a small establishment for,
making sacking and coarse cloth, The market, which
was on Saturday, has been discontinued ; but there are
fairs on May 6th and November 8th, for cattle, The
living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex,,
and diocese of London, rated in the king’'s books at
#£18. 13. 4., and in the patronage of the Bishop of Lon-
don, The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a spacious
edifice in the decorated and later styles of English ar-
chitecture, consisting of a nave, aisles, and chancel, with
a fine east window : it has lately received an addition of
two hundred and thirty sittings, of which two hundred
are free, the Incorporated Society for the enlargement of
churches and chapels having granted £50 towards de-
fraying ‘the expense. Here are places of worship for
Baptists, the Society of Friends, and Independents.
There is an almshouse for six poor persons: a charity
school for fifty boys, and another for twenty girls, are
supported by voluntary eontnbutmns
DUNMOW (LITTLE), a in_the hundred of
Dunxmow, county of Essnx, 2} miles (E.S.E.) from
Great Dunmow, containing 342 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Middle-
sex, and diocese of London, endowed with £200 private:
benefaction, £600 royal bounty, and £200 parliamen-
tary grant. N. R. Toke, Esq. was patron in 1824. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary, consists only of the south
aisle and part of the nave of a church which belonged
to a priory of Augustine canons, founded in 1104, the
revenue of which, at the dissolution, was £173. 2. 4.
Under an arched recess in the south wall is a coffin-
shaped tomb, supposed to be that of Lady Juga, sister
of Ralph Baynard, foundress of the priory ; neat it is a
monument, with the of an armed knigbt and a
the lady, said to have been erected for Sir Walter Fitz-Walter,
who died in 1198; and on the opposite side of the church,,
a monument. with a female figure in flabaster, said to re-
Matilda Fitz-Walter, famous in legen story
as the wife or mistress of Robin Hood, and the o bject of

.}'.thn-nhdt,pmionofxmg John, who is_stated to have.
- cansed hpr to be

poisoned, in revenge for her hqving
his addresses.. . There is an nnclent eon-

- nected with the manor of Little Dunmow, of

orﬂuchofbwomnndemnd.mnityéouple,
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17515 and the whole number of successful Wuh
said to have been but six couple; = .. . o
'DUNNERDALE, a fﬁﬂnpﬂhsb of K!n-
BY-IRBLETH, hundred of LoNSDALE, north of the sands,
county pdutmeafhmt ‘miles (W. by 8.) from
Hawkeshead, containing 143 i itants, There is a
. tnﬂmg sum for the education of children. ‘

DUNNINGTON, a township in -the parish of Bes-
FORD, northern division of’ the. wapentd:e of HoLpERr-
~Ess,  East riding: of the county of Yorx, 10 miles
(E. 8. E.) frnm Gmu fl)nfﬁeld contaimng 76 inhabft
m“- !‘.' e 0

DUNNYNGTON aparmh partly -in - the wcpentﬁe
of Ouze and DErwexT, but chiefiy within the liberty
of St. Perer of York, East riding of the county of
Yorg, 4% miles (E. by N.) from York, containing, with
the township of Grimston, 623 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaoonry of Cleveland, and dio-
cese of York, rated in the king's books at £19, and in
the patronage of the Trustees of the late Earl of Bridge-
water, The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas. There is
a phee of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.  The high

‘here separates the East from the North niding.

- DUNNINGWORTH, a hamlet 'in the parish of
Tmts'ml.x.. hundred of PromeseaTe, county of Suw-
roLK, 5§ miles (E. by N.) from Wickham-Market. The

population is returned with the parish. This was for-
. merly a distinct parish, but the living, a discharged rec-

tory, has been united to that of Tunstall; and the
| church, which was dedicated to St. Mary, has fallen into
| ruins,
| . DUNNOCKSHAW, a township in that part of the
| parish of WaALLEY which is in the higher division of
. the hundred of BrAackBurN, county palatine of Lan-

CASTER, 34 miles (8.8.W.) from Burnley, containing 76
inhabitants.

- DUNSBY, a pansh in the wapentake of Avm.mn,
parts of Kusreven, county of LiNcown, 4 miles (N. by
E.) from Bourne, containing 190 inhabitants.  The liv-
ing is.a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lin-
coln, rated in the king's books at £12. 14. 7., and in
‘the pa ¢ of the Governors of the Charter-house,

London! The church, dedicated to All Saints, is partly

in themlymdparﬂy in the decorated style of English
e ; the tower is a hnndlome apecunen ot'*the

- . 8 ghrish in: the wnpenuke of. Fux
WELL, parts of Ku«nwu,mntyofmmcom,-tmﬂa
(?ﬁ‘-wimm The population is returned
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- London,

rmuuy ‘which they n:

(s.s.x.) from Godalming, WW M
The living is'a’ mnmw of
and dtoce(;e N&Winn&e:my sﬁlﬁ'ﬂn C ) :
£12. 0.74., and in the patronage of the Cro w
church, dedicated to St. Mary, uwmnwmmm
rated style of architecture. ~ The Arun and Wey Junc-
tmnumlpusu through the parish: o0 oo doils
- DUNSFORD, a-parish in eheAlmndnd of Won-'
roRrD, county of Qevon, 7 miles (W. by 8.) from Exeter,
containing £19 inhabitants. The living is a vw'*hv'
the archdeaconry and diocese of Exeter, rated in the
king's books at £19. 10., and in the of Bald-
win Fulford, Esq. = The church dedicated to St. Mary,
has ‘a plain Norman door-way. Seven poor children are
educated for about £3 per ann., the bequests of Agnes
Harrison, in 1750, and others. - In the parliamentary
war, the manor-house, erected in the time of Elizabeth,
was garrisoned by Colonel - Sir  Francis Fulford, its
owner, for the kmg, but the garrison mrnnderod to
Fairfax, in 1645. g
DUNSFORTH (LOW), a chapelry in that pu'tvaf the»

" parish of Avpporovea which isin the upper division of

the wapentake of CrLaro, West ndmg ‘of the county of
York, 24 miles (E.S.E.) from Aldborough, containing
115 inhabitants, The living is a perpetual curacy, en<
dowed with £400 royal bounty, and £ 200
grant, and in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of
the Dean and Chapter of York. = The chapel is Mmd
to St. Mary. &

DUNSFORTH (UPPER), a joint township: w&ﬂ»
Branton-Green, in that part of the parish of Aup-
BorOUGH Which is in the upper division of the !
take of Craro, West riding of the county of Yorxk, 8§ &
miles (S.E. by E.) from Aldborough conﬁnmng wﬂ "
habitants, = #

DUNSLEY, a jomt township with Newholm in the
parish of Wairsy, liberty of Wrrrsv-Srrann, North
riding of the county of Yorxk, 3 miles (W.) from Whitby, -
containing 259 inhabitants. From this place a Roman
road, now called Wade's causeway, runs for many miles
over the moors to York; it is paved with flints, and has -
beentneedwelvefcetmmd threehigh,ﬂthw*
defaced milliary on it. b i

- DUNSTABLE, a muk&pwn and puki' .-
hundred of MansuEAD, county of BEpromrn, W &
(B-'byiw.) from Mrd,and 333 (N, wanby Y
1 inhabitants,
this town may be"moe&h the time of ﬂn
tons, who-are su ‘to have had a

aes Gwyn, or "W’hlﬁq ]
of the ch&yﬂ soil of the viduit’m 'H
agiovinium of

dedicated o have been the M
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investing the inhabitants with various privileges, among
which was an exemption from the jurisdiction of justices’

royal palace, founded by Henry, under the authority of
i 1IL.; was extensively endowed, and en-
joyed many privileges ; .the priors had a gaol, possessed
the power of life and death, and usually sat as judges at
Dunstable, with the king's justices itinerant. These cir-
cumstances gave occasion to. the exercise of great ty-
ranny, and the townsmen became entirely subject to the
monks ; hence arose dissatisfaction and tumults, so that
in the reign of Richard IL. the inhabitants revolted against
the prior; and extorted a charter of liberties from him,
which he soon afterwards revoked. In 1204, King John
-conferred his palace on the prior, on condition that royal
vigitors should be freely entitled to the hospitality of
the priory; and many English sovereigns have been en-
tertained here. « In 1290, the corpse of Queen Eleanor,
consort of Edward L, rested at the market-place;, on
being ‘conveyed through the town, and a handsome cross,
erected in commemoration of that event, was demolished
in the reign of Charles L, as a relic of popery. In the
chapel of our Lady, at the priory, the sentence of divorce
between Henry VIIL and Catherine of Arragon was pro-
nounced, by Archbishop Cranmer ; and Gervase Mark-

ham, who was the last prior, having assisted to effect
that , was in consequence treated with compara-
ﬁWM'r N Gl bl el

- The town is pleasantly situated near the Chiltern

hills, and consists of four principal streets, which inter-
sect each other at right angles, and correspond exactly
ith the four cardinal points..  They are neither paved

nor lighted : - the  inhabitants were formerly supplied
with water from public reservoirs, of which there was
~one in each street ; 'bnt.it;\jp,no; t;l;t:ineg from wells,
vm , from chalky mafure of the sub-stratum are

to a mﬁqﬂ. ~ The manufacture of articles in

al and ornamental, is extensively carried
the well known nunst;!:rlehm 1"
‘the largest manufactories for whiting

v of its inns, and.is still proverbis

the coins of Antoninus and Constantine, with ornaments of
ummiumwu;rm:

12th, for many years, in which the poor are employed in the
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and St. Paul, and was originally a magnificent and ex-

e tensive cruciform structure, with atower rising from the

and hav-  interection : HenryVIus-hwﬁgnabW*hh‘dii‘ﬁ
| of

of making it a cathedral, a considerable part of
edifice was demolished. The remains consist of the west
front, nave, and two aisles ; each of the latter extends
from the western doors to the entrance to what was
once the choir; being about one hundred and twenty feet
long : at the north-west angle is a tower embellished
with a double row of niches, which formerly contained
statues. The architecture combines some portions in
the Norman, with others in the early and later English
styles. The windows are of comparatively modern date ;
the eastern end terminates in a flat wall, the two arches
adjoining which form the present choir: the roof is of
finely carved oak in the decorated style, the beams being
supported by figures representing angels : the western'
entrance is surmounted by an elegant stone rood-loft of
four pointed arches and clustered columng,  Over the
communion-table is a painting of ‘the Lord's Supper, by
Sir James Thornhill. The ancient altar-cloth, (which is
now in the possession of John Miller, Esq., of Bedford,
or his representatives), is a fabric of the richest crim-
eon and gold brocade, so exquisitely wrought; that it has
hitherto been impossible to discover the mode in which
it was manufactured ; and, though upwards of three
hundred years old, it still retains its original freshness
and beauty. Amongst the various monuments in the
church are several to the Chew family, who were great
benefactors to the town. On the eastern side of the
church, stone coffins and various relics of antiquity have
been dug up. There are two places of worship for Bap-
tists, and one for Wesleyan Methodists. ol 8
A charity school, founded by the directior of Mr.
William Chew, was built in 1727, and is endowed by va-
rious benefactors, with land at Caddington, 'Luton,
Houghton-Regis, Hamstidde, Totternhoe,and Whipsnade,
producing an annual income of more than £300 : forty
boys and fifteen girls are clothed, educated, and appren-
ticed, and the master has a salary of £ 40 perannum : a
donation by Mark Brown, Esq. supplies an additional
apprenticeship every third year. The boys are admitted
at the age of seven, and apprenticed at fourteen. Adjoin-
ing the school are six almshouses, fonnded and endowed
by Mrs. Cart, for the residence and maintenance of as
many poor widows : and in West-street are six others,
founded and endowed by Mrs;Ahshum for a ﬁmﬂm
pose. Nearly opposite the church are six houses
by Mers. Blandina Marsh, in 1713, and desigmated “ The

' Maidens’ Lodge,” for six unmarried gentlewomen, whose

income has been increased by a benefaction fom another -
lady, to £120 per annum. A workhouse has existed

straw-plat manufacture. In 1770, a great. quan

direction of & d

priest, or
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|1LL, northérn division of the W ‘of OrrLow,
count?r;tl" Starrorp, 4% miles (w. S.W.) ﬁ'om Burton
upon- t, oonmmng laﬁhhﬂaitqntl

' DUNSTALL, a ' ‘m“w«pm of the parish
of TAMWORTH which is in the southern division of
the hundred of OrrLOW, county of Starrorp, 13 mile
(w.) from Tamworth, W!ﬁl, which the population is re-
turned. Dunstall is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy
of Lancaster, and 'inthm the jurisdiction of a court of
pleas held at Tut  every third Tuesday, for the reco-
very of debts under 40s.

DUNSTAN (ST ), aparish in the hundred of Wm
ST,

GaTE, lathe of St. AvcusTing, county of Kent,  of a
W, m Canterbury, containing 719 inhabitants.

The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and di peese ‘of Canterbury, rated in the king's books
$5, and in the patronage of the Archbishop of Can-
bury. Here is a National school.

DUNSTER, ‘a market town and parish in the hun-
dnd of Caruampron, county of SoMERsET, 38 miles
(W.N.W.) from Somerton, and 158 (W. by 8.) from
London, containing 895 inhabitants. The town, which
is called Torre in Domesday-book, owes its origin to a
‘bavonial castle built here by William de Mohun, a Nor-
man baron, on whom William the Conqueror bestowed
large estates in this part of the kingdom. He also
founded a priory of Benedictine monks, as a cell to the
abbey at Bath, the revenue of which, at the dissolution,
was £37. 4. 9;. The castle, which was held by the fa-
‘mily of Mohun till the reign of Edward III, was the
scene of hostilities during the civil wars which took
place in the reigns of Stephen and John, and in the
contests between the houses of York and Lancaster ;
and the Marquis of Hertford took possession of it for
Charles I, during the war with the parliament. The
castle has been the residence of the family of Luttrell
since the time of Edward IIL : the present structure,
which is comparatively ofrecent mctuon,mds ina
"'cnmumdingdmnﬁunatthe ‘southern of the
~street, em! ' fine' views of the Bristol
 chanuel, mdtheWelchmd Gloucestershire hills. 'l‘be
: is situated on a gentle eminence, about a
n&mﬁx of the Bristol channel, and the surround-
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of Commons, m;mrym 1717, uwm
of Dunster and Minehead, being b
.hﬂp »dgl

ﬁf ‘Minehead, l;nd uot'
The living, formerly a , 18 now a
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Mm ‘and ml
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £4. 13.4.,
endowed with £1200 private benefaction, £ 800 royal
bounty, and £ 1200 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
of Johgy Fownes Luttrell, Esq. The church;
dedicated to rge, is. a very spacious edifice in
the later style of English architecture, having been erect-
ed by Henry VIL, in ackno of the assistance
dfforded him by the men of Dunster, in the battle of
Bosworth Field : it consists of a nave, aisles, and chan-
cel, with a central tower, ornamented with battlements
and pinnacles ; beyond which, to the east, is a kind of
chapel, formerly the conventual church of the priory :
this part of the building was also used by the incumbent
of the parish, for the performance of divine service
until the year 1499, when a dispute arising between, the
monks and the parishioners, the matter was to
arbitrators, who decided that the latter should have &
choir separate from that of the convent: it contains
many fine sepulchral monuments bel to the families
of Mohun and Luttrell, which, as well as the chapel
itself, arehntehingtodeeay. Hereisnchnﬂtyachod.
DUNSTEW, a parish in the hundred of Woorron,
county of Oxronn,ﬂi miles (8.8.W.) from Deddmgton
containing 460 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford, rated in the king's
books at £8. 2. 8%. Sir H.W. Dashwood, Bart. was
patron in 1794. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
DUNSTON, a parish in the second division of the
wapentake of Lancox, parts of KusTeveN, county of
Lincown, 83 miles (8.E.) from Lincoln, containing 406

inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdea-
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king’s books
at £7. 0. 10., endowed with £200 private benm

y }and mﬂn
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. 'DUNTERTON, a parish in the hundred of Lirron, the hundred of RarscaTe, county of Grouc
~eounty y of DEvON, 5 ml ) from Launceston, 5% miles (N. by w.) , T ORCEETNE,
~con “MM ?Th?ﬂ’v%ﬁg‘h-a‘mota,y.in ix?hubitlantg. W WA oo Clnmceitte SERui0g, 45

the of Totness, and diocese of Exeter,
rated in the king's books at £8.7. 1. The Rev. W. Royce
was patron in 1800. The church, ated to All
Saints, is small, but the tower is handsome. At a place
called Chapel Field formerly stood a chantry chapel,
the remains of which have been oonw into a cow-

- DUNTISH, a tything in the parish and hundred of
BuckraNp-Newrox, Cerne sub-division of the county
-of Dorser, 114 miles (N. by W.) from Dorchester, con-
taining 101 inhabitants. There is a circular camp of
ten acres, in which arms and Roman coins have been
discovered,

- DUNTON, a parish in the hundred of BIGGLESWADE,
county of Beprorp, 34 miles (E. by 8.) from Biggles-
wade, ing, with Millo, 332 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the, archdeaconry
of Bedford, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £10, Earl Spencer was patron in 1806. The
«church is dedicated to St. Mary.

- DUNTON, a parish in the hundred of CorTESLOE,
county of BuckiNGHAM, 5 miles ('i's.hz.ll:y E.) from Win-
slow, containing 98 inhabitants. iving is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £9. 9. 7. Earl
Spencer was patron in 1817, The church is dedicated
to St. Martin.,

. DUNTON, a parish in the hundred of BarsTaBLE,
county of Essex, 34 miles (N.N.W.) from Horndon on
the Hill, containing 133 inhabitants. The living is a
xectory, in the conry of Essex, and diocese of

London, rated in the king's books at £14, 13. 4., and in
the patronage {D‘tﬁﬁ%’:«iﬁ and Fellows of King's
College, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to St.

et Y

)
living

DUNTSBOURN-ROUSE, a parish in the hundred
of CrowTHORNE and MiNETY, county of GLOUCESTER,
34 miles (N,W. by N.) from Cirencester, containing 100
inhabitants, The living is @ rectory, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king’s
books at £8, 14. 9L, and in the patro of the
President and Fellows of Corpus Christi College, Oxford.
The church is dedicated to St. Michael, The Roman

road Ermin-street crosses this parish.
DUNWICH, a sea-port, S

borough, (formerly a market B

town), and parish, having se-

parate jurisdiction, locally in

the hundred  of Blything, N
county of SurroLx, 29 miles SEES
(N.E.) from Ipswich, and 98 N
(N.E.) from London, con- \
taining 200 inhabitants. It
is supposed by some to have.
been a town of the Britons,
or a Roman station; this :
opinion having been chiefly grounded on the discovery
of some Roman coins. During the Heptarchy it was a
place of great importance, having been the m: is of
East Anglia, and the seat of a bishop's see. By the -
Sq(;:ons i;was called Doger;al:c-cea:ter, or Donmoc, whence
is derived its present appellation. Sigebert, King of the
East Angles, having been convertedlg:o Christianity in
630, founded a .bishoprick at Dunwich, which was held
by Felix, a Burgundian, and a succession of prelates
till about the middle of the ninth century, when this
part of the country was devastated by the Danes. At
the time of the Norman survey it was a place of
considerable importance, having an extensive her-
ring fishery, as the king received from the burgesses
annually £ 50, and sixty thousand herrings. The town
had anciently a mint ; and William of Newburgh, who
wrote in the reign of Henry II., styles it a wealthy and

- famous sea-port. In the reign of Richard L, a fine

of one thousand and sixty marks was levied on the
town, because the inhabitants had supplied the king's
enemies with corn; and Ipswich and Yarmouth were
two hundred marks each for the same offence ;
an estimate may be formed of the relative im-
-of this place. During the wars of the barons
John, it was fortified with 1.
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of a recorder, two bailiffs, two assistant justices, twelve
capital burgesses, a coroner, town clerk, and serjeant at
mace, with other inferior officers, who are all elected
annually on the 20th of August, and sworn into office
on the 29th of September. - The bailiffs and assistant
justices (who are the bailiffs for the preceding year),
are magistrates for the borough, exercising exclusive
jurisdiction. The: are empowered to hold
courts of assize amlmion, the yearly sessions being
held in October. There 'is an admiralty court, at which
the bailiffs and assistant justices preside ; also a court of
requests for the recovery of debts under 40s. within the
borough.  The freedom of the borough is inherited by
the eldest sons of freemen, born while their fathers
possessed that privilege, or it may be obtained by gift
of the freemen at large. The borough has sent members

“to parliament ever since the 23rd of Edward I. The
lidlt of election is vested in the resident freemen not re-

ceiving alms: the number of voters is fourteen. The bai-
liffis are the returning officers. The market, which was held
on Monday, has been discontinued ; but there is an annual
fair on the 25th of July. Several small boats are employ-
ed in the herring fishery, and there ure fish-houses, where
herrmgs and sprats are dried, and prepared for sale,

Dunwich anciently contained six parish churches, but

- they have all been entirely destroyed, except that of All
' Saints, of which only the walls and a square tower re-
' main : it is now reduced to a single parish, the living
" of which is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
. Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, and in the patronage of
- Lord Huntingfield and Colonel Baine. The old church,
dedicated to All Saints, being dilapidated, the erection

of anew one was commenced in 1826 : it is built of

. white brick, with an octagonal tower, the expense having
been defrayed by subscription among the inhabitants.
An hospital for lepers, dedicated to St. James, was
founded here o early as the reign of Richard L., and
richly endowed : the revenue was reduced to £26
per anuum, but is mow £80, which is divided among
4 few of the indigent poor. There was another anci-
ent hospital, called Maison Dieu, a great part of the
property belonging to which having been lost, through
the encroachment of the sea, it has been united to
the other charity. A convent of Franciscan friars

-was founded here in the reign of Henry IIL, of whlch
there are remains of the walls and two gateways;
there were also a Dominican convent, and a

of  the since entirely destroy-
d'«mwmﬁleh?mmt wﬁe Etﬂmf
Smdbrol(e. IR i
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more immediately is deduced its MW
The earliest account of this place is in 995, when the
monks of Lindisfarne, or Holy Island, ‘wﬂouhd.u.
moved to Chester le Street, and afterwards to Ripen,

for sanctuary from the violence of Danish

were returning to their church at Chuterg

after an absence of four months, with the disinterred

body of St. Cuthbert, which. had . been: bllﬁed at Lin-
disfarne, in 68 ; according to the superstitious le-
gend, on their arrival at the spot where Durham
now stands, a miraculous - interposition rendered the
carriage which conveyed the body, anil other relics, im-
moveable, and this incident they construed into a divine
prohibition: against the return of the saint's remains to
their former resting-place.  They likewise interpreted
some other circumstances into an intimation that Dun..
holme was destined to- receive the sacred relics; and
there are still some. emblematic devices on the west
corner tower of the east transept of the cathedral, de-
signed to commemorate this occurrence. They forth-
with proceeded to construct a sort of ark, or tabernacle,
of wicker-work, wherein they ' deposited the: saint’s
body ; they subsequently erected a more appropriate
edifice, called the White Church, and, three years after
their arrival, a stone church was built by Bishop Aldun,
and dedicated to St. Cuthbert, whose remains  were
then removed and enshrined in it. Determined on
permanent residence, these strangers cleared away the
trees which skirted the hill, and began to build sub-
stantial houses ; thus arose the Saxon town of. Dun.
holme, about the commencement of § ‘cent
the increase of which, both in'by .1,
was so rapid, that in 1040, being?
tified, Duncan of Scotland besilfged
were totally vanquished, and the h
leaders, who M’lhfn or captured

uponthee:ty,bnw‘ 0
fled, and the monks L Mm
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years, to Lindisfarne, on which
ly related that the sea retired,

pedition against of Scotland, in 1072, appointed
Walcher, a Norman, to the bishoprick, and ordered a
fortress to be erected here, to overawe the inhabitants, and
form a barvier to the northern territories. This prelate

) the earldom of Northumberland, assumed the
title: of Count Palatine, and, by uniting temporal and
ecclesiastical power, excited an insurrection, in which he
was slain. During the protracted warfare which fol-
lowed this , Carilepho, who had succeeded to
the see, took part with Malcolm, against William, and
at its termination fled to Normandy. William Rufus
seized on the temporalties, and appointed John de Tail-
bois and Ernesius de Burone, governors of the castle
and palatinate : in 1091, the bishop was restored. The
shrine of St.Cuthbert having been greatly enriched under
the six prelates who preceded Carilepho, that bishop,
having brought from Normandy the plan of a new
ehumi, pulled down the old one, and began the present

3 4

1093,

edifice, the foundation of which was laid by King Mal-
mbunepho ‘and Turgot the prior, on the 11th of

tilding having taken upwards of

Bishop Ralph Flambard
ins to the new church,
choir for their recep-
: s of the city and castle,

‘bridge. During his episcopacy,
considerable injury from fire. In

5l ‘ .'M«ﬂ' D‘Vid, ’m‘ﬂf \'w‘ la.nd, with
of congress, were entertained by the citizens,

ciation of peace between d and Scot-
2o the. L of Henry IL., Bishop sey
! ,d thatmonarcm

castle, and at the bishop’s
b wacant. To this bishop the

‘improvements, particularly
idge, and the extension of the
King John re-

3

d & council here, to dispose of the estates of
itish barons, after the victory of Falkirk;
m A "m l 1

treasure, M he

Durham, as a mediator
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issuing from it his summons for the military tenants to
attend him on a northern expedition. In 1404, two peers
md‘tyOknlgh_nwere executed here for ina
conspiracy against Henry IV. On the liberation and
marriage of James 1. of Scotland, in 1424, Durham
was erowded with the nobility : the hostages were re-
ceived here, and the King and Queen of Scotland re-
mai_ned in the city a'considerable time. About this
period the plague commenced, and continued to rage
for five years; during which, the assizes and all ic
g tem blies were suspended, and several thousands of the
il fabitants of the city and its vicinity fell victims to it.
B#iring the episcopacy of Neville, the English and Scottish
delegates held several meetings here : in 1448, Henry VI.
came on a pilgrimage to the shrine of St. Cuthbert: in
1463, Lord Montague and his army were quartered at
Durham, -previously to the battle of Hedgeley Moor ;
and in 1503, Bishop Fox entertained Margaret, daughter
of Henry VIL, with other distinguished , in
the great hall of his palace, on her way to Scotland,

where she was married to James IV. = At the close of the

rebellion under the Nevilles, in the reign of Elizabeth,

sixty-gix persons were executed in the city; and from

1589 to 1597, with some slight intermission, the plague

again raged in it,  In 1608, James I. was presented by

the mayor with a gold cup on entering the city; and

in 1633, Bishop Morton entertained Charles I. and his

retinue during his residence here, at the daily expense of
£1500. After the battle of Newburn, in 1640, when

the Scottish army entered England, the city of Durham

became almost utterly depopulated.

The city is about one mile in length, and as much in
breadth, and from the peculiar course of the river, which
environs it in the form of a horse-shoe, it is peninsular,
occupying a considerable eminence, which is surmount-
ed by the cathedral and the remains of the ancient castle,
now used ‘as the bishop’s palace, together with other
ecclesiastical residences. These are immediately sur-
rounded by the streets called the North and South Baileys,
enclosed within the remains of the old city walls, and
skirted by sloping gardens, which descend to the brink
of the river, on each side of which are public walks
of extreme beauty, called the Banks, formed along the
winding margin of the river, and approached by an
avenue from Palace Green, a open area before the
cathedral. Framwell-gate bridge, situated at the northern
extremity of the city, having one pier and two elliptie
and finely proportioned arches of minety feet span,

‘to the low shores on each id;;m erected

Bishop Flambard, about 1120: a tower gate-
way, which formerly stood at the end of this bridge,
next the city, was t‘:kenmn %7& Elvet bridge,
of eight arches, was built about 1170 by Bishop Pudsey,

indulgence to all mtﬂbutmoa;i:ﬁ'*-'fm, #5” ‘hf'

tﬂ%ﬂm




DUR

liam the Conqueror, in 1072 : it has undergone various
alterations and additions at different periods : the oldest
portion of it is the keep, now a mere shell, in the form
of an i octagon, ing the summit of an
artificial mount, around which are three terraces, com-
manding a beautiful view of the city and its environs.
The great north gateway was used ‘as a county gaol
till 1820, when itmmnd,md its site occupied, on
the west side, bya st library and news-room,
and on the eutbylbops, with a spacious assembly-
room over them. = The habitable part consists of a large
mass of of almost every date from the Norman
to- the present time. The late Bishop Barrington has
thrown open seme fine inner Norman doors, previously
ooneulod, ‘but the interior in general is fitted up in a
style subsequent to the reign of Elizabeth. The town is
paved, flagged, lighted with gas, and watched under the
direction of commissioners appointed under acts of
parliament passed in the 80th of George III. and the 3rd
f George IV. = The pant, or public fountam, stands
in the centre of the market-place, and is surmounted
by a statue ‘of Neptune riding on a dolphin, which was
there in 1729 : the reservoir is of an octagonal
form. In the year 1450, an excellent spring of water,
situated in his manor of Sidgate, was granted to the
city for ever, -by Thomas Bellingham, Esq., whence
. the water is ‘conveyed through pipes into the reservoir.
There is a theatre in Sadler-street, built in 1791 ; and
in this street is also a mechanics’ library, established in
1825 : the race-ground is near Old Elvet, where the races
are held in May, and continue four days: they appear
| to have been established in the reign of Charles 11.
| The trade of Durham was formerly much more ex.-
tensive than it is at present ; a cotton manufactory, which
existed previously to 1804, was in that year destroyed by
fire. - Here are manufactories for stuffs and carpets, for
spinning and combing wool, a brass-foundry, and two

i.

for hats, formerly the house of correc-
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iron-foundries ; and on the north side of Elvet bridge N
i

onhe'mm, R tha Blshiop o Dvshnan. T

e

pointed under the statute of
laws, who, under the title of
ma.rkets, kept, the gen.l
vince, In 1377,
imposing certain duties on wares com:

as a fund for keeping the walls and puv
pair. A charter of incorporation was granted in Lsﬂﬁ,by
Bishop Pilkington, vesting the government in an alder-
man and ve burgesses, and authorising a weekly
market and three annual fairs: in 1602, Bishop Mat-
thew granted a new charter, whereby the body politic
and corporate was made to consist of a mayor, twelve
aldermen, and a common council, with divers privi-
leges, power to purchase lands, and a common seal.
This was confirmed by James 1., and several charters
were subsequently obtained. The charter of 1602 con
tinved in force till 1684, when Bishop Crewe grant-
ed a new one, which, owing to some informality, was
set aside, and the former being restored, subgisted
till 1761, when the corporation was dissolved, in conse-
yuence of irregularities in the election of the mayor and
other members ; the city was then placed under the
government of a bailiff, till Bishop Egerton granted a
new charter in 1780, which is still in force. This char-
ter ordains that the corporation shall consist of a mayor,
twelve aldermen, twenty-four common council-men, with
a recorder; town clerk, two serjeants at mace, and other
inferior officers, under the designation of “ The Mayor,
Aldermen, and Commonalfy of Durham and Framwell-
gate.” The election of the ma
on the first Mond or th

of ¢
authonty the mwmngia
within the city. The cor-
covery of debts under 40s. A court of pleas for th mn:t';
o of p e
mxshddhymphmeverythmweoh,wg
trials twice a year beforg the judges tnvellmg
circuit ; it is aguperior court of
in which sums ] s

5.
g
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't of parliament, in 1673, since which
has returned two members : the freedom
birth for all the sons of freemen of two
companies; and for the eldest sons only of
ring to the remaining eleven, and by servi-
ight of election belongs to the members of the
on and the freemen, resident and non-resident,
ing to dbout twelve hundred; the mayor is the

' bishoprick of Durham .
is :z&of the most wealthy in
the kingdom : it includes the
county of Durham, and all
Northumberland (excepting Qg
those parishes which are Zsg
within the peculiar jurisdic- ©¥
tion of Hexham), and the 2«
parishes of Alston-Moor, (&%
in Cumberland, and Craike

and Howden, in Yorkshire,
making a total of oune hun-
dred and thirty-five parishes, -
whereof eighty-seven are impropriate ; there are two
archdeaconries, and nine deaneries. This see has given
eight saints and one cardinal to the church of Rome ; one
lord chief justice, five lord chancellors, three lord trea-
surers, oneé principal secretary of state, one chancellor to
the University of Oxford, and two masters of the rolls, to
the British nation. The Bighop of Durham is a secular
and and Count Palatine of
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by fifty; the height of the central tower two hundred
and twelve, and that of the western towers mhz
orty-three. The general character of
largest portion of this cathedral is Norman, of a very
bold character, with insertions in all the English styles,
The fanndhtionm laid on the 2nd of August, 1098,
by Bishop Carilepho; and the chapel of Galilee, or thé
Lady chapel, at the western end, was built by Bishop
Pudsey, who had previously commenced the erection
of a chapel at the eastern end of the edifice, for the
diewotional exercises ofofﬁumles, which was - discon-
tin in consequence the prevailing superstition
of those times. The north aisle was for a long time
used as a depository for wills, where also the register-
office was kept prior to the erection of the present build-
ing in 1822; but it has been re-united to the fabric, and
divine service is performed in it every Sunday evening
during the summer months. The eastern portion of the
choir, called the Chapel of the Nine Altars, is in the early
English style, having a large decorated window at the
north end : the large west window, and that of the
north transept, are also of the decorated character, with
rich eomposition’; and in various parts of“the cathe-
dral are many windows of a similar style, with fine
tracery inserted in the openings, of earlier date. The
two western towers are Norman below, the upper por-
tions English, with an intermixture of semicircular and
pointed arches ; to these have been added, during the
late repair, pinnacles and a pierced battlement. The
great central tower is very lofty ; of later English ar-
chitecture above the nave, with Norman piers and
arches below; and the upper story is short in com-

- parison with the base: this tower has recently under-

gone an entire repair. The nave is magnificent in its
proportions, and very bold in its details. The central

_tower is open to a great height, and although in other

rts the effect is diminished, owing to the situation of
hurch not permitting a western entrance, and the
igion between the Galilee and the nave, this portion

ingly fine. The organ-screen, elaborately carved
is of Italian character, which by no means harmo-

, where stood the gorgeous
thbert, e:eycted over the place where his
‘of some al-
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At the time of the dissolutlm,H : Wlntehead held Oswald, endowed with £40 per annum nvutq bma
the priory, which was then rated a s factwn, MM%Q& : :
of the ter

“annum ; and on the 12th of M
granted his. fmmdmmcm
its dedication from St. WyandSt cuehbert to that
of Christ and St. Mary, He instituted a dean and
twelve prebendaries as 3 granted
them the site of the » ig

Iy corporate, and

given by ‘the Dean z\ndChapter who_are

e e e
school, an \ oq;'s. s servant
u%nht poor men egﬁm d'by the establishment,
connexion w:th “the cithedm’t mtb €3
'b;tm%ﬁyﬁf of cleriymen-. of £25 per a.n&m each
“at s and £50 cach per annum, at” either wof ﬁ!e
ities,
m of the institution: it bas also five sahofarslilpa,
Cof £10 per annum each, at Peter House, €
“founded. by Jehn, Cosims, D.D., Blsbop of .
-one scholarship, of £16 per annum, at Bm Hég
Cambndg‘:hfounded by the Rev. Dr. M“cl
jointly with the school at Newcastle upon X fbr‘
‘which also, and for this school, Dr. Hartwell beq\erthed.
o
e‘&hteen boys. on the .fonndat}on,

mlbmﬁxty omareg_ularqmm‘ﬁge

The, -city comprises following gans‘hes, all in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Durham, viz., St Giles',
or _Gillegate, a . curacy, endowed with £400
‘private benefaction, £400 xo;m’l y, ‘and £1000

parliamentary grant, and in t.he p@t‘ronnge of the Mar-
quis ﬁ:)f g;ondondig 3 hias v;;xoushporuons
in e Norman eou tecture, but the gene-
ral style resembles the Galilee chapel
St. Mary's le Bow, No,tthBiiley, a rectory not in charge
endowed with £400 private benefaction, ﬁzoq
bounty, and £1100 parliamentary. grant, a _
patronage of the Archdeacon,of North mberland :
church, which was rebuilt in 1685, is su
the site of t} Melm wlueh SLC

Bliley,altctory tméhrge

tion, and
nage of the Crownﬂm

::ggo private benefactnon, :
3 liamentary grant,
gg ndonderry

situated on the north side

um, tobe divided between two exhibitioners
mﬂity. ‘and tenable for five years.. iq ad-— i

of ‘the-cathedral. s
e

“ancient Nm'mnn stmetnve, with & low ?m
has undergone much alteration at dih“eunt
There are places of worship for the Society of Fri
Independents, Primitive and Wesleyan E:
Roman Catholics, the last having evected aw
edifice in1826, which has a stained window i
Christ in the go.rden of Gethsémane.
h,addmon to the cathedm
are the united Bl b
Clay-path:r ted
: subscription, and opened in 1812. To this insti-
. Bishop Bamngton mbacribed £309. 17., being
! ground o Wh:ch it. was
v s about one

éc:m lf,vaﬁl-lim, H\ﬂ i‘ -oib,ee_ E i
X wn £20 per [ ting

dren. of’ St. %I'des pamh and Snnday%»at-
‘tached to.some of the religious communities ; it is cal-
culated tha, altogether, the total number of children re-
céiving gratuitous instruction in this city and its suburbs
i‘iage—thousand and seventy-two, The infumary is a
spacious building in Allergate, erected by subscription
in 1792, on a piece of ground given by Thomas Wilkin-
qoh, Esq., of Coxhoe : the average annual expenditure
: out £800 : it is 8 ed by annual mbscriphons
and onations, Palace

founded in IGQB by

and fqur DOg

converted into tqnq‘;x
tors to theponp AmMOn
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at £186. 0. 10 : they consist of a gateway with pointed
arches. The manor-house of Houghall, built by Prior
Hotoun, is about a mile from the city ; and two miles
distant is Beautrove, now Butterby, remarkable for
its beauty and natural curiosities. In the moat sur-
rounding the old mansion, a coat of mail was dis-
covered, and in an adjoining field; the supposed site
of an ancient hospital, several stone coffins and jars
have been dug up. Here are saline, sulphureous, and
chalybeate springs, the former of whicheare much fre-
quented by persons who drink the waters medicinally.
A mile westward from the city is the fragment of aonce
beautiful cross, called Nevill's cross, erected by Ralph,
Lord Nevill, in commemoration of a battle in 1346, in
which David Bruce, King of Scotland, was taken prisoner.
The following literary persons were natives of Durham,
Robert Hegg, author of the legend of St. Cuthbert, &c.;
John Hall, a celebrated English poet of the seventeenth
century, who, besides a volume of poems published a
translation of Eugenius; Dr. Richard Grey, author of
the Memoria Technica, and several other works, born
in 1693 ; William Eden, Lord Auckland, a distinguished
statesman and diplomatist. Durham gives the title of
baron to the Lambton family, the present representative
of which was raised to the peerage by this title in Janu-
ary, 1828,

DURHAM (COUNTY of), a maritime county and
a county palatine, bos on the north by the county
f D nd, q e east by the German ocean,
n h e county of York, and on the west
‘ ‘Westmorland and. Cumberland : it

‘to 55988° (N. Lat.), and from

Lony), includes, without

“and
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built of timber, and covered with reeds, after the manner
of those in Scotland. At this period the Scottish church
had not acknowledged the ecclesiastical superiority
claimed by the bishops of the Romish church; for, at a
synod held in the abbey of Whitby, in 664, in the pre-
sence of Oswy, King of Northumberland, Colman, the suc-
cessor of Finan, defended the regulations and the inde-
pendence of his own church, against Wilfrid, afterwards
Archbishop of York, who contended for the supremacy of
Rome : the decision of the assembly, however, was in
favour of the latter ; the observance of the Romish rites
was established, and Colman, in consequence, relinquish-
ed the see, and returned into Scotland: he was succeeded
by Tuda, who died within the same year, and was the
last of the Scottish bishops of Lindisfarne ; his succes-
sors in the Northumbrian diocese fixing their residence
at York, On pretence, however, of the inconvenient
extent of that diocese, Theodore, Archbishop of Canter-
bury, erected Lindisfarne into a separate see, bestowing
on it the spiritual jurisdiction of the province of Ber-
nicia, and confining that of the see of York to the
southern province of Deira. The Danish conquests
and devastations in that part of England, about the
close of the eighth century, occasioned the cathedral
and monastery of Lindisfarne to be abandoned, and
when the exertions of Alfred had triumphed over the
invaders, Chester le Street, as being more securely situ-
ated, was chosen for the future residence of the eccle-
siastics, and the whole county between the Tees and the
Tyne was added to the patrimony of St. Cuthbert, who
had been the second bishop of the new diocese of Lin-
disfarne, and who, having been for his great sanctity ca-
nonized after his death, was now regarded as the patron
saint of the diocese : it was at the same time provided,
that whatever lands should thereafter accrue to the see

m by purchase or benefaction, should be held by the sue-

of . of territory

- cessors of St. Cuthbert, discharged of every temporal

service, The Danish invasions in the reign of Ethelred
‘compelled the bishop and his ecclesiastics, in 995, to de-
sert Chester le Street, and take shelter in the monastery
of Ripon ; and on the return of peace the see was again
removed from Chester to a place called Dunholme, still
more strongly and securely situated. The gifts and ob-

of the present city of Durham. At the

-

* same time the patrimony of St.Cuthbert also reccived

'ge accessions of territory from the donations of two
duals.  The Danish sovereign, Canute, visited ' the
shrine of St. Cuthbert, and made munificent donations
to the bishoprick. In the twentieth year
of Bislop Eadmund, the Scots made an irruption as far

g as Durham, where they lost most of their troops,

At the time of the Norman Conquest, Bishop Egelwin,

together with the. Earls Edwin and Morcar, submitted

to William, and swore allegiance to him at York. The
possession of the northeen portion of the Northmbm
province, however, was considered as very insecure, and
the task of its entire subjugation was soon after en-
trusted by the Conqueror to Robe
nobleman, who, in carrying
was met on the confines of |
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licentiousness, he and his followers were massacred in
an insurrection of the inhabitants. William, enraged at
this, marched northward in person, and devastated the
whole country, devoting the inhabitants to military exe-
cution. The royal troops were scarcely withdrawn when
Malcolm, King of Scotland, at the head of a marauding
army, penetrated through Cumberland into Cleveland
and the bishoprick, ravaged Teesdale, and burned the
towns and monasteries of Hartlepool and Wearmouth.
Under the Norman yoke, the patrimony of the church
was obliged, equally with the possessions of the laity, to
provide soldiers and military aids ; and Bishop fgel-
win, having once more engaged in the enterprise of the
Earls Edwin and Morcar, was taken, through treachery,
with the other heads of his'party, in the Isle of Ely, and
sent prisoner to Abingdon, where he died in confinement.
Shortly afterwards occurred the remarkable insurrection,
in which the prelate Walcher, who had been appointed
by the Conqueror to succeed the last mentioned bishop,
was put to death by the insurgents at Gateshead. A se-
cond plundering of the bishoprick ensued, no less dread-
ful than the first ; the Norman army being led by Eudes,
or Odo, the mllltary bishop of Baieux. After the per-
manent establishment of the Norman rule over all the
provinces of England, the calamities which for several
centuries most seriously afflicted this = county, were
owing to the frequent incursions of the Scots, to whose
devastations it was exposed by its vicinity to the border;
hence the military transactions within the county during
that long period, including the various marches of the
English forces through this territory in their operations
against the Scots, are much too numerous to recount ;
the most remarkable of them seems to have been the
battle of Nevill's Cross, fought on Red hills, on the 17th
of October, 1346, between David, King of Scotland, an

Philippa, Queen of Edward IIL, assisted by Ralph, Lord

Nevill, in which the Scottish king was taken prison

er, with the loss of from fifteen to twenty tpoumﬂ;
men, X

During the parliamentary war, the Scottwh
under Lesley, passed the Tyne at Newburn, au,&
of A t, 1640, after defeating the king's troops under

onway, § tatxoned there to oppose t i
next morning the latter abandoned New
sued their march through this count
to jom the main body of the royal arm;

ntgh\mder Lord Strafford. The Sce

e same day, thus obtained pos
thumberland and Durham; and the

and deserted by the regulu'
offered no farther opposition.

which was soon after entered
first neluninnry article wn, )

ham md Northumberhq "
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the clergy deserted the cathedral, and the see and
copal government of Durham were now ﬂﬂud}y
solved ; the whole revenue of the former was seized by
the Scots, the bishop's officers fled or were displaced,
and the administration of the county passed entirely
into the hands of the invaders, who, not long after, were
succeeded by the parliamentary commissioners for treat-
ing with the second Scottish army, under David Lesley.
In November, 1642, the Earl of Newcastle formed the
counties of Ndrthumberland, Durham, Cumberland, and
Westmorland, and the town of Newcastle, into an asgo-~
ciation for the king's service : in the month of December,
having been ordered to lead his forces towards York,
he began his march from Newcastle, and the next day,
after a skirmish of several hours with Captain Hotham,
passed the Tyne at Pier's bridge, This county was
not subsequently the scene of any action of import-
ance until the second entry of the Scottish army into
England, which crossed the Tyne on the 28th of Fe
bruary, 1644, at the three fords of Ovingham, Bywell,
and Eltringham, and entered Sunderland on the 4th of
March. The Marquis of Newcastle, with the Yorkshire
cavalry under Sir George Lucas, being in possession of
the city of Durham, kept them in check until the disas-
ters of the royal party in Yorkshire occasioned the re-
cal of the marquis from the north, and his departure
from this county, by way of Pier's bridge, on the l4th
of April. On the 20th, Lesley joined the parliame
forces under Fairfax at Tadcaster. .The
Newcastle on the 19th of Octeber fo
bishoprick of Durham entirely under the
; and from t, i

[ he Scots had _
King uotheEnghahpq nent,
“on the 3rd of February frmNtwm
: ‘;gmtheﬂhtoAuckland and on the 5th to
 his way to Holdenby House.
“morthe ‘txe- which, in 1&&%
y the royabsta in the
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lington, Easington, and Stockton. It rose gradually out
of the ancient province of Northumberland, together
with' the increasing patrimony of the church of St.
Cuthbert, and besides its' principal portion, lying be-
tween ‘the rivers Tyne, Tees, and Darwent, includes
several : scattered 'members of that patrimony, viz.,
Norhamshire arid Islandshire, including Holy Island
and the Farne Isles, and a portion of the mainland,
extending from the Tweed on the north and north-west,
to the sea on the east, and separated from Northum-
berland on the south, partly by the course of the Till,
and partly by an i line; and Bedlingtonshire,
lying in the heart of Northumberland, betwixt the
rivers Blyth and Wansbeck : these are usually termed
the north bishoprick, and are included in Chester ward
besides the insulated territory of Craike, locally in the wa-
pentake of Bulmer, in Yorkshire. The county contains the
city of Durham, and the market towns of Barnard-Castle,
Bishop-Auckland, Sunderland, Darlington, Gateshead,
Hartlepool, Sedgefield, South Shields, Staindrop, Stan-
hope, Stockton upon Tees, and Walsingham, of which
number, Hartlepool, South Shields, Stockton upon Tees,
and Sunderland, are sea-ports. Two knights are return-
ed to parliament for the county palatine, and two repre-
sentatives for the city of Durham. The county members
are elected at Durham. This county is included in the
northern circuit : the assizes and the quarter sessions are
held at Durham, where stands the county gaol and house
of correction. There are seventy-four acting magistrates,
y tes: the county for the year ending
: pounted to £ 94,417, 13., the ex-
6, of which £76,702. 17., was

the Saxon earl, Wal-

then, or at_some pe-
tacit gsion, the
Walcher to the same

gantly exercised by his
hese powers at that

o on the coast, either in

ning  trict exten
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lawries, and of the appointment of the justices of the
peace and of assize: all writs were directed to run in
the king's name, and the ancient form of indictment,
“ Contra pacem Episcopi," was altered to the usual one,
“Against the King's peace;" and all sheriffs, bailiffs,
and other officers, were made amenable to the general
laws of the realm. The right of altering all processes
within the franchise was reserved to the bishop, and
it was directed that the bishop and his temporal chan-
cellor should be always, ipso facto, two of the justices
of the peace. The next invasion of the rights of the
bishgprick was in the following reign, by the contrivance
of Dudley, Duke of Northumberland, when, on the 21st
of March, 1553, a bill was read for suppressing the
bishoprick of Durham; and “for the better preaching of
God's Holy Word in those parts,” it was proposed that
two bishopricks should be endowed in that diocese,
one at Durham, with a revenue of two thousand marks,
the other at Newcastle, with a revenue of one thousand
marks ; and by a patent, dated in May of the same
year, the duke was appointed steward of all the remain-
ing revenues of the bishoprick. On the accession of
Mary, the bishoprick of Durham was restored by act of
parliament ; but the influence of its bishop, Tunstall,
was successfully exerted in screening the objects of re-
ligious persecution, so that no person suffered for heresy
within the limits of his extensive diocese. In conse

quence of the ordinance for the total abolition of epis-
copacy, which passed both houses of parliament on the
9th of October, 1646, followed by an order for the sale
of bishops’ lands for the use of the commonwealth, the
palatinate of Durham was dissolved, and from that year
a sheriff for the county was annually appointed by par-
liament, who accounted to the public treasury : the an-

cient palatine courts of law and equity were suspended,
and commissioners appointed to sit on gaol deliveries :
a seneschal was also appointed for the court of halmote,

. who acted as such in the name of the different persons
- by whom the copyhold manors of the see had been

purchased. The county, which, owing to its palatine pri-
vileges, had never before sent knights or burgesses to
parliament, was represented in Cromwell's three parlia-
ments of 1653, 1654, and 1656. The Restoration pro-
duced the restitution of the temporalties and privileges
of the see, on the 14th of December, 1660. In the reign
of Charles I1., a bill was passed to enable the county
palatine and city of Durham to send knights and bur- -

ses to parliament, the first elections in pursuance of
which took place in 1675,

The general aspect of the coast is bare and dreary;
but between the swells of country lie numerous deep
and narrow dells, the scenery of which is of a more
pleasing character, Bvery brook which falls.into the
sea has its banks ¢ d with a profusion of romantic
objects : the vales cing imperceptibly together
with the course of the reamlets, sometimes contract
into marrow glens, scarcely affording a single rugged

foot-path; sometimes open { ‘amphithe es
. of roek, covered with nativ: hazel, or deepen into
ravines resembling the bed terminating

outlets, where the stream
the wildest and .most g
extending from the
Fell, whieh is the hig
o
j
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three thousand four hundred feet above the level of the been of the short-horned kind, the best - xnl
sea), and in which the rise is tolerably uniform from which having been long found on both sides w©
the coast to the western mountains, there is necessarily nver'l‘eec,hsfwamnddenblepdodbﬂhmby
a considerable variety of climate, the appellation of “ the Tees-water breed.” = The Jower
The soil varies by such imperceptible degrees, as to parts of the county were formerly famed for the
render it difficult to describe allits diversities; clay, loam, largest breed of sheep in the kmgdom, ‘many of
and peat, may, however, be considered as the principal weighing from fifty pounds to sixty pounds a quarter;
heads of classification. The south-eastern part of the but of late years, the introduction of the Leicestershire
county, from the mouth of the Tees to a few miles west breed has reduced the size of the Durham sheep, and
of Stockton, and thence by Redmarshall, Wolviston, improved the quality of their mutton : the rot is a ma-
Elwick, and as far north as Hart, consists of a strong, lady in this animal very extensively felt over a large
fertile, clayey loam, which produces good crops of portion of the county. The south-eastern part of Dup-
wheat, beans, and clover, and has rich old grazing pas- ham, like the adjoining part of Yorkshire, has long been
tures. Westward from this, as far as Sedgefield, Trim- celebrated for a valuable breed of ‘draught horses, with
don, and Eppleton, and northward nearly to Sunder- well-formed carcases, and strong, sinewy, light legs,
land, the soil is chiefly a stubborn unprofitable elay, known by the name of “ Cleveland bays.” The most
which produces thin crops of corn, and, when suffered prevailing breeds of swine are, the Berkshire black and
t0 remain in grass, yields a herbage which scarcely any white, which are large-boned, and a small white sort,
kind of stock will eat, except when compelled by hunger. bred in Liecestershire and Norfolk, which have a great
A clayey soil, of an intermediate quality exists in nu- propensity to fatten, and have very little offal.  The
merous parts of the county. The deep, dry, fertile wastes, with very few exceptions, consist of heathy
loams are generally found in the vicinity of rivers, as moors; they are all situated in the western and moun-
in the vales of Tees, Skern, Tyne, and their tributary tainous part of the county, and are almost invariably
streams; those on the Wear are of a more sandy nature: covered with the common heath, or ling: the use
dry fertile loams are also found in small patches in of the greater part is in depasturing sheep of the
many other parts of the county. The limestone district, black-faced kind. The improvable moors, fells, or
extending from near Sunderland, by Houghton le Spring, commons, have chiefly been divided and enclosed. The
Kelloe, Coxhoe, Ferry-Hill, and to Merrington, is mostly principal embankment is that of Saltholm and Billing-
a dry, but not a productive loam, being very different ham marsh, near the mouth of the Tees, extending four
from that which covers the limestone in the western miles; and enclosing one thousand four hundred cres..

parts of the county, where there are some of the most
fertile soils and best grazing lands in the north of Eng-

The first agncultuml society ewmhed inth
was at Darlington, in 1783, was  denomina

land. A moist soft loam, lying on a yellow ochreous clay, Agricultural Society for the
impervious to water and unfavourable to vegetation, is four pneral meetings anm
very extmulvely distributed throngh many parts of the two
county, and is known by the provincial epithet of “water-
shaken :" it mgenen.lly thin, and the water being kept so
near the surface occasions the plants to be thrown out
by frost. The peaty soil is most prevalent in the western ' est
parts of the county, the greater portion of the moors the,‘
which have been enclosed being of that description; it is ﬂle ]

accompanied with sub-strata of yellowoﬁmﬁ 1

. Besides these, a socwty‘for
as formed in 1803, and ‘to

stmaybemenhonedthatrye 1sveryrarelymltimd ‘ M 8-

alone, as the proportion of sandy soil suitable to the Mdnim,wdm few ashes : that in the
growth of that species of grain, is very small ; but a mix- western part of th is L
ture of rye and wheat, provincially termed maglin, or mis- coal - district is - chief
len is very y produced. Mustard was collieries of Jarrow;
-uhcnlmuned in the county, and the“Durham musterd” Ferry Hill ; on ﬂle
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trade on the Tyne, was about two thousand. The coal
trade also affords employment to a great number of work-
men of various i ‘such as carpenters, masons,
smiths, founders, rope-makers, ship-builders, &c. Of
the land-sale collieries the most valuable are those
on the gouth side of the county, from which the south-
ern part of Durham, and the northern parts of Yorkshire,
are supplied. The quantity of coal obtained in the
county annually, has been estimated to be, in the
water-sale collieries, one million three hundred and
thirty-three thousand chaldrons, of thirty-six bushels,
affording employment to seven thousand and eleven
pitmen; and in the land-sale collieries, one hundred

and forty-seven thousand and eighty chaldrons, em-’

ploying three hundred and eighty-two pitmen : the
total number of men employed, including the keelmen,
&e., on the two rivers, was ten thousand six hundred
and fifty. * The coal was formerly drawn out of the pits
by horses, eight being frequently employed for that
purpose where the shafts were deep ; but within the last
thirty years, machines have been erected for drawing
them by steam, which are now in general use. The lead
mines are situated in the western part of the county,
and begin a little westward of the line where the coal
district terminates. The number of lead mines in
operation in 1809 was, in Tees dale, forty-eight; in
Wear dale, thirty-eight; and in the vale of Derwent
four : from many of these little ore was obtained, and
some werg being worked at a considerable loss. The
orve is wrought by the bing of eight hundred weight,

d four bings of ¢an ore generally produce a ton of

. The rent paid t§ the proprietors of lead mines

is usually one f®he ore : the total number of
! / s@ne year, was ten. Iron-ore is
in e western parts of the coal
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land. There are iron manufactories at )
Stockton, and Sunderland, and several for nails at each
of these towns, and at Durham ; spades and edge-tools
are made at Walsingham. Paper is made to a con-
slderal_ﬂe extent at Durham ; glass, including crown
and flint-glass, and glass bottles, at Sunderland and
South Shields; and earthenware, hoth for home sale
and exportation, on Gateshead Fell. Ship-building is
also extensively carried on at Sunderland and South
Shields, which, with Stockton, are the chief ports. The
principal articles of exportation are the mineral and
m ing produce of the county ; the imports are
timber, deals, flax, hemp, hides, bar iron, linseed, oak-
bark, and linen-yarn.

The principal rivers are, the Tees, the Tyne, and the
Wear. The Tees, rising in Cumberland, forms the whole
south and-south-western boundary of this county, sepa-
rating it from Westmorland and Yorkshire : it flows by
Barnard-Castle, and near Darlington, and falls into the
German ocean afew miles below Stockton, being navi-
gable to some -distance above Yarm. Among the more
striking features of the romantic scenery for which Tees
dale is distinguished, are several very picturesque water-
falls. The Tyne forms the northern limit of the county,
separating it from Northumberland, from about two
miles above Ryton to its mouth, a little below South
Shields, and is navigable up to a little above Newcastle.
The Wear is formed by the junction of several small
streams in the north-western part of the county, and
runs from west to east, with a circuitous course, through
the centre of it, passing by Stanhope, Walsingham,
Bishop-Auckland, Durham, and Chester le Street, and
falling into the German ocean at Sunderland: it is
navigable nearly as far as Chester le Street. The
Derwent is formed by the junction of several streams
near Hunstonworth, and constitutes the northern
limit of the county to about three miles below Eb-
chester, then crossing a portion of it, it falls into the
Tyne about a mile below the village of Swalwell. The
Skerne, rising near Kelloe, in Easi n ward, flows
southward by Bishop-Middleham and Darlington, and
falls into the Tees opposite the village of Croft,in York.
ghire. The fish in these rivers are, salmon, trout, eels,

- chevins, dace, pike (especially in the Skerne), and spar-

lings (in the Tees). The Darlington and Stockton
railway was constructed pursuant to an act obtained in
1821, and completed in September, 1825, at an expense
of £125,000, advanced by sixty shareholders ; the en-
tire length of the main line, from Witton Park colliery
to Stockton, is twenty-five miles, and it has various
branches diverging from it: coal, lime, and mineralogical
are conveyed along it at the rate of three
- ton. mile, and merchandise at three-
es drawn by horses are charged at
8 _per mllc; the line hw‘mb,
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and Cunscliffe, which Horsley identifies with the Mage
of the Notitia, and where numerous Roman coins, &c.,
have been found. Considerable remains of the Wnt-
ling-street, and of other Roman roads conn " the
different stations, are yet visible. The principal ancient
encampment is Maiden Castle. The chief specimens of
ancient ecclesiastical arc ‘are to be seen in the
magnificent cathedral church of Durham, and in the
churches of Chester le Street, Brancepeth, Darlington,
Hartlepool, and Bis‘hop-Wem-mouth Before the Refor-
mation, the ious houses in this county were, six
monasteries, six colleges, and five hospitals, of which
the most i remains are those of Jarrow and
Finchale monasteries, and of St. Edmund’s hospital at
Gateshead. Of ancient castles, the most remarkable re-
mains afe those of Barnard-Castle, and of the castles of
B h, Durham, and Norham. The finest specimens
of 0ld castellated mansions are seen in Raby, Lumley,
Hilton, and Auckland castles. The most remarkable
mineral springs are at Dinsdale, Croft, Butterby, and
Chester le Street, and of the saline springs the principal
i§ at Birtley, from which about eleven hundred tons of
salt are made annually.

DURLEIGH, a pansh in the hundred of ANpERS-
FiELD, county of SomEerser, 11 mile (W.S.W.) from
Bridg-water, containing 127 inhabitants. The living is

tual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Taunton, and

diocese of Bath and Wells, endowed with £200 royal

lépunty, and in the patronage of Wyndham Goodden,
g

"DURLEY, a chapelry in the parish of Upnawm, in
that part of the hundred of Bismor's WarLraAM which
ig in the Portsdown division of the county of SourTn-
AMPTON, 3% miles (W. by 8.) from Bishop's Waltham,
containing 319 inhabitants. It is within the Junsdlctwn
of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester every Thurs-
day, for the recovery of debts to any amount.

. DURLEY, a tything in the parish of Ering, hun-
dred of Repsrince, New Forest (East) division of the
county of Sourmampron. The population is returned

with the parish.
DUB.&FORD a parish in the hundred of Awmgs-
BURY, though locally in the hundred of Un t

coun of Wirrs, 2% miles (8.8.W,) from Amesbu
co ~with_ Little Durnford, Netton, Newtown,
n, 472 inhabitants. The llvmg isa., ca
jurisdiction and patronage ﬁﬂ Pre-
bemhry of Dur: in the Cathedral Chnrch m
bury, rated in the king's books at £9. The
dgdlmmd to St. Andrew, is a very ancient _structure.
qf is ‘a school emlowed with about ;el&pum
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earth-work,
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of the Dean and Chapter of Winchester. At a short
distance from this place are the remains of an extensive
British town, Walls, or Walls.
DURSLEY, a market town andpu-uh in the upper
divxsion of the hundred of BerkeLEY, county of Grov-
CESTER, 15 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Gloucester, and 108
(W. by N.) from London, containing 3186 inhabitants.
It is an irregularly built town, situated at the foot of a
steep hill, clothed with a wood chiefly of beech trees. A
baronial castle of the Berkeleys, once lords of the manor,
built as early as the reign of Edward the Confessor,
stood here previously to the reign of Queen Mary I,
when it was entirely destroyed: the site is now an
orchard, at the north-western extremity of the town,
the fields adjacent to which are called Castle Fields.
The town contains several respectable and some hand-
some houses, and a few which have the appearance
of considerable antiquity: the principal streets are
paved. Near the centre of it is a market-house,
built at the expense of the lord of the manor, about
1738. At its east end is a statue of Queen Anne.
On the south-east side of the church-yard, springs of
water rise so copiously as, at the distance of one hun-
dred yards, to set in motion a fulling-mill; and on the
banks of the stream are several cloth manufactories.
This fountain is supposed to have occasioned the town
to be called Dursley, from the British Dwr, water, and
Lega, lea or pasture land. The market, held under a
charter granted by Edward 1V, in 1471, is on Thursday ;
and there are fairs, May Oth and December 4th,
the sale of cattle and pedlary. Dursley was one of the
five boroughs in Gloucestershire ‘which sent members
to parliament in the reign of Edward L; but it has
long since lost that privilege. A bailiff and four: con-
stables are elected annually at the court of the manor,
but the power of the bailiff only extends to the ex-
amination of weights and measures, and the
intendence of the police. Contiguous to the town are
the remains of a rock of tufa, or puff-stone, which cuts
easily when first raised, but is extremely durable. ~This

dpnehsddtohavebeenuedmconltmctmgthewdh

of castle, part of the churches of ‘and
Cam, and thcvnleed roof of thechoir of Gloucester
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en is endowed with £7. 4. per annum, the produce
an of garden-ground, the bequest of John
Arundell, in 1703. . In 1811, Richard Jones begueath-
ed £1900 in trust to the rector and churchwardens, of
which £ 450 was ordered to be laid out in ornament-
ing and improving the church; #£300 to be appro-
priated to the support of a Sunday school for hoys;
£300 to another for girls; and the residue for the
henefit . of friendly societies, and other charitable
pu . There is a charity school for poor children
of Protestant  dissenters, for the support of which Jo-
seph Twemlow, in 1739, gave a school-house, for the
+ residence of the master, who has a salary of £35 per
annum, for instructing about thirty boys, the school
having - been benefitted by subsequent endowments.
Almshouses existed here prior to 1617, which be-
coming ruinous, the ground whereon they stood was
let, in 1821, on a building lease for ninety-nine years, at
£8. 5. per anmum, which is applied in aid of the church
rate. The present poor-house occupies the site of a
house called the Church-house, for which a consider-
ation. of £45 per annum is paid out of the rates, to be
applied to the repairs of the church.. Hugh Smith, of
Dursley, left by will, in 1637, three tenements for the use
of the poor, the site of which is let on a building lease,
for ninety-nine years, at £4. 5. per annum, which is dis-
tributed at the discretion of the churchwardens. In
1642, Sir'Thomas Estcourt bequeathed property at Tet-
bury for charitable purposes, from which is paid a
rent-charge of £1040 the poor of Dursley. In 1663,
Throgmorton T merchant of London, left £2000
in trust to the hers” Company, out of the produce
of which £ 15 per annum is ‘paid for preaching a lecture
at Dursley every market-day. This is the birthplace of
Edward Fox, Bishop of Hereford, and almoner to Henry
VIIL, who has been reckoned among the reformers.
Dur-,:y gives the title of wiscount to the Earl of
Berk ey, : Lhy
. DURSTON, a parish in the northern division of the
hundred of PeTuERTON, county of SoMERSET, 4§ miles
(N.E. by £.) from Taunton, containing 211 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
of Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells. The Rev.
R. Gr i 1823. The church, which has
dedicated to St. Johm. At
B d-Sororum, in this parish,
regular of the order of St. Augustine
:d_about 1167, which being suppressed, the
estates were given to the Knights Hospitallers,
ablishment of a nunnery of their own order.
riory of canonesses of St.
eceptory of Knights Hospitallers,
t:itlm dissolution, had a revenue
T 44 bt
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USTON, a parish in the hundred of NosorrLE-
Grove, county of NorTHAMPTON, 14 mile (W. by N.)
from Northampton, containing 484 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the
king's books at £6. 8, 10., endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the pa-
tron of Lord Viscount Melhourne. - The church s
dedicated to St. Mary. The parish is bounded on the
south-east and north-east by branches of the river Nine,
or Nen. There are remains of St. James's abbey for
Black canons, founded about 1112, by William Peverel,
natural son of William the Congueror, the revenue of
which, at the dissolution, amounted to £175. 8. 2,

DUTTON, a township in that part of the parish of
GreAT BupworTH which is in the hundred of Buck-
LOW, county palatine of CaesTEr, 5f miles (E.) from
Frodsham, containing 325 inhabitants, This place, called
in Domesday-book Duntune, was the seat of the ancient
family of Dutton, who exercised peculiar authority
over the musicians and minstrels of the county, requiring
them to pay suit and service at a court held before the
lord of Dutton, or his deputy, at Chester, every year on
Midsummer-day, and to take out a license for the
exercise of their Though the right is still
reserved to the proprietors of the manor of Dutton, no
court has been held since 1756. One side of Dutton
Hall, erected in 1542, is still standing, furnishing a
remarkably rich relic of the domestic architecture of
that period. The Grand Trunk canal passes through
the parish. Dutton gives the title of baron to the
family of Douglas, Dukes of Hamilton.

DUTTON, a township in that part of the parish of
Riscrester which is in the lower division of the
hundred of BLACKBURN, county palatine of LANCASTER,
7 miles (N. by W.) from Blackburn, containing 521
inhabitants.

DUXBURY, a township in the parish of Staxnpish,
hundred of LeYLanDp, county palatine of LAngmnn,
2. miles (8. by E.) from Chorley, containing 312 inha-

‘bitants.

~ DUXFORD, comprising the parishes of Duxford-
St. Peter and Duxford-St, John, in the hundred of
WairrLEsForp, county of CamBripgE, 6F miles (W.)
from Linton, containing 605 inhabitants.  The living of
St. Peter's is a rectory, rated in the king's books at
£21. 6. 8., endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£300 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Master and Fellows of Corpus Christi College, Cam-
brid, That of St. John's is a discharged vicarage,
mteﬁlthe‘king',s books at £13.3.4.,and in the patron-
age‘oftbcMastamdFellowsofClmHﬂl,Cam ;

they ae in_ the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely, The
boundaries of emghprish not being accurately known, -
the two. exe. d*%s one. Here is a school under
the direction of nine feoffees, founded pursuant to the

will of the Rev, Richard
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DYMCHURCH, a parish in the liberty of RoMNEY-
Marsu, locally in thep“)rmnan'd' of Worth, lathe of
Surrway, county of Kent, 4 miles (N. E. by N.) from
New Romney, containing 543 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Can-
terbury, rated in the king's books at £7. 2. 8}., and
in the patronage of the Erown. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Peter and St. Paul. There is a place of wor-
ship for Wesleyan Methodists. This parish . lies wholly
on the level og Romney-Marsh, adjoining the sea, and
is distinguished for its strong artificial wall, made. to
resist the encroaches of that element: this wall is
about three miles long, more than twenty feet high, and
the width at the top permits the high road to run along
it: it has three grand sluices, for the general draining of
the marsh; and the expense of repair, which amounts
to £, per annum, is defrayed by scot payments levied
on the whole district, }

DYMOCK, a parish in the hundred of BorLok,
coufity of Groucester, 33 miles (N.N.W.) from
Newent, containing 1558 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Hereford, and diocese
of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at £9, 13. 9.,
endowed with £8500 pax‘liaménm;y grant. A. Thomp-
=on, Esq. was patron in 1827. The church is dedicated
to St. Mary. = This place, supposed to derive its name
from the Saxon dim, dark, and Ac, oak, was formerly of
considerable extent and importance ; as, in the reign of
Henry IIL, it had the privilege of a market and three
fairs, all long since disused. In the parliamentary war
it was garrisoned for the king. A considerable quantity
of cider and perry is made here. The Herefordshire and
Gloucestershire canal, and the river Leden, pass through
the parish, Two school-rooms for fifty boys and fifty
girls, with residences for the master and mistress, were
erected in 1825, at an expense of £ 1200, being a portion
of the produce of a bequest in 1779, by Mrs. Ann Carn,
the remaining sum (nearly £3000), being invested in
the Bank three per cent. annuities, and the interest of
it applied to the purposes of the charity : the school is
conducted on the National plan, and, so far as the funds,
will allaw, the ‘children are provided with clothing. A
rent-charge of £3 per annum was bequeathed in 1734,
by William Hooper, which is also applied to the support
of this school. Ten men and ten women are!:g(hed.
annually from a bequest by Mr. Wintour, made about
a century ago. This is the birth-place of John Kvrle,
thie beneyolent original of Pope's “ Man of Ross.”

EACHWICK, a township in the ;Ea.rhh of Hepoon
on the Wars, partly in the western division of CasTLe
ward, but chiefly in the eastern division of TinpaLe
ward, county of NorTHUMBERLAND, 104 miles (N. W,
oY o) from Newcasfle upon Tyne, containing 160 inha
near
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, ! itant; living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king’s books at £3. 5. 10., endowed
‘with £200 private benefaction, and £ 1000 royal bounty.
Mrs. Buckworth was patroness in 1800. The church is
dedicated to All Saints. is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. = A school is endowed with a
small sum, and a house for the master, Here was a
commandery of the Knights Templars, which, on the
suppression of their order, was transferred to the hos-
pitallers : at the dissolution its revenue amounted to
£144. 18. 10.

EAGLE-HALL, a hamlet in that part of the parish
of EaGLE which is in the higher division of the wapen-
take of Boorasy-Gra¥ro, parts of KesTeven, county
of LiNcowLN, 9 miles (W.S, W.) from Lincoln, containing
45 inhabitants, )

EAGLE-WOODHOUSE, an extra-parochial liberty,
m the lower division of the wapentake of Boorumy-
GRrAFro, parts of KesTeven, county of Linconn, con-
taining 10 inhabitants,

EAGLESCLIFFE, a parish in the south-western
division of StockTon ward, county palatine of Dur-
HAM, comprising the townships of Aislaby, Eaglescliffe;
and Newsam, and containing 542 inhabitants, of which
number, 332 are in the township of Eaglescliffe, % a,
mile (N.N.E.) from Yarm. The living is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Durham, rated in the
king's books at £28. 17. 1., and in the patronage of the
Bishop of Durham. The church is dedicated to St.John
the Baptist. The river Tees, which is here navigable,.
is crossed by a cast-iron bridge of onearch, from which
there is a railway that, at a short distance, joins the
Stockton and Darlington railway. ‘ el

EAGLESFIELD, a township in the parish of Brig-
HAM, ALLERDALE ward above Darwent, county of
CuMBERLAND, 2§ miles (S. W, by W.) from Cockermouth,
containing 405 inhabitants. It is one of the “ five
towns " annexed to the honour of Cockermouth. On
the enclosure of Eaglesfield and Blindbothel commons,
about 1814, twenty acres of land were set apart for the
establishment of a school, in which all the poor ehildren
of those two townships may be educated, on payment
of a small quarterage. . The township abounds with ex-
cellent limestone, and some years since ;an%,m
way was discovered in it. | 7, el M

EAKLEY, a hamlet, formerly a parish, :
Stoke-Goldington, in the hundred of
of BuckinGgaam. The population is returned w

The church has been demolished. =
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- 24th o , and the two following days. The
iving is @ vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex,
and diocese of London, rated in the & books at

£18. 6, 8., and in the patronage of the Bishop of Lon-
don. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, wasoep;'ected in
1785 it is a brick building, with a square tower and
cupola. A eship was founded here in 1629, and
endowed with £40 per annum, by the Rev. John Bow-
man, Chancellor of St. Paul's Cathedral, who also left
£20 per annum to the poor. A chapel of ease was
built ‘at Old Brentford in 1770, by subscription.
There is ‘a place of worship for Independents. A cha-
rity school for boys, for which a new school-room
was built in 1817, is endowed with the twelfth part of
an estate in Kent, given by Lady Capel, with £500 by
Jonathan Gurnell, Esq., and with other benefactions :
more than one hundred and twenty boys, of whom
twenty are clothed, are instructed on the National sys-
tem in this establishment. A ¢harity school for girls
was founded in 1712, by Lady Jane Rawlinson, who
bequeathed £500 for that purpose: Peter Francis le
Courayer left £200 for the purchase of land, to which
£50 was added by Mrs. Frances Cole, besides several
similar benefactions : seventy girls, of whom twenty-five
are olothed, are taught on the National system: the
school-room was built in 1819. In a stratum of gravel,
near Old Brentford, have been found bones and teeth of
the hippopotamus, the elephant, and the bullock ; and in
the sub-stratum, which is of calcareous earth, are found
the bones and horns of deer: below this is a bed of blue
clay, ding with shells of the nautilus and other
marine animals, JAmong the distinguished persons that
have been inhabitants of Faling may be enumerated,
Dr. John Owen, a learned non-conformist divine, and
a very voluminous writer, who died in 1683 ; Serjeant

iard, an eminent lawyer, who died here in 1690,
and was buried in the church ; Sir Frederick Morton
Eden, Bart., author of an rate history of the
1 ing  class in FEngland; and Robert Orme,
author of Historical nts of the Mogul Empire,
who died in 1801. John Horne Tooke, author of the
Diversions of Purley; and the celebrated Mrs. Trimmer ;
were interred in the church-yard.

- EAMONT-BRIDGE, a joint township with Yan-
wath, in the parish of BarToN, West ward, county of
WesrmorLanD, 14 mile (8.8.E.) from Penrith, contain-
ing 244 inhabitants. A school is endowed with about
#£100 perannum, for children of both townships. On
the southern bank of the river Eamont, in this town-
ship, is an intrenched amphitheatre, called King Arthur's
Round Table, in ancient times used as a tilting ground;
' it is er relic of antiquity, named Mayburgh,
‘have been the Gymnasium, where
d others of the humbler class
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with £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Bishop of Hereford. The church is %‘édfcated to St.
Mary, Here is an endowed free school, partly con-
ducted on the Madras system. A court leet is held
annually in the village, which is situated on the river
Arrow, the rail-road from Kington to Leominster pass-
ing through it. A house still exists, called the Nun
House, and part of the glebe land is denominated the
Monks' Court ; from which it is inferred that a place
called Staick house was once a religions establishment,
a supposition strengthened by its peculiar appearance,
andcontiguity to the Monks’ Court. The Roman Wat-
ling-street is supposed to have passed through this
parish, on the line of the road now leading to Street
Court.

EARDISLEY, a parish in the hundred of Hunting-
TON, county of HeErerorp, 6} miles (S. by W.) from
Kington, containing 683 inhabitants. The living is u
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford,
rated in the king's books at £7. 12. 6., and in the pa-
tronage of Thomas Perry, Esq. The church is dedicated
to St. Mary Magdalene. Here is a National school.
Courts leet and baron are held occasionally ; and fairs
for cattle, cheese, and butter, are on May 15th and Octo-
ber 18th. The Brecon and Kington rail-road passes
at the south end of the village. Several helmets have
been dug up ; and there are slight remains of a castle,
Half a mile hence is a remarkable oak tree, held in great
respect by the poor inhabitants, and supposged to befour
hundred years old. Some of its branches average about
two feet in diameter; its girth at the bottom is sixty feet,
and it covers a surface of three hundred and twenty-four
feet in circular extent.

EARDLEY-END, a township in the parish of
AvupLEY, northern division of the hundred of PirEnILL,
county of STArrorp, 5 miles (N.W.) from Newcastle
under Line, containing 192 inhabitants.

EARESBY, a chapelry in the parish of Sprissy,”
eastern division of the soke of BOLINGBROKE, parts of
Linpsey, county of Lincoww, 4 a mile (W.8.W.) from-
Spilshy, with which the population is returned.

EARITH, a chapelry in the parish of BLunTisHAM,
hundred of HurstTiNGgsTONE, county of va’rmqnon,
3 miles (8.E) from Somersham, containing 674 inha-
bitants. The chapel, which was dedicated to St. James,
has been demolished. A school is endowed with about
£50 perannum, Cattle fairs are held, May 4th, July
25th, and November 1st. 8

EARL (otherwise YEARD) HILL, a township in the
parish of DoppiNeron, eastern division of GLENDALE
ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 14 mile (8. by W.)
from Wooler, containing 60 inhabitants. A few years
since an urn, containing hones and a thin piece of flint,
was found on the summit of a hill at this place.. '

" EARL-SHILTON, a  chapelry in the parish of
Kixkpy-MarLory, hundred of SPARKENHOE, county
of LeicesTer, 34 miles (N. E.) from Hinckley, °°“i 1

" taining 1771 inhebitants. The chapel is. te
ta St eter‘ . There is a ?\m.,olf vorship f Im

" dents, This place was formerly distinguished by
N;?rmm castles now entirely destroyed, the site being

3 place called the: Castle-
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from East Lavington, containing 375 inhabitants. The
chapel is dedicated to St, Mary.

EARLHAM (ST. MARY) —See NORWICH.

EARLY, a liberty in tl;:tegmxt of the parish of Son-
~NING which is in the huni of Crarurox, county of
Bnnls, 2% miles (8.E. by E.) from Reading, containing

7 inhabitants.

EARNLEY a parish in the hundred of MaNmzoOD,
rape of CHICHESTER, county of Sussex, 6§ miles (S.W.
by 8.) from Chichester, containing, with Almodington,
148 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, united in
1524 to the rectory of Almodington, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Chichester, rated in the km,i’e
books at £7. 6. 04. Almodington was formerly in t
patronage of the Earl of Arundel, and Earnley in that
of the Bishop of Chichester; but since the union of the
two benefices the Bishop has two turns, and the Duke
of Norfolk one. The church of Earnley has been long

ince demolished.

EARNSFORD, a liberty in the parish of BinvLey,
Kirby division of the hundred of KnicaTLOW, county
of Warwick, 3% miles (E.S.E.) from Coventry., The
population is returned with the parish.

EARNSHILL, a parish in the hundred of ABpICcK
and BuLsToNE, county of SoMERSET, 5 miles (S.W. byS.)
from La.ngport, containing 18 inhabitants. The living
i a rectory, in the nrehdeaconry of Taunton, and dio-
cese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at
£2.1, 04 R.T.Combe, Esq. was patron in 1821. The
church has been demolished.

EARSDON, a parish in the eastern division of
Castie ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, compris-
ing the townshxps of Blackworth, South Blyth with
Newsham, Brierdean, Earsdon, Hartley, Holywell, Sea-
ton-Delaval,and Sighill,and containing 4644 inhabitants,
of which number 271 are in the township of Emdon,
4 miles (N.W, by N.) from North Shields. The living
isa curacy, in the archdeaconry of Northum-
berland, and diocese of Durham, endowed with £800
royal bounty, and £1200 parliamentary grant, and in
the patromage of the proprietors of land. The church,
dedicated to St.Alban, is an ancient building, which in
1097 belonged to Tynemouth abbey, and lately
receiv :l';e m of four lmmiredf and five free
sangl; rated Society for the en!n.rment

churches and chapels having granted £300 to
wudgdefmying the expense.  This is a fertile dis-
trict, abounding also with excellent coal and stone. The

W upon a rocky eminence, is M ‘and

EARSDON, a township in the parish of Hnnmu,
western dnvinmn of MorreTa ward, county of Nom-
THUMBERLAND, 5% miles (N4) fmm Moth. ming
94 inhabitants, AT

EARSDON-FOREST g mhip in the i
Henpunx, western division of MorpETs ward,
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* EARSWICK, a township partly thq ih of'
STRENSALL, Within the Ill;ert of S‘r’h N
but chiefly int.hepnmh UNTINGTON, wapentake
BurmEg, North riding of the county of You,si pni{u
(N.N,E.) from York, containing 113 inhabitants, exclu-
sively of those wlnch are within the liberty of St. Peter

EARTHAM, a parish in the hundred of Box and
STOCKBRIDGE, rape of CHICHESTER, county of Sussex,
5% miles (N.E, by E.) from Cluchester, contaimni IQS
inhabitants. The hvm%hm a vicarage, in_the
conry and diocese of |chester, rated in the kmgs
books at £7. 5. 2%, and in the patronage of the Pre-
bendary of Eartham in the Cathedral Church of Chi-
chester.

EARTHCOTT-GAUNTS, a tything in that part of
the parish of Aumonnssury which is in the lower di-
vision of the hundred of Berkerry, county of GLou-
cesTer, 53 miles (8. by E.) from Thornbury. The po-
pulation is returned with the parish.

EASBY, a township in the parish of BrAmrrox,
Eskpare ward, county of CumBErtAND, 1§ mile
(N.N.E.) from Brampton, contai 96 inhabitants,
At Coathill, in this neighbourhood, is a chalybeate

spring

EASBY a parish comprising the townships of Aske,
Easby, and Skeeby, in the western, and the township
of Brompton on Swale, in the eastern, division of thc
wapentake of Griring, North riding of the county of
Yorxk, and contaxmng 765 inhabitants, of which num-
ber, 105 are in the township of Eashy, 15 mile (E.8.E.)
from Richmond. The living is a vi , in the arch-
deaconry of Richmond, and diocese of esber, rated in
the sbook;atf.&z 13, 4., endowedwiﬂasﬁoo
royal bounty, and £ 600 parliamen grant, and in the
patronage 3" the Crown. The ch::i dedicated to St,
Agatha, stands at a considerable diltuwe from the
vx.l.lafe and existed prior to 1152. In this village, plea-
santly situated on the banks of the Swale, wua.na%
for P nstratensian canons, founded about 1152, hy

constable of Richmond castle, and valued at

the dissolution at £111 per annum : the remains are ex-
tensive, and rich in architectural decoration. Here is
an hospital for four persons.

EASBY, a township in the parish 'm‘ ¢ :A{‘Y,
western division of the Lib hxo:f,vu %
ﬂdhgoftheeountyononx,Smﬂu(E-ﬁw fzm

S , containing 124 inhabitants. *
mm%BOURN'I!‘.. a parish (formgt!y
in the hundred of EASEBOURNE, rape ¢
county of ‘Sussex, 1 mxfc(Nn)ﬁ'om
umm&“with the chapelry i:f W
The living is a
and diocese of
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county of anxcpht miles (N. W.) from Rugby, con;

dx?fsnnm a tything in the parish and first division

of the hundred of GopaLmiNg, county of Surrey, 13

mile (W) front Godalming, with which the population
is “The river Wey runs through the tything.

GTON, a hamlet in the parish of CHILTON,

hnndre of AsHENDON, county of BucxkineuAMm, 3%

miles (N.N.W.) from Thame. The population is re-
turned with the parish. Here was formerly a chapel, but

it has been long since demolished.
. EASINGTON, a parish in the southern division of
EasiNGroN ward, county palatine of Duruam, compri-
sing the townships of Easington, Haswell, Hawthorn,
and Shotton, and containing 1112 inhabitants, of which
number, 598 are in the township of Easington, 94 miles
(E.) from Durham. The living is a rectory, not in charge,
annexed, in 1255, to the archdeaconry, and in the dio-
cese of Durham., The church, dedicated to St. Mary,
is a lofty building, serving, from its situation on an
eminence, as a land-mark for mariners. Thereisa place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. In 1814, Arch-
deacon Prosser erected a'school-room, which, by means
of his own and other contributions, now affords edu-
cation, on Dr, Bell's system, to about fifty boys and
thirty girls. ' Dr. Gabriel Clarke, by will dated in
1662, ogueathed the sum of £60 to purchase a rent-
charge of £10 per annum for the school-master. The
village, which is of considerable extent and on an
elevated situation, was the ancient head of the ward,

e% and parish, to which it gives name. A halmote
court 8 held twige a year for the recoveryof debts
under 40s.

EASI'NG‘I‘ON a towns

in that part of the parish
of BerLroro which is in the

rthern division of Bam-

srRovGH ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 1} mile
(N E.

E.) from Belferd; containing 186 inhabitants.

'in the hundred of EwrrLme,
ity of Oxronp, 4 miles (8.W. by 8.) from Tetsworth,
a mg?ﬁ ‘inhabitants, The living is a discharged
7, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford,

rated in the ke at £4. 12. 6., and in the pa-
ge Hnﬁnhmopf ‘Lincoln. The church is dedi-
*'l'ON g’lah in the southern division
nta n: LoErNEss, East riding of the
ORK, the townships of Easing-
t-Newton, and containing 557 inhabitants, of
her, 498 are in the township of Easington,
.) from Patrington. The living is a dis-
ge, in the archdeaconry of the East riding,
'bﬁadinthe king's books at £10,
“ the Archbishop of York. The
Mm, is a very ancient struc-
w_ unglish architecture. 'l‘wenty
e means of an annuity
Wmon,in 1811,
rish in ﬂewmn division of the
Pm of the com!ty of
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BURN, western division of the wapentake of Srarn-
crrvre and Ewcross, West riding of the county of
York, 7§ miles (N.N.w.) from Clitheroe, eonum;mg
501 mhnbita.nts Here is a free.school. -
EASINGTON-GRANGE, a township in that pm
of the parish of Bevrorp which is in the northern
division of funmouon ward, county of NorTHUM-
BERLAND, 14 mile (N.E from Belford, con
inhabitants. ) T o
EASINGWOULD, a parish in the wapentake of
Burmer, North riding of the county of Yorxk, com-
prising the market town of Easingwould, and the cha-
pelry of Raskelf, and contammg 2352 inhabitants, of
which number, 1912 are in the town of Easingwauld
13 miles (N.N.W.) from York, and 208 (N.N. W.) from
London. The town, which is irregularly built, is, from
its inland situation, and the want of nav1gable con-
veyance, precluded from the advantages of trade. Con-
siderable quantities of bacon and butter are sent from
this place to York, whence the articles are forwarded to
London by water; and the town derives some benefit
from its being a thoroughfare on the high road from
London to Edinburgh. The market is on Friday: the fairs
are, July 6th and September 26th, for catfle and sheep.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Cleveland, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £12. 11. 04., and in the patronage of the Bishop
of Chester: The church, dedicated to All Saints, is situ-
ated on an eminence above the town, and commands an
extensive view of the ancient forest of Galtres, and the
vale of Mowbray. There are places of worship for Inde-
pendents, and Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists. A
free school was founded in 1781, by Mrs. Eleanor Wester-
man, who endowed it with £2500 reduced annuities,
for the instruction of boys in English grammar, Latin,
writing, arithmetic, and book-keeping ; ‘and of girls, in
reading, writing, and arithmetic: there are thirty boys
and girls in this school, who are nominated by the
vicar, churchwardens, and overseers of the parish, as
trustees. ‘There is another school, with a small endow-
ment, for ten boys; and Sunday schools are sup-
ported by subscription. In the neighbourhood are some
small chalybeate springs issuing from the high grounds,
and indicating the existence of coal or iron-stone, but
none has yet been discovered of sufficient consequence
to encourage any enterprise : the principal of these
supplies a small bathing-house.
"EAST BOURNE, county of Sussex. See BOURNE
ST.
(EAEAS)TBRIDGE an extra-parochial liberty, in the
hundred of WesteaTE, lathe of ST. AUGUSTINE, county
of KenT, containing 34 inhabitants. For an account
of Eastbridge Hospital, see CANTERBURY.  * -
"EASTBRIDGE, a parish within the libefty of Rom-
~EY Marsn, locally in the hundred of Worth, lathe of
Snzrwn, county of Kent, 5 miles (N.byE.) from
tw Rumney, containing 18 inhabitants. The living is
in the archdeaconryapﬁ diocese of Canter-

bury,utedmthe 's books at £5. 6.‘8.,ﬁj 'the
mhopofCanterbury c&m}h

of the Archb
olished. X
hip puhh of Kxu-

y Yosek, 3 n’tﬂu
'1¢ inhabitants.

Buur, Bainton-Beacon
s.w.) from emt
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EASTBURN, a joint township with Steeton, inﬂn
parish of KiLowick, eastern division of the take of
Srarncrirre and Ewcross, West riding of the county
of York, 4 miles (N.W.) from Keighley, containing 753
inhabitants.

EASTBURY, a tything in the parish and hundred
of LamBourN, county of Berks, 2 miles (S. E. by E.)
from Lambourn, containing, with Bockhampton, 398
inhabitants. Here was formerly a chapel, which was de-
dicated to St. James, but it has been demolished. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

EASTBY, a joint township with Embsay, in that
part of the parish of Skrpron which is in the eastern
division of the wapentake of StarncrLirre and Ewcross,
West riding of the county of Yorxk, 8 miles (N. E.) from
Skipton, containing 861 inhabitants. There is.a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

EAST-CHURCH, a parish in the liberty of the IsLe
of Smeprry, lathe of Scray, county of KenT, 5 miles
(E. by 8.) from Queenborough, containing 705 inhabit-
ants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's books at
£13. 6. 8,, and in the patronage of Miles Barton, Esq.
The church, which is dedicated to All Saints, is a spacious
and handsome embattled edifice, formerly belonging to
the convent of Boxley. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. East-Church takes its name
from being sitnated to the east of the parish of Minster.
There is a free school, with a small endowment : a fair
for toys is held on Holy-Thursday. Many petrified
fossils, supposed to be antediluvian, have been found
upon the sea-shore.

EASTCOTT, a tything in the parish of Uncarou'r,
hundred of SwansorovGH, county of WrivLrs, 1§ mile
(N. E.) from East Lavington, containing 123 inhabitants.

EASTCOTTS, a chapelry in the parish of CArpiNG-
ToN, hundred of WixamTREE, county of BEprorp, 3%
miles (8. E.) from Bedford, containing, with Cotton-End,
Harrowden, and Fenlake, 588 inhabitan;s.

EASTCOURT, a tything in the parish of Crup-
weLL, hundred of Maumessury, county of WiLts, 43
miles’ (N.E.byN.) from Malmesbury, containing 157
inhabitants.

EASTER (GOOD), a parish in the hundred of Dun-

county. of Essex, 7 miles (N.W.byWw.) from
contmmng 478 inhabitants. The livi
discharged vicarage, with which the vicarage of
Euter was consolidated in 1771, in the peculiar Juris-
diction of the Bishop of London, rated in the . s
books at £8, and in the patronage of the Dean and

Chapter of St. Paul's, London. The church is dedicated

to St. Andrew. Thereualtrongchdybette spring in
the parish.
EASTER (HIGH), a parish in the hundred of Du-

mow, county of Essex, 5miles (S.byw.) from Great

Dunmow, containing 819 inhabitants.  The living is a
vicarage, consolidated with that of Good Easter, in the

'm“lldsuonryofmddl«ex, and diocese of London, rated - (x

in the king's books at £14. 14. ¥ hachmhuﬂe-
dmdadb,StMm'y b g

H 8y

. ehapels having granted £40 towanh

* Hereford, rated in the

: 1 d'theneanlﬂdcmofcb-
Thy MMM%S&GW humﬂll

Iding of réugh ston
EASTERTON, a tything in the parish of East La-
VINGTON, hundred of SWANBOROUGH, county of me,

-1 mile (N.E.) from East Lavington, containing 877 in-

habitants. There is a small school for the education
of the poor,

EASTFIELD, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
S7. Jonn the Barrist, PETERBOROUGH, Which is in the
liberty of PETERBOROUGH, county of NoRTHAMPTON,
 of a mile (N.N.E.) from Peterborough, containing, wnth
Newark, 247 inhabitants.

EASTGATE a hamlet in the parish of StanmOPE,
north-western division of DaArrINGTON ward, county
palatine of DuraaM, 8% miles (W. by N.) from Walsing-
ham. The population is returned with the parish. About
one¢ hundred children are educated at a National
school built by the late Bishop of Durham: where
divine service is performed every Sunday afternoon.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

‘EASTHAM, a parish in the higher division of the
hundred of WirrALL, county palatine of CHESTER, com=
prising the townships of Eastham, Hooton, Nether Pool,
Over Pool, Great Sutton, Little Sutton, Thornton-Childer,
and a part of that of Whitby, and containing 1430 inha-
bitants, of which number, 368 are in the township of East-
ham, 5 miles (E. N. E.) from Great Neston. The living is
a dxscharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Chester, rated in the king's'books at £12. 18,, and in
the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Chester The

* church is dedicated to St. Mary. About a mile from the

village is a ferry on the Mersey, called Eastham ferry ;
and at the ferry-house is usually held the yearly meeting
of the Wirrall Agricultural Society. There are two or
three small bequests for the education of poor children. .
EASTHAM, a parish in the upper division of the
bundred of DoppiNGTrEE, county of Wonquua, 4%
miles (E.) from Tenbury, comprising the chapelries of
Child-Hanley and Orleton, and conmmn? 677 inhabit-
ants. The living is a rectory with that ol
liam; in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese ¢
ford, rated in the king's books.at £28.
church, dedicated to St. Peter and St.Pa
received an addition of eighty free sittin
_of

porated Society for the

ms'morn w el Ha hnnamr, )
eounty of Su.or, 43 miles (8.W.) from
containing 93 inhabitants, The living
rectory, in the archdeaconry of §

dowed with £200 royal bount
patron in 1825. The church is dedicate
EA‘STHORPI, lh in the Coleh




cated to St. : 0S50, AV RNRATE

. *‘sm%, a parish in the lower division of the

mﬂﬁd&f Wnrrs‘rorﬁ,“ county of Gmﬁlczmn, com-

is he tythi f Alkerton and KEastington, and
m::ﬁlhg IMbitMts, of which numberg,t?ls are
in the tything of Eastington, 5% miles (W.hy N.) from
Stroud.  The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at
£32.14. 9. The Rev. R. Huntley was patron in 1817.
The church is dedicated to St. Michael. ~There is a
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists, A free school
ror ebout seventy children was established by subscrip-
tion in 1764. During the civil war this place was gar-
risoned for the parliament.

« EAST-LEACH-MARTIN, otherwise BURTHORPE,
a purish in the hundred  of BriGrTweLLs-BArROW,
county of GroucesTer, 4 miles (N.) from Lechlade,
containing 231 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the
king’s books at £ 10, and in the patronage of the Crown,
The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

EAST-LEACH-TURVILLE, a parish in the hundred
of BrigurwerLLs-BArrow, county of GLOUCESTER, 4
miles (N.byE.) from Lechlade, containing 333 inhabi-
tants. The living is @ perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Gloucester, endowed with £9
per annum private benefaction, and £600 royal boun-
ty, and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of
Gloucester. The church, an extremely small building, is
dedicated to St. Andrew. The Roman Iknield-street
enters this parish on the east from Oxfordshire, and
joins the fosse-way at Cirencester. In Church-lane is
a mineral spring, which is strongly cathartic.
BASTLEY, a tything in the parish of Sours StoNE-
uAM, hundred of ManssrinGe, Fawley division of the
county of SourHAMrTON, 5 miles (N.N.E.) from South-
ampton.  The (?’npultﬁon is returned with the parish.
G, @ parish in the hundred of Faversaam,
v, county of Kext, 5 miles (8. W.) from
itaining 406 inhabitants. The living is a
archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury,

g's books at £16, and in the patronage
Winchelsea, The church is dedicated to
A fair is held on the 14th of September. .
ORE, a hamlet in the parish of BarTox-
undred of CrackcrLose, county of Nor-
miles (N.E. by N.) from Stoke-Ferry, The
i d with 'thed'parish. Here was for-
amolished,
sh in the hundred of Raprow,
, 2% miles (8.E. by E.) from Led-
inhabitants. The living is a dis-
Rar Mﬂsm ?f ﬁﬁmﬁ

king's .‘t» « A9 5.,

Samers, The dedicated

- containing 871 inhabitants.

* Naorwich, rated in the king's books at 4
im-  dowed with £200 private benefaction,

EAS
't;‘a"y')w. 4 o3 .
2:plan of the ancient baronial castles. “On an emi-
mence in the park is an obelisk, on which are recorded
the public acts of Lord Chancellor Somers, as well as
a tributary inscription to the memory of the present
earl’s eldest son, who was slain in the peninsular war,

EAST(_)If‘!‘, @ chapelry in the parish of Crowrg,
western division of the wapentake of Manvry, parts
of Linpsey, county of Lixcoun, 3 miles (N.E.) from
Crowle, containing 232 inhabitants,

EASTOFT, a joint township with Haldenby, in the
parish of AprLiNGrLEET, lower division of the wapen-
take of OseoLpcross, West riding of the county of
York, 10 miles (8.8.E.) from Howden, containing 69
inhabitants,

- EASTON, a parish in the hundred of Leicmros-
STONE, county of HunrtiNgpon, 8% miles (N.E.) from
Kimbolton, containing 172 inhabitants. The living is
a vicarage not in charge, in the peculiar jurisdiction
and patronage of the Prebendary of Longstow in the
Cathedral Church of Lincoln, endowed with £200
royal bounty. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

EASTON, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
Sovrm Stoke which is in the soke of GranTHAM,
parts of KesTEVEN, county of Linconw, 1§ mile (N.)
from Colsterworth, containing 206 inhabitants. The
chapel has fallen into ruins.

EASTON, a parish in the hundred of Forraoz, county
of NorroLK, 6§ miles (W.N.W.) from Norwich, contain-
ing 165 inhabitants. . The living is a discharged vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Nor-
wich, rated in the king's books at £7. 11. 104, endowed
with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty.
E. R. Fellowes, Esq. was patron in 1809. The church
is dedicated to St. Peter. There is a place of worship
for Baptists at Easton Row. :

EASTON, a parish in the hundred of WiLLYBROOK,
county of NorTHAMPTON, 2% miles (S.W: by 8.) from
Stamford, containing 689 inhabitants. The living'is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and dio-
cese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
£19. 8. 9. The Marquis of Exeter was patron in 1805.
The church is dedicated to All Saints. Here is a free
school endowed with about £ 50 per annum. :

, EASTON, a parish /in the hundred of FAwrEy,
Fawley division of the county of SoUTHAMPTON, 23
miles (N.E. by N.) from Winchester, containing 427
inhabitants; The living is a rectory, in the peculiar
jurisdiction of the incumbent, rated in the king's books
at £26. 6. 8., and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Winchester. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
There is a trifling endowment for the education of poor
children. - Easton is within the jurisdiction .of the
Cheyney Court held at Winchester every Thursday, for
the recovery of debts to any amount.: o B SR

. EASTON, a parish in the hundred of Loxs, county
of Surrouk, 24 miles (N.N.W.) from Wickham-Market,

The livingis a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of f-S-ﬂh&,m-fl:?;;-? e:f
- £200 royal

+ The Earl of. d was patron. in 1817.
, a parish in the hundred of Krnwarp-

bo

s, ﬁduu, dgounty .of.Mum_,;«&~mﬂu‘ (Boby N from

inhabitants, The living is a
b
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pérpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and
diocese of Salisbury, and in the pa of the Mar-
quis of Ailesbury. The church, which was dedicated
to the Holy Trinity, has been demolished. Here is a
small endowed free school, In the reign of Henry IIL
there was an hospital or priory at this place, for canons
of the Trinitarian order, for the redemption of captives,
said by some to have been founded by Stephen, Arch-
deacon of Salisbury : its revenue, at the time of the
dissolution, amounted to £55. 14. 4.

EASTON, a hamlet in the parish of BriprineTON,
wapentake of Dickering, East riding of the county
of Yorxk, 1} mile (W.) from Bridlington, containing 21
inhabitants.

EASTON (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of
Dunmow, county of Essex, 2% miles (N.N.W.) from
Great Dunmow, containing 755 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and dio-
cese of London, rated in the king's books at £18.13.4.,
and in the patronage of R. Saumarez, Esq. and Lord
Viscount Maynard alternately. The church is dedicated
to St, John. In 1759, Rebecea Mead bequeathed tene-
ments and land, now producing £38 per annum, for
clothing and teaching ten girls; and in 1761, Charles,
Lord Maynard, endowed a school for six boys of this
parish, and six of Little Easton. There is a small sum
for apprenticing children.

EASTON (GREY), a parish in a detached portion
of the hundred of CarprENHAM, county of WiLts, 3%
miles (W.) from Malmesbury, containing 151 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Wilts, and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's
books at £6. 0. 5., and in the patronage of John Howes,
Esq. A branch of the Lower Avon passes through this
parish. There is a trifling sum for the education of
children : and an almshouse for six women is endowed
with £50 per annum.

EASTON (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
Dunmow, county of Essex, 2% miles (N.W.)from Great
Dunmow, containing 303 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and diocese
of London, rated in the king's books at £10. Lord
Viscount Maynard was patron in 1815. Charles Lord
Maynard, in 1761, endowed a school for six boys of
this and six of Great Easton, and by his will
founded an almshouse for four poor widows.

EASTON (MAGNA), a chapelry in the parish of
Brineaurst, hundred of GarTrEE, county of Leicks-
TER, 8f miles (E.N.E.) from Market-Harborough, con-
taining 529 inhabitants. The chapel is dedicated to St.

EASTON in GORDANO, a parish in the hundred

of PorTsURY, county of SomERsET, 7% miles (W. N.W.)

from Bristol, containing 2109 inhabitants. The living

is a discharged vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction and
patronage of the Prebendary ofg‘f:hﬁ:in the Cathedral
Church of Wells, rated in the king's books at £5. 9. 41.,

efaction, and £200 roygl
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BryTuInG, county of SurroLk, 2 miles (N.N.E.) from
Southwold, containing 24 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged rectory, annexed to that of Benacre, in
the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £6, and endowed with £200
royal bounty. The church, which was dedicated to St.
Nicholas, has fallen to ruin.

EASTON-MAUDIT, a parish in the hundred of
Hicaam-FerrEeRrs, county of NorTHAMPTON, 65 miles
(8.) from Wellingborough, containing 178 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeac
of Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated in
the king's books at £6, endowed with £200 private be-
nefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Dean and Canons of Christ Church, Oxford. The
church is dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul.

EASTON-NESTON, a parish in the hundred of
CrrLry, county of NorTHAMPTON, 1} mile (E.) from
Towcester, containing, with the hamlet of Hulcote, 187
inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdea-
conry of Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough,
rated in the king's books at £8. The Earl of Pomfret
was patron in 1825. The church is dedicated to St.
Mary. The children of this parish are instructed by
a schoolmistress for £10 per annum, paid out of the
church estate, and from the same fund £ 10 are annual-
ly contributed in aid of a Sunday school.

EASTON-PERCEY, a tything in the parish of
KingTon-St. MrcuAEL, northern division of the hun-
dred of DameruaM, county of WiLTs, containing 29
inhabitants. John Aubrey, a distinguised antiquary,
was born here in 1629.

EASTRIDGE, a tything in the parish and hundred
of Ramssury, county of WiLts, 6 miles (N.W. by N.)
from Hungerford, containing 254 inhabitants.

EASTRINGTON, a parish in the wapentake of
HowpensHire, East riding of the county of York,
comprising the townships of Bellasize, Eastrington, Gil-
berdike, Newport-Wallingfen, and Portingten with Cavil,
and containing 1649 inhabitants, of which number, 375
are in the township of Eastrington, 3% miles (E.N.E.)
from Howden. The living is a discharged vicarage,
within the jurisdiction of the peculiar court of Howden-
shire, rated in the king's books at £12. 9. 7., and in
the patronage of the Crown. The church is dédicated to
St. Michael. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists, In 1726, Joseph Hewley gave a house and
land, now producing £28 a year, for the use of a
school, in which about thirty children are educated.

EASTRIP, an extra-parochial liberty, in the hundred
of BRuTON, county of SoMERSET, 2 miles from Bruton,
containing 17 inhabitants. SR e

EASTROP, a parish in the hundred of BASINGSTOKE,
Basingstoke division of the county of Souvrm
% a mile (N.) from Basingstoke, containing 67 inhabit-
ants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch.
deaconry and diocese of Winchester, rate mg‘.@) ing
books at £ 2, endowed with £200 royal bounty, and

oks at £19, 12, 1., anc
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risdiction and patronage of the Archhishop of Canter-
bury. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a spacious
edifice. Wesleyan Methodists have a place of worship
here. There is a trifling sum for the education of chil-
dren, A fair is held for cattle, pedlary, and toys, on
the 2nd of October. This village contains a spacious
handsome building, appropriated as a workhouse for this
and twelve other parishes,

EAST-VILLE, a township in the eastern division
of the soke of BoLingBrOKE, parts of LiNpsEY, county
of Lincownn, containing 118 inhabitants. There is a
chapel in the East Fen belonging to the townships of
East-Ville and Mid-Ville, This township, with six
others, was made such by act of parliament in 1812,
on the occasion of a very extensive drainage of fen
lands, and is not dependent on any parish.

EASTWELL, a parish in the hundred of WyE,
lathe of Scray, county of Kent, 3% miles (N.) from
Ashford, containing 134 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £9. 16. 8., and
in the patronage of the Earl of Winchelsea and Notting-
ham, The church is an ancient structure, dedicated to
St. Mary. The register of this parish is said to have
contained the entry of the burial of Richard Plantagenet,
natural son to King Richard IIL., who, having fled
hither after the battle of Bosworth, was protected by Sir
Thomas Moyle, lord of the manor, and died in 1550, at
a small house erected by his permission, at the age of 81.

EASTWELL, a parish in the hundred of Fram-
LAND, county of Leicester, 7 miles (N. by E.) from
Melton-Mowbray, «containing 109 inhabitants. The
living ‘is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£0. 12, 1., and in the alternate patronage of the Crown
and the Governors of St. James's Hospital, Leicester.
The church is dedicated to St. Michael.

EASTWICK, a parish in the hundred of BRAvGHIN,
county of HErTFORD, 4 miles (8. W. by W.) from Saw-
bridgeworth, containing 212 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and
diocese of London, rated in the king's booksat £7.11. 8.
Mrg, Plumer was patroness in 1825. The church is
dedicated to St. Botolph.

EASTWOOD, a parish in the hundred of Rocn-
¥orRD, county of Essex, 14 mile (S.W. by 8.) from

ford, containing 530 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage, i the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese of
London, rated in the king's books at £12, and in the
patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to
St. Lawrence and All Saints.

. EASTWOOD, a parish in the southern division of
- the wapentake of Broxrow, co\u:lty of Nomnam(n)té
riles (N, W, by W.) from Nottingham, containing 12
l U&w i‘hoh)ﬁng‘ is a discharged rectory, in the
nry of Notti , and diocese of York,
n the king's books at £4. 13. 1. J. Plumptre,
as patron in 1619. The church is dedicated to
v. There is a place of worship for Wes e-
Here are extensive coal-works, The Notting-
xtent of about one mile and a half, com-
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Rpper,in ttl;e Kington division of the hundred of Kino-
ON, county of WARWICK, containing 641 inhabitants.
Lower Eatington is 6§ miles (S.W. by w.), and Upper
Eatington 53 (W.S.W.), from Kington. The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Worcester, rated in the king's books at £12. 0, 7%.,
and in the patronage of Evelyn John Shirley, Esq.
The church, which is in Lower Eatington, is dedicated
to St. Thomas a Becket. A chapel, dedicated to St. Mary,
which stood in Upper Eatington, was pulled down about
thirty years since, and rebuilt at Lower Eatington, which
contains the greater part of the population. There is
a place of worship for Baptists. In 1807, Sarah Roberts
bequecathed a sum of £200, directing the interest to be
applied to the education of poor children; about fifty
are instructed. On the south-west, this parish is bound-
ed by the river Stour.

EATON, a township in the parish of ArrrETON,
hundred of Ock, county of Berks, 5% miles (N.w.
by N.) from Abingdon, containing 85 inhabitants.

EATON, a township in the parish of EccLesrox,
lower division of the hundred of Broxrown, county
palatine of CrrsteEr, 3% miles (8.) from Chester,
containing 66 inhabitants. It is situated on the river
Dee, near which stands Eaton Abbey, the princely resi-
dence of Earl Grosvenor, which within the last eight
years has been considerably enlarged and beautified.

EATON, a township in the parish of Tarrorrry,
first division of the hundred of Eppissury, county
palatine of CHESTER, 14 mile (E.N.E.) from Tarporley,
containing 477 inhabitants.

EATON, a township in the parish of PresTBURY,
hundred of MACCLESFIELD, county palatine of CHESTER,
2 miles (N.N.E.) from Congleton, containing 327 inha-
bitants.

EATON, a township in the parish of Davenmam,
hundred of NorTEWICH, county palatine of CresTER,
22 miles (8. by W.) from Northwich, containing 18
inhabitants.

EATON, a township in that part of the parish of
AsuBourN which is in the hundred of WinksworTH,
county of Dersy, 7 miles (N.N.W.) from Ashbourn,
containing, with the chapelry of Alsop le Dale, 61 inha-
bitants. This township is in the honour of Tutbury,
duchy of Lancaster, and within the jurisdiction of a
court of pleas held at Tutbury every third Tuesday, for
the recovery of debts under 40s.

EATON, a parish in the hundred of FraMrAND,
county of Lercesrer, 8 miles (N.N.E) from Meltpn-
Mowbray, containing 284 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£7. 11. 3., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in
the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated
to St. Denis. The Wesleyan Methodists have a place
of worship here. Thereis a small sum for the education
of children. ‘

EATON, a parish in the South-clay division of the
wapentake of BASSETLAW, county of NoTTINGHAM,
2} miles (8.) from East Retford, containing 215 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged vi , in the
peculiar _furisdiction of the Chapter of the iate
Church ‘of Southwelratedl, in ‘ae'-ws “books :}
£4.13, 4., and in the patronage of the Pr
Ewniin the Collegiate Church .a.tyﬁgushﬂn :
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church is dedicated to All Saints. This parish is in the
honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and within'the
jurisdiction of a court of pleas held at Tutbury every
third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts under 40s.

- EATON, a township «4n the parish of Stoxr upon
Terx, Drayton division of the hundred of Braprorp
(North), county of Saror, 6 miles (N.W.) from New-
port, containing 123 inhabitants.

EATON, a parish within the liberty of the borough
of WeNLOCK, county of Savop, 44 miles (S.E. by E.)
from Church-Stretton, containing 566 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Salop, and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's
books at £5. H.and W. Lloyd, Esqrs. were patrons
in 1810. The church is dedicated to St. Edith.

EATON (BISHOP), a parish in the hundred of
Wenrrer, county of Hererorp, 5 miles (W.) from
Hereford, containing 452 inhabitants. The living is a
(discharged rectory, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the
Dean of Hereford, rated in the king's books at £13,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Hereford. The
church is dedicated to St. Michael.

EATON (BRAY), a parish in the hundred of Mans-
HEAD, county of Beprorp, 34 miles (W. by 8.) from
Dunstable, containing 816 inhabitants. The living is
a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese
of Lineoln, rated in the king's books at £12. 16. 3.,
and in -the patronage of the Master and Fellows of
Trinity College, Cambridge. The church is dedicated
to St. Mary. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists. Here was anciently a castle, built by
Cantilupe, Baron of Abergavenny, in 1221, of which
nothing remains.

EATON (CHURCH), a parish in the western
division of the hundred of CurrLEsTonE, county of
Starrorp, 5§ miles (W.N.W.) from Penkridge, contain-
ing, with the townships of Marston, High Own, and
Little Own, and the hamlets of Oslow and Wood-Eaton,
829 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Stafford, and diocese of Lichfield and Co-
ventry, rated in the king's books at £14. 19. 94., and
in the patronage of Earl Talbot. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Edith. There 'is an endowed grammar
school, in which about twenty-five boys, and the same
number of girls, are gratuitously educated.

- EATON (LITTLE), a chapelry in that part of the
parish of Sr. ALkmunD, Derpy; which is in the hun-
dred of MorLesToN and Lircaurcs, county of DErpy,
3% miles (N.N.E.) from Derby, contalmng 547 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the peculiar
jurisdiction of the Dean and Chapter of Lichfield, en-
dowed with £800 royal bounty, and £ 1400 parliamant.
ary grant, and in the patronage of Sir J. Kaye, Bart.

EATON (LONG), a chapelry in the parish of - “Saws

Ley, hundred of MorresToN and LrrcuurcH, county

of Derpy, 6} miles (N.) from Kegworth, containing

682 inhabitants, - It is within the peculiar jurisdiction
of the Prebendary of Sawley in the Cathedral Church

of Lichfield. The chpd\udedwdtoSt Lawrence.
There is a place of w for Wesleyan Methodists. .

1 EATON-CONS e ‘in the
ton - division. of the of Braprorp (Soq:mv
‘7(”L n./ v L{ m

M \'_.“Y‘ sm' 5*
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diocese of Lichfield and Govenmvy The Marquis of
Cleveland was patron in 1823." The church is dedicated
to St. Mary. The inhabitants bury at Leighton. This
place is bounded by the river Severn on the south-west.

EATON-HASTINGS, a ‘parish in the hundred of
SHRIVENHAM, county of Berks, 33 miles (N.W. by'N.)
from Great Farringdon, containing 178 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Berks, and
diocese of Salisbury, rated in' the king's books at
£18. 7. 1. The Rev. R. Rice was patron in 1784. The
church is dedicated to St. Michael.

EATON-SOCON, a parish in the hundred of
Barrorp, county of Brprorp, 1§ mile (8.W.) from
St. Neot's, containing, with Wyboston, 2039 inhabitants:
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Bedford, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £20. 13. 9. The Duke of Bedford was patron
in'1808. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. Here
was anciently a castle, the residence of a branch of the
family of Beauchamps ; also a priory for Augustine friars,
founded by Sir Oliver Beauchamp and his son Hugh,
the only remaining portion of which is the refectory,
now converted into gtables. The river Ouse is navi-
gable along the eastern boundary of the parish.

EATON-TREGOES, a township in the parish of
Foy, upper division of the hundred of WormELOw,
though locally in the hundred of Greyiree, county of
Hererorp, 2§ miles (N. by E.) from Ross. The popu-
lation is returned with the parish. -

EAVES, a township in the parish of Stoxe upon
TreNT, northern division of the hundred of Prrunruy,
county of STA¥rorD, 55 miles (E.N.E.) from Newcastle
under Line. - The population is returned with the parish.

. EAVESTONE, a township in that part of the parish
of Riron which is in the liberty of Rrron, West riding
of the county of York, 6 miles (W.8.W.) from Ripon,
containing 78 inhabitants.

EBBERSTON, a parish in Prckerine lythe, North
riding of the county of York, 53 miles (E.) from
Pickering, containing 505 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction and pa-
tronage of the Dean of York, rated in the king’s books
at £5. 17. 34., and endowed with £400 parliamentary
grant. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. There is
a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

EBBESBORNE-WAKE, a parich in the hundred
of CuaLk, county of ers, 81 ‘miles (S.W. by W.)
from Wilton, containing 239 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salis-
bury, rated in the king's books at £19. 14: 2., and in
the patronage of the Succentor in the Cathedral Church
of Salisbury. The church is dedicated to St. John the

ist. There is a place of worship for Independerits.

EBBS-FLEET, a hamlet in the parish of M1 ;
hundred of RingsLow, or Iste of ‘El‘mn'is '
of ‘87, AveusTINg, county of Kent, 3§ miles
g i m'ﬁh Hbﬁa,e th
with the parish, Hengist !
landed here wiﬁl ﬂleir forceb I’bo\lt-'
gutlne, in 596. : i

mnm ﬂlll’
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nnd diocese of Durham; endowed with £200 private
benefaction; and £200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of the Bishop of Durham. The church is a small
ancient structure, dedicated to St.Ebba, daughter of
Ethelfrid, King of Northumberland, who, before 660,
founded a monastery upon the banks of the Derwent,
which was subséquently destroyed by the Danes, and the
royal foundress became abbess of Coldingham. Five
hundred years afterwards, Ebchester is described as
“the place of anchorets.,” The church and a few cottages
occupy the site of a Roman station, two hundred yards
square, with extensive outworks, supposed to he the Vin-
domora of Antoninus, traces of which are still discern-
ible. -~ Sepulchral and other monuments found upon the
spot have been built up in the walls of the houses, and
some are deposited in the library at Durham, with an urn
of an uncommon size and shape, having a small cup in the
centre, as a lachrymatory, or patera. The Roman road
from Lanchester and Corbridge leads to Ebchester, where
Gale places Ptolemy's Epiacum, but Horsley states it to
be at Hexham. David IL, King of Scotland, in his
unfortunate invasion, is said to have entered the county
by this road, which may still be traced where it crossed
the Derwent, by a ford near the present foot-bridge.

EBONY, a chapelry in the parish of ArprLEDORE,
partly in the hundred of TenTeErDEN, lathe of Scray,
but chiefly in the hundred of Oxwey, lathe of Smer-
waAY, county of KeNT, 4% miles (8.E.) from Tenterden,
containing 151 inhabitants. The chapel, dedicated to
St. Mary, stands on the site of a larger and more ancient
edifice, which was destroyed by lightning early in the
reign of Elizabe The Grand Military canal passes
through that part of the chapelry which is in the lathe
of Seray, and the river Rother runs along the southern
boundary.

EBRINGTON, a parish in the upper division of the
hundred of Kirrscate, county of Grovcuster, 13
mile (E. by N.) from Chipping-Campden, containing,
with Charingworth and Hitco%Boyce, 535 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, united to the vicar-
age of Mickleton, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Gloucester; rated in the king's books at £9. 9. 4., en-
dowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Crown. The church, dedicated to St. Edburgh,
is a large and handsome structure, the east window of
which is ornamented with stained glass, representing
portions of the history of the patriarch Joseph : in the
chancel is a monument, erected in 1677, to Sir John
Fortescue, Lord Chancellor in the reign of Henry VI.

brington gives the title of viscount to Earl Fortescue.
- ECCHINSWELL, a chapelry in that part of the
parish of KinescLere which is in the hundred of Evin-
AR, Ki division of the county of SovrTHAMPTON,

chapel is dedicated to St. Lawrence.

parish in the hundred of Savrorp,
LaNcasTir, 4 miles (W.) from Man-
the chapelries of Pendleton and
waships of Barton, Clifton, and

n the later style of
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The church, de-
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but at the dissolution it was made parochial. = Inde:
pendents, Wesleyan Methodists, and Roman Catholies,
have each a place of worship, with a school attached.
There are manufactories for silk, nankeen, gingham, and
linen cloth ; also a large cotton-mill, which affords em-
ployment to about four hundred people. A school-room
in the church-yard was rebuilt by subscription in 1816,
and is partly supported by a bequest from James Brad-
shaw, in 1800, of £8. 8. per annum, and partly from the
parish fund of benefactions ; five hundred and thirty
children are taught at this school. The Manchester and
Liverpool rail-road passes close to the village. The abbot
and convent of Whalley established a small settlement
of monks at this place ; a small portion of the building
remains, and forms part of a farm-house, bearing the
name of Monks' Hall. Robert Ainsworth, author of the
Latin and English Dictionary, was born here in 1660.

ECCLES, a parish in the hundred of Harring,
county of NorroLk, 9f miles (E. by 8.) from North
Walsham, containing, with Hemstead, 212 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, consolidated with that
of Hemstead, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £8. E. Lombe,
Esq. was patron in 1815. The church, dedicated to St.
Mary, was swallowed up by the sea in 1605. The coast
is defended by a ridge of sand hills, thrown up by the
wind and surge, which seems to oppose a sufficient barrier
to any future encroachment of the sea, though at the
period when the church disappeared, the village was re-
duced from eighty to fourteen houses, and the land in
the parish from one thousand three hundred to: three
hundred acres, by a terrible inundation, and in the time
of Charles 1. only one hundred acres remained after a
similar calamity.

ECCLES, a parish in the hundred of Smrormam,
county of NorroLk, 2% miles (N.E.) from East Harling,
containing 122 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the Kking's books at £14, endowed with £400
royal bounty. The Rev. C. Miller and another were
patrons in 1800. The church is dedicated to'St. Mary.

ECCLESALL-BIERLOW, a chapelry in that part
of the parish of SuEFrieLp which is in the southern
division of the wapentake of Srrarrorrs and Ticx-
HiLL, West riding of the county of York, 3 miles
(8.w.) from Sheffield, containing 9113 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of York, endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, £400 royal bounty, and £1700 parlia.mentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Vicar of Sheflield.
Here is a free school endowed with £11 per annum.

ECCLESFIELD, a parish in the northern division
of the wapentake of Strarrortn and TickmiLL, West
riding of the county of Yorxk, comprising the chapelry
of Bradfield, and the townships of Aldward and Eccles-
field, and containing 12,496 inhabitants, of which num-
ber, 7463 are in the township of Ecclesfield, 5% rmlga
(N.) from Sheffield. The living is a vicarage, in the

A and  diocese of York, rated in the king's

arc
_books at £ 19. 8. 4., and in the patronage of Earl Fitz-

william. The church, dedicated to St. John the Baptist,
is in the later style of h architecture, and has

Jately received an addition of three hundred and ninety-
seven sittings, of which. two hundred are free, the In-

corporated Society for the enlargement . of chamlm
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and chapels having granted £200 toward defraying the
expense. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. The manufacture of hardware, similar to that
at Sheffield, is carried on at this place. There are se-
veral endowed schools; that at Ecclesﬁeld is supported
out of the fegffee estate of this extensive parish, with
£21 per annum, for teaching eighteen poor children,
Sylvester’s hoapxtal for seven poor persons, was
founded and endowed by Edward Sylvester, in 1693 ;
the income, aided by a bequest of £200 from Ann
Reresby, in 1801, amounts to about £100 per annum,
which, after providing for repairs, &c., is divided among
the inmates. = Barnes Hall hospital, for six poor people,
was erected in the 15th of Charles 1., by Richard Watts,
to whom Sir Richard Scott, in 1668, devised certain
estates for the purpose. An almshouse, for three poor
persons of Ecclesfield and three of Owleston, was erected
by George Bamforth, and is kept in repair by the parish,
There was formerly an Alien priory of Benedictine monks
to the abbey of St. Wandragisilius, in Normandy, which,
at their suppression, was granted by Richard II. to the
Carthusian monastery of St. Anne, near Coventry. In
the meighbourhood are vestiges of a Roman intrench-
ment, termed Devil's Ditch.

ECCLESHALL, a parish in the northern division
of the hundred of PireriLL, county of STAFFORD, com-
prising the market town of Eccleshall, the chapelries of
Broughton and Chorlton, and the townships of Aspley,
Bromley, Charnes, Chatcull, Chorlton-Hill, Coldmeece,
Cotes, Croxton, Horseley, Mitmeece, Pershall, Podmore,
Slindon, Great Sugnall, Little Sugnall, Three-Farms,
Walton, and Wootton, and cont.ammg 4227 inhabitants,
of which number, 1254 are in the town of Eccleshall,
7% miles (N.W. by W.) from Stafford, and 149 (N.W.)
from London. - This place, which is supposed to be of
very remote antiquity, belonged at the time of the
Conquest to the bishops of Lichfield, Bishop Durdent
having procured for it, in 1160, the grant of a weekly
market and an annual fair; and about the year 1200
Bishop Muschamp obtained from King John license to
embattle the episcopal residence, and to empark the ad-
joining grounds. The castle was extensively repaired
or entirely rebuilt by Bishop Langton, in 1810 : during
the pa.rhn.mentnry war, it sustained so much damage
in a siege, prior to its being taken by the parliamenta-
rians; as to be unfit for the residence of the bishops, until
Bishop Lloyd, in 1695, rebuilt the south part, and con-
nected it with the remaining old buildings, then occupied
as a farm-house ; since which time it has continued to
betheepucopdpnhoeof the see of Lichfield and Coven-

Bishop Hough planted the grove, which has been since
beautifully laid out in shrubberies and plantations ;

and Dr, Comwallu the late bishop, by draining
grounds, added greutly to the ulnbrltyof the situation,
The environs are pleasant, and the woods |
the palace are extensive. The town, which hpieanntly
situated on the river M,mhs.mmd

_The market is on

g
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The living is a discharged vicarage, in the peculiar
jurisdiction of the Prebendary of Eccleshall in the Ca-
thedral Church of Lichfield, rated in the king's books
at £7. 14. 4., endowed with £ 400 private benefaction,
#£200 royal bounty, and £700 parliamentary grant, and
in the patronage of the Bishop of Lichfield and Coventry,
The church, dedicated to the Holy Trinity, was the sanc-
tuary of Queen Margaret, after Lord Audley’s defeat
by the Earl of Salisbury, at Blore Heath : it is a spa-
cious structure in the ancient style of English architec-
ture, and contains several monuments. There is a
place of worship for Independents. = A charity school,
which is supported by the pmshmners, has a trifling
endowment ; and a National school, in which nearly
one thousand children are instructed, 1s supported
by subscription. About a mile to the north of the town
is a paved vicinal way ; and about a mile to the east
of it are some ancient remains.

ECCLESHILL, a township in the parish of Brack-
BURN, lower division of the hundred of BLACKBURN,
county palatine of LANCASTER, 3% miles (8.8.E.) from
Blackburn, containing 456 inhabitants.

ECCLESHILL, a township in the parish of Brap-
rorD, wapentake of Morvruy, West riding of the county
of Yorxk, 34 miles (N. E.byN.) from Bradford, contain-
ing 2176 inhabitants. Wesleyan Methodists and Inde-
pendents have each a place of worship here, There are
several scribbling and worsted-mills in the township.

ECCLESTON, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of BroxTon, county palatine of CHESTER, com-
prising the townships of Eaton and Eccleston, and con-
taining 358 inhabitants, of which number, 292 are in the
township of Eccleston, 23 miles (8.) from Chester, . The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and, diocese of
Chester, rated in the king's books at £15 13. 11%.; and
in the patronage of Earl Grosvenor, at whose expense
the church, dedicated to St. Mary, and the burial-place
of the family, was rebuilt in 1808: it is an elegant
structure of red stone, with an embattled tower erowned
with pinnacles ; over the altar is a painting, by Cara-
vaggio, of the Nativity. The village is situated on the
river Dee, where is a free school, established by Earl
Grosvenor.  Eccleston was occupied by Sir William
Brereton's army, during the siege of Chester, in 1645.
The old Watling-street passes through the. pamh, and
near the church is a tumulus.

ECCLESTON, a parish in the hundmd of L“un
county palatine of LANCASTER, comprising the townships
of Eccleston, Hisken, Parbold, and Wrightington, and
containing 2601 inhabitants, of which number, 727 are
in the township of Eccleston, 5 miles (W.) from Chorley
Thehvpgunremry, in the -and dioe
of Chester, rated in the king's books at £28. 16, 0
and in the patronage of the Rev. W. YM 'he church
an ancient edifice dedmaud to St. {
ceived’an addition of forty free mttlnp,
Society for the enlargement of
having granted £40 towards
A market and fairs were formerly h
day school was built by subseription . in
grammar. ,Mm Hesken was i
Sir James - ~ The mmY .
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mands an’ extensive prospect, including the Isle of Man
and the mountains of Cumberland and Wales.

ECCLESTON, a township in the parish of PrEscor,
hundred of West DErpy, county palatine of LANCASTER,
¢ miles (N.N.E.) from Prescot, containing 1931 inha-
bitants. - The manufacture of crown glass and earthen-
ware is considerable; and in the neighbourhood are
stone quarries and mines of coal.

ECCLESTON (GREAT), a township in the parish
of St. MicuarL, hundred of AMOUNDERNESS, county
palatine of LANcAsTER, 6 miles (N.) from Kirkham, con-
taining 648 inhabitants. Several of the inhabitants are
employed in cufting and preparing rushes for tallow-
chandlers. There are fairs on April 14th, Trinity-Mon-
day, and November 4th. A school, in which about
eighty children are educated, is chiefly supported by the
benefactions of William Fyld and William Gualter, the
present income being £50 per annum.

ECCLESTON (LITTLE), a joint township with
Larbrick, in the parish of Kirxkmam, hundred of
AMOUNDERNESS, county palatine of LANCASTER, 6} miles
(N. by E.) from Kirkham, containing 224 inhabitants,

ECCLESWELL, a hamlet in the parish of LinTon,
hundred of GREYTREE, county of HErEFORD, 4% miles
(E. by 8.) from Ross. The population is returned with
the parish. Here was formerly a chapel, but it has long
since been demolished.

ECCUP, a joint township with Addle, in the parish
of AppLE, upper division of the wapentake of SKYRACK,
West riding of the county of York, 7 miles (N. by W.)
from Leeds, containing, with Brearey and Cookridge,
699 inhabitants.  This is supposed to have been the site
of ‘the Burgodunum-of the Romans. In 1742, upwards
of five hundred coins, chiefly of Valerianus, Gallienus,
Tetricus Victorinus, and Claudius Gothicus, were disco-
 vered, b

ECKINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Scars-
DALE, county of DErBy, comprising the townships of
Eckington, Mosborough, Renishaw,and Troway, and con-
taining 8598 inhabitants, of which number, 1013 are in
the township of Eckington, 7 miles (N.E.byN.) from Ches-
terfield. The living is a rectory with Killamarsh in the
archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and Co-
ventry, rated in the king's books at £40. 13. 4., and in
the pa of the Crown. The church is dedicated to
St.Peter and St. Paul, There is a chapel of ease at Kill-
marsh. The Wesleyan Methodists have two places of
‘worship, and there is a Roman Catholic chapel within the
parish, Here are several manufactories for scythes and
sickles, the produce of which, besides being tram;'nitted
to all parts of England, is exported to America, Russia,
E.OIIJ,’::OMG; Ireland, :[xcp? a considerable quantity
of najls is made in the parish. A statute fair for the
liring of servants is held on the 5th ofNov;mh% The
erfield canal passes through the parish. omas
Cam, iu 1704, gave lands for:?i\e endowment of a free
‘school’; 'in 1717, George Sitwell gave a school-house ;
and in 1719, Lady Trechville bequeathed £100. in fur-

dr
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b % e m, the present annual income of parish
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: ECKINGTON, a parish in the upper division of the
undred of Persuore, county of WorcesTeRr, 4 miles
(8.8.W.) from Pershore, containing 668 inhabitants,
The living is a_discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese ‘of Worcester, rated in the king's books- at
£5. 1. 8., endowed with £6 per annum gnd £100 pri-
vate benefaction, and £200 royal bo , and in the
patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Westminster.
The church is dedicated to the Holy Trinity. There is
a stone bridge over the Avon, which is here navigable.

ECTON, a parish in the hundred of Hamrorpsuor,
county of NorTHAMPTON, 5 miles (S, W. by w.) from
Wellingborough, containing 566 inhabitants. The living
18 a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
£21. 8. 14. The Rev. T. Whalley was patron in 1803,
The church is dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. Here
is a small free school.

EDALE, a chapelry in the parish of Casrieron,
hundred of Hica Prak, county of Dermy, 53 miles
(N.E. by E.) from Chapel en le Frith, containing 435
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry, endowed with £8 per annum and £200
private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £ 600
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of certain
Trustees. The chapel is dedicated to the Holy Trinity.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
A free school, rebuilt in 1819, by Mrs. Bowden, has
sundry small endowments. Edale is in the honour of
Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and within the jurisdic-
tion of a court of pleas held at Chapel en le Frith,
for the recovery of debts under 40s.

EDBURTON, a parish comprising the hamlet of
Fulking, in the hundred of Povynings, rape of Lrwes,
and partly in the hundred of Bursracm, rape of
BraMBER, county of Sussex, 4 miles (E.) from
Steyning, and containing 269 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of
the Archbishop of Canterbury, rated in the king's books
at £16. The church, dedicated to St. Andrew, is in the
early style of English architecture, with later insertions.

EDDINGTON, a joint tything with Hiddon, in the
parish of HuNGErFORD, hundred of Kintpury-EAcLe,
county of Berks, 1 mile (N.E. byE.) from Hungerford,
containing 421 inhabitants. It is most probable that
this was the Ethandune of the Saxon Chronicle, where
Alfred is recorded to have obtained a decisive victory
over the Danes, in 878, though Camden and others have
fixed the scene of that contest at Eddington, near West-
bury, in Wiltshire. Roman moulds, for coining, some
of them enclosing the metal itself, have been found here,
and are deposited in the Ashmolean Museum : they have
the impressions only of Severus and Caracalla, and their
empresses, Julia and Plantilla. Near the spot was also
discovered a tessclated pavement.

.. EDDINSHALL, a township in that part of the

ish of St. OswaLp, CuesTER, which is in the first
division of the hundred of Eppissury, county palatine
of CHESTER, containing 25 inhabitants.

EDDISBURY, a township in the parish of Deva-
meRre, first division of the hundred of mnuv,
county palatine of CHESTER, containing 72 itants.
~ EDDLESBOROUGH, a parish in the hundred of





